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ORDER OF BUSINESS

1. COUNCIL WELCOME AND STATEMENT OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

WELCOME

The Mayor Cr Daryl Warren will welcome all in attendance.

STATEMENT OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Mayor Cr Daryl Warren will acknowledge the traditional owners of the land on which we are
meeting and pay our respects to their Elders and to the Elders from other communities who maybe here
today.

2. RECEIPT OF APOLOGIES

3. DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

In accordance with Section 130 (2) of the Local Government Act 2020 Councillors who have a conflict of
interest in respect of a matter being considered at this Meeting, must

a) Disclose the conflict of interest in the manner required by the Council's Governance Rules
2020; and

a) Exclude themselves from the decision making process in relation to that matter, including any
discussion or vote on the matter at any Council meeting or delegated committee, and any

action in relation to the matter.

Disclosure must occur immediately before the matter is considered or discussed.

NEXT MEETING

THE NEXT ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL WILL BE HELD IN WYCHEPROOF SUPPER ROOM, , 367 BROADWAY,
WYCHEPROOF ON WEDNESDAY, 14 JuLY 2021 AT 7PM.

Anthony Judd
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http://www5.austlii.edu.au/au/legis/vic/consol_act/lga2020182/s3.html#delegated_committee
http://www5.austlii.edu.au/au/legis/vic/consol_act/lga2020182/s126.html#matter

3.1 MANAGEMENT REPORTS
3.1.1 COMMUNITY GRANTS & SPONSORSHIP

Author’s Title: Community Development Officer
Department: Community Development File No: GS/09/42

Relevance to Council Plan 2017 - 2021

Strategic Objective: Build a healthy and active community

PURPOSE
This report is presented to Council to consider the allocation of funds from the Community Grants and
Sponsorship Program

SUMMARY
The following applications are presented for Council to consider.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council allocates the following funding under the Community Grants and Sponsorship program:

e $6,600 sustainability Grant to Friends to Mount Wycheproof;

e 51,000 Organisation Support Grant to Buloke Tourism Board;

e $1,500 Project Small Equipment Grant to Birchip Historical Society;
e $1,500 Project Support Grant to Donald Lions Club; and

e 51,250 Project Support Grant to Tchum Lake Aquatic Club.

Attachments: Nil
DISCUSSION

The following applications have submitted under Council’s Community Grants and Sponsorship
Program.

Each of these applications have been assessed as per the Community Grant Guidelines as accepted by
Council. The Senior Leadership Team recommends the following grants for Council’s consideration and
final decision on the allocations.

Project: Mt Wycheproof Restoration Project

Organisation: Friends of Mt Wycheproof
Amount Applied: | $6600
Funding Amount | $6600

Recommended:

Total project | $11000

cost:

Project Remove and inhibit Noxious and other weeds from Mt Wycheproof. Work
Description: carried out by local contractors TMC Enviro who have all the insurance and

experience for undertaking this type of work on Crown/Shire managed land.
Council’s Environmental Compliance Officer will liaise with the contractors.




Project Benefit:

Successful cessation of weed growth will allow native species to thrive and
provide carbon sequestration. Enhance the natural environment and attraction of
the Mount site. Potential growth of visitor and tourism numbers will bring
benefits to the Wycheproof community.

Organisation:

Project: Insuring Buloke Tourism

Buloke Tourism Board

Amount Applied: | $1000

Funding Amount | $1000

Recommended:

Total project | $1049

cost:

Project This funding will provide organisational support to cover insurance costs for 12
Description: months.  The impact of COVID and a significant drop in overseas visitors has

impacted on local business over the past 14 months. The re-emergence of local
tourism and a move of metropolitan families to rural communities should provide
opportunities for this group to generate it’s own revenue going forward.

Project Benefit:

Buloke communities working together to promote tourism and local attractions
will contribute significantly to the diversification of the Buloke community. The
Buloke Visitor’s Guide was a good example of what can be accomplished when
communities collaborate. The Buloke Tourism Board are currently working on a
Business Plan and a Memorandum of Understanding for Buloke Shire and the
various town forums to formalize the role this board plays in the community.
This should result in them developing an independent revenue stream.

Organisation:

(IThelpforResearch .

Birchip Historical Society

Amount Applied: $1500
Funding Amount | $1500
Recommended:

Total project cost: $2634.95

Project Description:

Project to upgrade current IT capacity with a computer and software

Project Benefit:

The project will result in enhanced capacity to undertake research and
support local residents and visitors in exploring their family links to the Birchip
community. Local researcher and visiting families will benefit from this
improved capacity. As COVID restrictions ease the museum will be reopened
to the public. The BHS is collaborating with Sea Lake based tour operators to
host bus trips to Birchip. This will contribute to the local economy.

Organisation:

Project: Out and About With The Davidson Brothers

Donald Lions Club

Amount Applied: | $1500

Funding Amount | $1500

Recommended:

Total project | $2900

cost:

Project A country music event featuring the Davidson Brothers. An afternoon — evening
Description: event to be held on a Sunday. The project will provide an opportunity for Donald

people to further re-connect. Re-grouping post COVID-19 lockdowns to develop
the town's older people and younger country music towns people to get the
community moving and a reason to get out and about.

Project Benefit:

Local Lions Clubs have been significant contributors to emergency response
efforts in Buloke. COVID has impacted on the capacity of the clubs to support
local connectedness and community building projects. Lions in Donald are keen
to build on this initial event as a local community fundraiser going forward. This




project is prompting the community to get out again, especially older people, to
enjoy a pleasant Sunday afternoon with music and gathering to reconnect with
old friends who have become withdrawn. Special transport and invitation will be
issued to Goodwin Village residents.

Project: Tchum Lake Fun Day

Organisation: Tchum Lake Aquatic Club

Amount Applied: | $1250

Funding Amount | $1250

Recommended:

Total project | $2500

cost:

Project Project will provide a evening event featuring an outdoor movie. This is a family

Description: friendly event held on the Tchum Lake foreshore. The night is designed for a
cross section of ages so that families can relax and enjoy the evening together.

Project Benefit: Tchum Lake location and facilities provide a setting that contributes to people
being able to relax and have the benefit of both indoor and outdoor setting. This
opportunity to bring Birchip residents as well as neighbouring communities
together will be a valuable circuit breaker following the COVID impact.

RELEVANT LAW

Not applicable

RELATED COUNCIL DECISIONS
Not applicable

OPTIONS
Not applicable.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

The Friends of Mount Wycheproof application targeting a reductions in their carbon footprint and
positive impact on the environment.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
Not applicable.

INNOVATION AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT
Not Applicable

COLLABORATION
Not applicable.

FINANCIAL VIABILITY

With the approval of the above applications the allocation for Community Grant Funding will be $15,868
of a total of $20,000 annual budget and the Sustainability Grant Funding will be $41,284 out of a total
$50,000 annual budget.

REGIONAL, STATE AND NATIONAL PLANS AND POLICIES
Not applicable.

COUNCIL PLANS AND POLICIES

These projects all fit broadly within the Council Plan strategies, particularly in supporting community
enterprise and enhancing the sustainability of our community facilities



TRANSPARENCY OF COUNCIL DECISIONS
Not applicable.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

No officer involved in the development of this report has a conflict of interest.



3.1.2 ADOPTION OF ANNUAL BUDGET 2021 - 2022 FINANCIAL YEAR

Author’s Title: Director Corporate Services
Department: Corporate Services File No: FM/05/02

Relevance to Council Plan 2017 - 2021

Strategic Objective: Deliver our service in a financially viable way

PURPOSE
To present the Annual Budget 2021/22 for adoption by the Council.

SUMMARY

Council has complied with all the relevant requirements of the Local Government Act 2020 relating to
the preparation, presentation, and adoption of the Annual Budget 2021/22.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Council, having complied with its obligations under the Local Government Act 2020:

1. Adopts the proposed Annual Budget 2021/22 document including to the following amendments
from draft:

e Confirmation of the Financial Assistance Grant (FAG) 2021-22 and estimate of advanced
payment 2022-23;

e Additional expenditure relating to increase FAG;

e Corrections and updates to capital works projects since draft; and

e Additional allocations to community groups following Council’s consideration of budget
submissions

2. Provides the following details in relation to the Annual Budget 2021/22:
i. There are no new borrowings proposed for the 2021/22 financial year;
ii. The rate in the dollar for each type of rate to be levied for the period 1 July 2021 to 30 June
2022 is as follows:
Type of Rate Centsin $ on CIV
Rateable residential properties  0.73991
Rateable commercial properties 0.73991

Rateable industrial properties 0.73991
Rateable farming properties 0.51794

iii. Rate a Municipal Charge $170 for each rateable assessment in respect of which a Municipal
Charge may be levied;

iv. Levy an Annual Service Charge of $422 for kerbside garbage and recycling collection for the
period 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022;

3. Levies the general rates and service charges referred to in this resolution by the service notice on
each person liable to pay such rate or charge in accordance with section 158 of the Local
Government Act 1989.

4. In accordance with section 167 of the Local Government Act 1989, the rates and charges declared
by the Council for the 2021/22 financial year must be paid as follows:




i. By fourinstalments made on or before the following dates:
e Instalment 1 —30 September 2021;
e Instalment 2 — 30 November 2021;
e Instalment 3 — 28 February 2022; and
e Instalment 4 —31 May 2022;
Or;
ii. By alump sum payment made on or before 15 February 2022.

5. Authorises the Chief Executive Officer to levy and recover the general rates and annual service
charges in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989; and

6. Determines that the proposed fees and charges for the 2021/22 financial year be adopted.

Attachments: 1 Buloke Shire Council Annual Budget 2021 - 2022 Financial Year

DISCUSSION

Council is required to prepare and adopt a Budget for each financial year, and the subsequent 3 financial
years by 30 June. At the Council Meeting held on 12 May 2021, the draft Annual Budget 2021/22 was
endorsed for the purposes of commencing community engagement. This community engagement
process has now been completed, and submissions were presented to the Council at its Meeting held on
9 June 2021.

Each year between the time the draft Annual Budget is advertised and when the document is adopted
by the Council, events occur which can cause some variation in the Annual Budget. The types of events
which occur including:

e timing differences in payment of grants funds;

e additional grant funded capital works projects; and

e completion of the capital works program for the current financial year.
While some of the changes listed above have occurred since the draft budget was released in May 2021
no material change has occurred to Council’s overall bottom line and it is recommended that Council
adopt the draft budget document as advertised.

When Council considers its September financial report in October 2021, the end of the 2021 financial
year will have been completed. At this time Council will incorporate the following 2021/22 variations:

e Carryover of any uncompleted projects from the 2020/21 financial year;

e Additional capital and operational grant funded projects; and

e Variations caused because of timing changes in the delivery of grant funds.
Once these amendments have been adopted by Council in October each year, the updated budget
becomes the Council’s Current Budget and is the document used for financial report comparison for the
remainder of the year.

RELEVANT LAW

Council has a statutory responsibility to prepare and adopt a Budget in accordance with the Local
Government Act 2020. The provisions of the Local Government Act 1989 continue to apply with respect
to rates and charges on rateable land.

RELATED COUNCIL DECISIONS

Council released its draft Annual Budget 2021/22 in May 2021 for feedback in accordance with its
Community Engagement policy. Submissions were received at the Council Meeting held on 9 June 2021.
Community engagement was also undertaken in relation to the Financial Plan, Council Plan and Revenue
and Rating Plan during this period.




OPTIONS

The Council’s Annual Budget has been developed in consultation with the Councillors. Briefings
included discussion on the need to continue investing own source revenue into Council assets,
particularly its road infrastructure. Council’s Annual Budget continues to reflect the commitment to
maintain currents service levels.

Submissions to the budget were considered and, where appropriate, amendments made to the budget
to address matters raised. Submissions made to the Council Plan and Revenue and Rating Plan were
also assessed against the draft document.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

The Annual Budget 2021-22 identifies how Council proposes to resource strategic objectives related to
its:

e  built and natural environment, including ongoing review of waste and recycling management;
implementation of streetscape improvements, riverfront projects and the Playspace master plan;
and management of environmental compliance and sustainability programs and services;

e community, including implementation of Council’'s Community Vision and Council Plan;
establishing a new early learning facility in Sea Lake; and supporting initiatives under the Bounce
Back funding; and

e economy, including working with stakeholders to review and promote housing opportunities
within the Shire; developing a new Economic Development and Tourism Strategy; and
implementing key projects from the Silo Art Activation fund.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

The Draft Annual Budget 2021/22 was presented at the Council Meeting held on 12 May 2021 and
Council subsequently commenced community engagement in accordance with its Community
Engagement policy.

Submissions on the budget closed 12 noon 9 June 2021 and Council received 10 budget submissions.

A brief description of the subject matter of each submission is listed below:

Ref. | Person/Group Submission

1* Martin Duke e Budget development methodology

e Continued critical review of built assets in consultation with
community to identify and remove from BSC AM register built
infrastructure surplus to needs — therefore reduction in long term
financial impost

e Specific comments re major initiatives (procurement kerbside
waste bins, recognition and allocation aged care service model,
analyse and enhance improved customer service / community
engagement focus)

2% Youth Health Expo e 52,000 Funding for current and future Youth Health Expo
Working Party

3* | Charlton Gentle Exercise | e Disability ramp and railing at shallow end of Charlton Pool

Group
4* | Buloke Neighbourhood e Annual allocation $5K/house ‘community event and activities
House Cluster funding’
5 Buloke Tourism Board e Annual stipend $1-2K to cover operating costs and small projects
Rex Theatre e Annual funding $10K across Shire arts management/cultural
incentives
7 L2P Committee e $7,500 toward purchase replacement vehicle

8 CHARTSEC e Funding for building upgrade $322K




9 Charlton Lawn Tennis e Removal 3 trees within Charlton Park (approx. $13,500)
Club

10 | Birchip Early Learning e Funding of infrastructure in Strategic Plan
Centre

Council considered these submissions at the Council Meeting held on 9 June 2021. 6 presentations
were made in support of the submissions.

Following consideration of the submissions, the Annual Budget 2021/22 will be amended to include an
allocation of $2,000 for each Neighbourhood House within the 2021/22 financial year and an allocation
of $1,000 for the Buloke Tourism Board. The current 2020/21 Annual Budget already includes $5,000 to
fund the L2P proposal and funds to remove 3 trees at Charlton Park.

Council has committed to undertaking a strategic review of contributions and grants within the 2021/22
financial year with the intention to develop a community contributions and grants framework to guide
future decision making. Council Officers will work with other groups who have made a submission to
discuss alternative funding sources and, if applicable, project planning and costs, to support the
achievement of objectives set out in their submissions.

INNOVATION AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT

The Annual Budget 2021-22 identifies how Council proposes to resource strategic objectives related to
continued service improvement for efficient and flexible services.

COLLABORATION

Council’s commitment to work collaboratively with its partners is set out in its values statement. The
Annual Budget includes provision for a Youth Officer to deliver VicHealth Local Government Partnership
priorities.

FINANCIAL VIABILITY

The annual budget adoption process is a formal process required under the Local Government Act 2020
and includes the current and future financial implications of Council’s operations and capital
expenditure requirements.

The adopted Annual Budget 2021/22 will provide an overarching financial framework for the Council to
implement for the forthcoming year and over the subsequent 3 financial years.

REGIONAL, STATE AND NATIONAL PLANS AND POLICIES

Council’s commitment to undertaking a strategic review of its community contributions and grants will
include advocacy to increase funding by other levels of government for eligible community groups.

COUNCIL PLANS AND POLICIES

Council’s budget development process has been undertaken in accordance with its Community
Engagement policy.

TRANSPARENCY OF COUNCIL DECISIONS

Council’s budget development process has included receipt of submissions at a Council Meeting, with
the opportunity for persons to speak to their submission. Council Officers will respond to each person
or group in relation to the matters raised in their submission.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Local Government (Governance and Integrity) Regulations 2020 provide that for the purposes of
section 129(g) of the Local Government Act 2020 a matter related to preparing or adopting a budget or
a revised budget under Part 4 of the Local Government Act 2020 is prescribed to be exempt.
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Mayor and CEO’s Introduction

The Councillors and | are pleased to present ow first Annusl Budgel of this Couned term.

The process of developing the 2024722 Annuat Budget has besn a challenging task. Faced with farm property values riging
above 20%, the Councillors and stalf have used the avalable (ools of our Revenue and Rating Sirategy to frame a Budget
that is. we believe equidable for aif sectors of the Buloke Shive,

Having adopted 8 Community Engagement Policy, as required by the new Local Govemment Act of 2020, Counclt hes baen
out and actively listened fo the cormmunity in the lead up o developing this Budget. At the same Sme we were alsc seeking
Input from the community in developing our Council Plan, 50 this Budget vory much addressed the issues raised by the
community in those discussions.

This Budget reflects many of the key messages thal you, the community tal us you valued and wished 1o see over the next
four years of this Council term.

Wit over 70% of our rate 1g froem the farming sector our eaiphasis has continued 1o budd on delivering inte o
road network across the Buloke Shire, | am pleased to say that in this year's Budget we have set aside a record amount of
$7.437 million to be spent across ow road network,

The feedback from the community alse indicated That people really enjoy Iiving in Buloke, they feel that we have vibrant
communities in which 10 five, wesk and play,

Understanding our community, we know we reed 1o continue our investments in improved streetscapes, the river front
developments, factpaths and having fands avalable fo respond to ity proi by having & range of grants and the
funds to repair community assets ke Scilleys (stand Bridge in Donatd,

Impiementing the Buloke Playspaces Masterplan across fve fowns with an ingection of $2.8millon 10 busid not only playspaces
for bocads but for visitors as well, will ensure that we are deliverng for af.

Buloke has just been recognised as the Shire in Vicicria thal has the highes! sumber of registared participants in speet (not
members) per capita, with active people engaging across all sports.

Counc will continue to support the community in this ares wihin the 2021722 Budget by aSocating funds to upgrade lighting
at various sportng faclties in Chadton, Nufawil and Wycheproof. Master plans will be developed 10 gude futre sporing
neods in & rumber of towns and the Councill wil continue to support our tional lakes with funds to purchase water. We
will also confinue to increase the aliocation to Committees 1o maintain spors grounds across the Shire.

Over the years and within all Community Plans you have told us that you want 2 hard waste collection, adhering to our stated
aim of full cost recavery on waste services Councd will implement @ hard waste collection across the Shire in 2021/22,

In trying fo provide a bal beb service delivery and with an eye on the Budget bottom line as we emeege nto the past
COVID-19 wordd. Councal has restricted its rte rise to 1.5%. Whilst il gives us no joy in doing %0 we have tried 10 batance
this out by not increasing some fees and charges, especially for the business communify and waiving specific fees for the
Second year in @ row 10 help then emege from the globsl pandemic.

Counciliors and stalf look forward to your feedback on our proposed Budget for 2021722 and as we have done in this term of
Cound, meeting you in your communities to Bscuss your thoughts on our efforts 1o date in making Buloke Shire the place
10 Wve, work and phay.

Cr Daryl Warren
Mayor
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Council has prepared & Budget for 2021722 which » sligned with the Councif's Long Term Financial Plan and Community and
Council Planping grocess. Ow commitment {0 the Buloke commurity is & robust and transparent financial planning pracess. In
meeting this cornmitment Council continues 10 take sleps 1o ensure planned long temm senace and nfrastructure lovels and
standards are mot and aligned with the values of our communty as established under the Councif Plan,

The Budget projects a tofal comprehensive surplus. before asset revaluation adjusiments, predominantly due to higher capital
grants than anticipated. With & larger than usual captal expenditure. panticutarly investing mto roads., this is & cash neutral budgot.

1) Key things we are funding
& Oageing delivery of senvicas 10 the Buloke Shire Coammunity funded by a combined operaling and capital
mmmmmmmmmw Theea services are summarined in theeughout the budget.
b, Contnued ture assets (total program $18 Smillicn):
i Roussnuooo
il Land and Buidings $4.879 000
fil, Plant and Equipment $1 268 000
. Other infrastruciune (parks, drainage, foolpaths) $5.957.00

Strategic Objective 1: Our Built and Natural Environment

e Continue 1o review and re-adopt a fen yoar capital works plan

. Omwo'nmm yeling management and pr srertient S0 & new kerbside collection contract
s Imph tian of key i Mmmcmmmm
MMMQWMMMM&W

. Srnmﬂmnlwmmmrommuuwm including the development of the Birchip Communty Letsure
Cerdre masterplan and design work on fultre road upgrades,
+  Provide support (0 Lake Commitiees for the contrdution of waler payments for lake top-ups.

Stratagic Objective 2: Build a healthy and active community

implement Councils Community Vision and Councll Pian and support the redeveiopeent of ingividual town plans
Employment of a Youth Olficer 1o delver VicHeslth Local Govemenend Parnarship priorties
Radevelop and implement the Volirdesr Action Plan and COVID Recovery Plan
Suppoit bisinesses 1o cperate in a COVIDsafe manner, through dedicated suppor from stalf
Em&mmwﬂh&mhﬂnn&auﬁo

uppont the ity i1 the i ntation of projects fundad through the Bounce Back Buloke funding

Strategic Objective 3: Our economy

Work with regional and focal stakehokiers to review ant promole housing oppontunities throughout the municipality
Davelop a new Economic Development Strategy and Towism Strategy

implement key projocts from the Sio Art Activation fund, including Buloke Street Festival and Night Activation projects
Deliver key upgrades to the Wycheproof Saleyards

Strategic Objective 4: Our Council and Community Leadorship

Commence the implementstion of the Business Transformation Strategy

Continye the implementation of the Local Government Act 2020, inchuding the developiment of a Workfarce Plan
Review and re-ostablish Councli's Procurement Policy and Recryitment Palicy

Develop a Gender Equality Action Plan

investigate furthec shared service with other Councifs and goveenance biodies,

Cantirue to actively review a ten year financial plan 10 imgrove the long term Enancial management of the orgamisation.

2) The Rate Rise
a,  The average general rates will fise by 1.5% for 2021/22 in Bne with the Fair Go Rates System (FGRS). The
rate cap is determined by the Minsster for Local Government in Decesnber each year under the FGRS, Rates
contnbute 1o he delivery of works and community services 1o the Bulcke Shire. Councll implements the
. wwamamy.wmmwmmmummmmm.
i Tolund ongoing service debvery
ii.  To allow Councl fo remain financially sustanable
i, To cope with cost shifing rom the state government
As per the General Vialuations dated 1 Jaruary 2021
The waste service charge incorporating kerbiside collection and recycling i at il cost recovery, The Fees
and Charges schedule has been incorporated into this document. Any cost incredses are reflective of
COmespondence cost nareises intured in delivering the service anid, In some instances, are rofecive of
mandated tees and charges required under Federal and State Legislason.

ao
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3) Budget influences

External Influences

+  Continuation of the Fair Go Rales System’ (rate capping) has placed pressure on long term financial plans of Council,
Councd's Lang Term Financial Plan sets out Turther information on how Council plans 1o manage s expenditure in ling
with gazetied rate caps

*  Setting of Statutory Fees such as Town Plarming Fees by the Viciorlan Stale Govemmaent af levels which do not cover
the cost of providing these sevices which Couricil is legislatively required to provide

o Funds ived by local g s for the provision of services such as Home and Commundy Care and School
Ceossing Supervision are nat mcreasing in ine with actual service costs 1o provide this sorvice

¢ The Fire Services Property Levy will continue 10 be coliected by Councd on behall of the Stale Government with the
introduction of the Fire Services Property Levy Act 2012

*  Known financial impacts of COVID-18 and npacts of legislative changes, imchuding meeting the reguiresnents of the:
new Local Governvment Act.

Internal Influonces

«  Councdt has implomented new finincial management software and with those changes, alered the way that each
seados level is budgated for. Many of the centralived overheads have now Deen allocated drectly to service provisi
10 more accuralely ascorian the cost of the service. This change is in ine with recommendabions from auditors.

s Councd has been reviewing all senvices in an effort 1o dentily and implement efficiencies and reduce expenditure. The
results these il imie to be parated into Council's Long Term Financial Planning document.

¢«  Councl repard its STmillicn loan in the 2018/20 financial year. Tivs now provides the opportunify 10 increase assat
renewal axpenditure into the futura, The 2021122 Armusl Budge! will be achieved without resorting 10 loan borrowing
1o fund any cperatng or capital programs.

Anthony Judd
Chief Executive Cfficer
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1. Link to the Integrated Planning and Reporting Framework

This section descnbes how the Budget kinks to the achievement of the Community Vision and Council Plan within an overall
integrated planning and reporting framework, This frarn rk guides the Councll in entifying community needs and
aspitations over the long term (Commundy Vision and Fnancial Plan), medium term {Council Plan, Worklorce Plan, and
Revenue and Rating Plan) and short term ( Budget) and then holding tse¥f accountable (Annual Report).

1.1 Legisiative planning and actountability framework

The Budgel is a rolling four-year plan that outlines the financial and non-financisi resources that Council requires o achieve
the strategic objectives described in the Council Plan. The diagram below depicts the integrated planning and reporting
framework that applies to local government in Victora. Al each stage of the integrated planning and reporting framewark there
are opportunities for community and stakeholder input. This is important to ensure transparency and accountabilty to both
residents and ratepayers.

Source: Depantment of Jobs, Precincts and Regions

The teming of each component of the integrated planning and reporting framework is critical 1o the successful achievement of
the planned oulcomes,

11.2 Key planning considerations
Service level planning

Although counciis have a lagal obigation to provide some services— such 33 animal managament, local roads, food safely
and statutory planning—maost councll services are not lagally mandated, mcluding some services closely associated with
councils, such a8 librares, buikding permits and sporting facilities. Further, over tima, the needs and expectations of
communities can change. Therefore councits need 1o have robust processes for service pianning and review to ensure all
services continue 1o provide value for money and are in line with community expectations. In daing so, councils should
engage with communities to determine how 1o prioritise resources and balance service provision against other responsibilibes
such as asset mainfenance and capital works.

Commundy consultation needs to be in line with a councils adopted Community Engagemant Policy and Public Transparency
Policy.
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1.2 Qur purpose

Our Vision
Butoke: Buid a better Bidoke

Our values

Council addresses its key values through
* Good communication

» Transparancy in decision making

+ Accountability for actions

» Working collabaratively with pariners

« Taking responsindity

* Boing responsive and timely

objec

1.3 Strate

Strategic Objective Description
1. Our Buik and Natural 1.1 Work Towards Sustamabiiity
Envwronment 1.2 Sustable Housing Options

1.3 An Attractive and Well Maintained Buloke
1.4 A Safe and Active Bulcke

2. OQur Commuraty Wellbemg 2.1 Partnerships to Outcomes
2.2 Inclusivaness Plan in Action
2.3 Well Supported Community
2.4 Increased Community Wellbeing

3. Our Economy 3.1 Tourism
3.2 Altraction and Promation of Local Business
3.3 Employment Opportunities
3.4 Digitat Connections

4. Qur Council and Community 4.1 Active Leaders and Volunteers

Leadership 4.2 Community Engagement
4.3 Continuous Service improvement for Efficient and Flexibie Services
4.4 A Well Govemed and Healthy Organisation
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2. Services and service performance indicators

This seclion provides @ descnpbion of the services and initiatives 10 be funded in the Budget for the 2021/22 year and how
these wilt contribute to achieving the stralegic abjectives outiimed in the Council Plan. It also describes several inibativas and
sorvice performance outcome indicators for key areas of Council's operations. Countil is required by legisiation to identify
maor indistives, intiatives and service performance outcome indicators in the Budget and report against tham in their Annual
Regport 1o support transparency and accountabifity. The relationship between these accountability raquiraments in the Council
Plan, the Budget and the Annual Repor is shown below

Serntegit ahjective Berviied InBTutard |Sutiome)

> RapatT of

Nt attens ARy iatives

Stroteicingicatony

= A

Straagrbiestive Servizey laicaton (duttome Sarnce ingicaron
> Najor mvtigUves
Sureragic ingicatony Initiatives Iakar iNGanves o -
’ THASNMG E™ATT (heCuisT
Stretegis objactive Servtes inglcarsrt (mmatome
Srestegicingiceton tiatves fetinjar smitintives Forformanze
JEateeant
Serates INTCatare ontatem
= caxciuic RN LEome) Sernce indScror {outtone)
| O
(hitatives Wajor Inftiatives Fimancual ingicators

Susteingie capality MRty

Source: Department of Jobs, Precingts and Regions

2.1 Our Buill and Natursl Environment

To achiave our objective of respanding to and enhancing our built and natural environment, we will continue to plan, deliver
and improve high qualty, cost effective, accessible and responsive services, The services, indiatives, major initiatives and
service performance indicators for each busingss area are descrbed befow

Services

2019/20 202042

Actual Forecs Budget

Service area Description of services provided

$°000 $'000 $'000

Property This service is & provide property maintenance
Mamtenance sarvices 1o a range of Counclis bullding-based
assets, focusing on the upkeep and renewal of nc 88 286 490
buildings. This area maintaing in excess of 250 .
buildings across the Shire and aims to keep them Exp 2018 2732 2483
maintained in a it for purpose state Surplus / (deficit) {1,930} {(2,704) {2.423)
Road Services Provide road maintenance for the 1100xm of Sealed,
650km of Gravel and 3, 800km of Eanth roads across in¢ 23685 4,043 2708
the Shire. The income relates to Local Roads Exp 9527 10,869 10 541

Funding received from Victoria Grants Commission

2031 N J : £ Surphus / (deficl) {7132 {6,826) {7.835)
Swimming Pools  Manages and operales seven seasonal swimming g . - -

pools, from the third week in Novembar to the third Exp 502 888 837
week in March, annualy. - - - -
Surplus / (deficlt) 1602) (688) (837)
Asseats and Provide for the management, design and
Project administration of Counci's assets and infrastructure
Management services, including planning and managament of the
capital works program, Provides recreational
facilities and suppodt to community run recreation ine 1876 2973 882
resarves in ton townships across the Shire, as wall
#5 QOVernance support 1o community recreation Exp 1.308 4,245 1,907
clubs and commitiees Surplus / (deficit) 567  (1.273) {1.225)
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2.1 Our Built and Natural Environment {Cont.)

Parks and Urban _ Manages and coccdinates Council s Parks and toc . - .
Gardens and Urban Infrastructure providing routine,

praventative and or-going maintenance and Exp 3308 2370 24
improvements. Surpius / (deficit)  {2.325)  (2370)  (2,487)
Environmental Manages Councé's Envirenmental Comghance ané  jne 115 110 144
Planning Sustainabiity Programs and Services Exp 228 267 217
Surpius / (deficil) (113} {157} (133)
Lakes Costs associated with support for recreational Lakes
inchuding Tehum, Green, Woorconook, Watchem, 1 12 - -
and Folletti Lakes now allocated under Parks and  Exp 48 55 26
Urban. ) .
o Surpius / (defict)____ (36) ___ (55) 26)
Wasie and Responsible for the mantenance and improvement
Environment of Councll's tandfills and transfer stations as well as
providing s Resiientisl Kerbside Gurbage and in¢ 1607 1844 1,558
Recycling service in all towns within the Shire, Exp 1408 1,625 1,253
Surplus / {deficit) 188 18 305
Municipal Deveiops, coordinates and debivers Council's nc 60 68 88
Emergency Municipal Emergency Management Plan. Exp 13 34 &2
Managemeant
Surplus / (defict) 27 34 §
Major Initiatives

1. Continue 1o review and re-sdopt a ten year capital works plan

2. Ongoing review of waste and recycling management and procurement for a new kerbside waste and recyciing bin collection
3. Implementation of key infrastructure projects including Streetscape improvements, Chariton and Donald riverfront projects
and the mplementstion of the Playspace Masterpian

4. Strategic planning and project readingss at key sites, including the development of the Birchip Community Lesure Centre
masterplan and design work on future road upgrades.

5. Prowide support to Lake Committess for the contribution of water payments for lake top-ups.
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2.2 Our Community Wellbeing

To achieve cur objective of builling a healthy and active community, we will continue 1o plan, delver and improve bigh quality,
cost effective. accessible and responsive services. The services, inffiatives, major infiatves and service performance
indicators for each business area are descnbed belfow.

Services

2019/20 2020:2 2021/22

Service area Description of services provided Actual Forecast Budget

$°000 $'000 $'000

Library Services  Provides library sefvices 1o all ten townships within
the Buloke Shire. Council delivers the service

internally resulting in increased opening hours and 3 ¢ 12 118 "3
range of vakie-added programs such as toddler Exp 232 178 199
reading programs Surplus/ {deficit) {110) (59) {86)
Public Health and Promotes the heath and well-being of the Shire's
Wellbeing local communities through a range of Public Haaith .
Programs inckuding immunisations, feod surveilfance e 5% 5 “®
and regisiration of food premises, accommodation  EXP 186 183 162
standards and wasie water management. Surplus/ {deficit) {130) (133) (113)
Independence Provides a range of maintenance and support
Support sesvicas to assist frall oider paople and youngear

people with a disability ta live independenty at
home. Council's service provides domestic
assistance, persansl care, respite care. home
mantanance, meals services, volunteer coordination

1 o
and five senior citizens centres, Thess serwces are e 903 074 1.086

integral 1o akiowing many peaple stay living in thesr _EXP B85 3.153 1,541
own hameas. Sumpiss/ {deficit) 18 {79} {75)
Early Years This service delivers both umversal and enhanced
maternal and child health pregrams. It advocates for e 169 368 371
tﬁ“:enb:::;’g :l chi!.':n and m::rl famibies through o " 431 445 498
{ n L] gl "
FRARIIG Snd dgenay agee Suplus/ {deficl) __1262) on 1125)
Commundy This servica ancompasses the full specinim of
Support community development. it devalops links between

and within the communiies in the Shire, working
with [ocal community groups 1o access community
projects recognised as community priorities. It

provides support and co-ordination to a range of inc 288 2 137
sectars and strengthens partnerships 1o work toward Exp 344 429 384
befter outcomes for young pecple. ) Surpius/ (deficit) {56) (189) {247}
Community Provides donations. alliccations and suppodt 0 nc - - .
Grants groups in the community that contribute 10 services Exp 80 82 100
that connect and invcive the local area Surplus/ (defic) (80) (82) (100)

Major Initiatives

1. implament Council's Community Vision and Council Plan and support the redevelopment of individual town plans
2. Employment of a Youth Officer ta deliver VicHaakh Local Govermnment Partnarship priorities

3. Review and implemen! the COVID Recovery Plan and Volunteer Action Plan

4. Support businesses to operate in @ COVIDsafe manner, through dedicated support from staff

$. Establish new sary leaming facility in Sea Lake

6. Support the community in the implementation of projects funded through the Bounce Back Buloke funding
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2.3 Cur Economy

To achieve our objective of diversifying and enhancing our iocal economy, we will continue 1o actively seek economic
opporfunities. The services, intiatves, major initiatives and servica performance indicators for each business area are
described below

Services

2019/20

2020021
Forecast
$'000

2021/22
Budget
$'000

Service area Actual

$°000

Description of services provided

Development Provides statutory planaing, building services and

Wednesday, 16 June 2021

Services compliance and local laws services. This department ¢ 430 358 a8
also includes areas such as fue hazards, dog and Exp BiG B37 880
cat régistration and control and stock control Surpius/ (deficl) (388) (479) (582)
Economic Facilitates economic devedopment throughout the
Development and Shire and provides support to local businesses and fre 48 -
Tourism assigts in the promotion of tourism. Exp 161 94 208
Swrplus/ (defic) (113) (94} {209}
(Sate'_:a’ds Provides for the management and administration of - "
the Council's Saleyasds Pracinct at Wycheproof for e 96 112 80
external Livestock Agents 10 self Livestock Exp 75 68 82
Surplus/ {defici) 21 4d {2}
Major Initiatives
1. Work with regional and local stakeholders to review and promaote housng cpportunities throughout the municipaity

2. Develop a new Economic Development Strategy and Tourism Strategy
Implement key projects from the Silo Art Activation fund, mncluding Buloke Street Fostival and Night Activation projects
4. Delwver key upgrades to the Wycheproof Saleyards
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2.4 Our CouncHl and Community Leadership

To achieve our objective of supparting Councillors, sialf, volunteers and the community to make informed and transparent
decisions we will develop engagemen! frameworks and continuously review the way in which we communicale. To achieve our
objective of deliverning ouwr service in a financally viable way. we will continue o review our sarvices to provide high quality
cost effective, and responsive services. The services, Initiat magos injt and servica performance ingicators for each
bBusiness ares are described below

Services

2020¢21 2021/22

Service area Description of services provided Actual Forecast Budget

$'000 §$'000 $'000

Governance and  Provides for Councillors, and Executive Support and

Exacutive assockated which provides the overall Govemance e 39 a3 B
Management Services 1o the Council. Exp 034 1,066 85
Surplus/ {deficl) 1885)  (1.013) {986}
infarmation Provides the organsation with Records Management jne 60
Managerment Services and Information Services. Exp 1473 §.143 1.238
Surplus/ (deficl)  {1AT3)  {1.083) {1.238)
Customer Provides for both internal and external customers by ing 13 . .
Seraces resolving the majority of customer enquiries, Exp 167 174 178
requests and payments af the first point of contact. Surpius/ (deficiy) 168 76 078
Human Provides the organsstion with recruitment, traming,  ing 13 i8 -
Resources orgamsational development and occupational health o, 5 135 390 569
Iy Suplus/ (deficl)  (322)  (381) (559)
Medc and Provides information 1o the community on Council's  ine - - -
Communications services, activities and events through print and Exp 183 196 228
onine mess Suplus/ (defic) ___ (183) __ (196) (229)
Finance Encompasses all areas of financial reporting, rates,
deblors and creditors for Councll. Expenses
extamal audt fees, property valuation fees and other °° 4,644 4,166 4350
miscellanecus corparate expenses, Revenue refers Exp 1,156 8a3 8GO
to Federal Assistance Gramt Surplus/ {daficit) 3488 3283 3430
Corporate Provides organisational policy, systems and support
Sarvices in the areas of contmucuis Improvement, corporate
planning. nsk management, governance, insurance
petformance measurement and reporting. Expenses | P
include general corporate expenses such as postage - & 18 18
and stationary, staff amenities and pool cars. Exp 508 570 887
Surpiug/ (deficlj (502) (452) {569)

Major Initiatives
1. Commence the implomeriation of the Business Transformation Strategy

2. Conlinue the implamentation of the Local Government Act 2020, including the develspment of a Warkforce Plan
3. Review and re-establish Council's Procurement Policy and Recrutment Policy
4. Develop a Gender Equality Action Plan

5. Investigate further shared service with other Councils and governance bodies.
6. Continue to actively roview a ten year financial plan to improve the long term financial management of the organisation.
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Service Performance Outcome Indicators

Service Indicator Performance Measure Computation

Govemance Salisfaction Satisfaction with Council Community satisfaction

dacisions. (Community rating out of 100 with
satisfaction rat:ng out of 100 the pedormance of
with how Council hay Councd in making
perfarmed in making decisions in the
decmsions in the interest of  interest of the
the community) COMMunity

Statutory plsnning Decision making Council planning decisions  [Number of VCAT
upheld at VCAT dacisions that did not
(Percentage of glanning et aside Council's
apphcation decisions decision in refation to &

subject to review by VCAT  planning application /

and that were not set aside} Number of VCAT
decisions in refalion to
planning apphications)
100

Roads Satisfacuon Satisfaction with sealed Community satisfaction
local roads. (Community rating out of 100 with
sutisfaction rating out of 100 how Council has

with how Council has perfarmed on the
performed on the condition  condition of sealed
of sealed jocal roads) local roads

Libranes Participation Active libraty borrowers. [The sum of the
(Percantage of the number of active ibrary
popidation that are active borrowers in the last 3
library borrowers) financial years / The

sum of the population
in the fas! 3 financial
years] x100

Waste collection  Waste diversion Kerbside collection waste  [Weight of recyclables
diverted from fandfal and green arganics
(Percentage of gasbage coliected from kecbside
recyciables and green bins / Weight of
organics coliected from garbage. recyciables
kestiside bing that is and green arganics
diverted from landfill) colected from ketbside

bins] x100
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Aquatic Facilities Utilisation Utilisation of aguatic Number of visits to
facilities. (Number of visits  aquatic facilities /
to aguaiic facilibes per head Population
of poputation)
Arimal Heaith and safety Animal management Number of successful
Management prosecutions. (Percei animal management
of arimal manag ot pr itions / Tetal
prasecutions which are number of animal
succassiul) management
prosecitions
Food safety Health and safety Critical and major non- [Number of critcal non-
compliance outcome compliance sutcome
notifications. (Percentage  notifications and major
of entical and magor non- non-compliance
compliance outcome outcome notifications
notifications that are about a food premises
followed up by Council) followed up / Number
of critical non-
compliance outcome
notifications and major
non-comphance
outcome notifications
about food premises]
x100
Maternal and Participation Participation = the MCH [Number of children
Child Health service. {Percentage of whio attend the MCH
children ensolled who gservice at loast once
participate in the MCH (in the financial year) /
service) Number of children
enroliod in the MCH
sarvice] X100
Participation in the MCH [Number of Abariginal
service by Aboriginal childran who attend the
childran. (Percentage of MCH service at least
Abonginal chitdren enrolled  onca (in thefinancial
who participate in the MCH  year) / Number of
service) Aboriginat chiidren

enrolied in the MCH
service] x100
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Surplus/ Expendit

Revenue
(Deficit) ure Y

$'000 $'000

Qur But ang Natural Environment 14 436

Qur Community Wellbeing (T4E) 2 4

Qur Economy (773) 17

Our Councd ar nmunty Leadership 4 837
- et t—— Y

Expenses added in!
Depreciation

Finance cosis

Others .
Surplfus/{Deficit) before funding sources {16.283)
Eunding sources added in;

Rates and charges revanye 12,835
Cap#al Grants 14.264

Total funding sources
Operating surplusi{deficit) for the year
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3. Financial Statements

This section presents information in regard to the Financial Statements and Statement of Human Resources. The budget information for
the year 2021/22 has boen supplementsd with projections to 2024:26
This section inciudes the following financial statements prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act 2020 and the Local

Gavernment (Plarming and Reporting) Regidations 2020

Comprehensive Income Statement
Balance Sheet

Statement of Changes in Equity
Statement of Cash Flows
Statarment of Capital Works
Staternernt of Human Resources

Comprehensive Income Statement

For the four years ending 30 June 2025

Income
Rates and charges

Statutory fees and fines
User fees

Grants - Operating

Grants - Capital
Connbulions - monetary
Contributions - non-monetary

Net ganiiloss) on disposal of property

infrastructure. plant and equipment
Other income
Total income

Expenses

Employee costs

Materials and services
Depreciation

Amortisation - imangible assats
Amontisation - fight of use assets
Bad and coubiful debts
Borrowing costs

Finance Costs - leases

Other expenses

Total expenses

Surplus/(deficit) tor the year

Other comprehensive income
Net asset revaluation increment
Hdecrement)

Total comprehensive result

NOTES

411
412
413
4,14
414
415
415

4186

417
418
418
4110
411

4.1.12

Forecast

Actual

Page 15

Projections

2023724
$'000

2024/25
$'000

14,532 14,807 15.068
252 258 285
798 818 839

9303 9,537 8778
3,951 2,242 2497
276 276 278
162 197 202
20,305 28,136 28,042
11,198 11,422 11,650
7,229 74%0 7.595
B133 8458 8.775
354 364 304
33 33 a3

-3 BS2 873
27317 28,608 29,321
1,488 (473) (379)
1,488 (473) (279)
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Balance Sheet
For the four years ending 30 June 2025

Forecast
Budget Projections
Actual

2020121 2021122 202212 2023/24 2024125

NOTES $'000 $°000 $'000 $'000
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 12,328 12.004 11,081
Trade and other receivables 2,589 2486 2558
Other financial assels - - -
inventacies 127 127 727
Non-current assets classified as heic for .
sale
Other assets 7 7 7
Total current assets 421 15,051 14,624 13.773
Non-current assets
Trade and other receivables . - -
Other fmancial assets - - -
Property, infrastructure, plant & equipment 285 359 205 342 295 834
Right-ot-use assets a4 747 353 728
Investment property - - -
intangible assets - . -
Total non-current assets 421 296116 285 695 296,562
Total assets 311,168 310,319 310,338
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payasbles 297 304 312
Trust funds and deposits 124 121 121
Provisions 2355 2357 2.358
Interest-beanng liabiities 423 .
Lease labilities 424 345 345 345
Total current liabilities 422 3,118 3,126 3138
Non-current liabitities
Provisions 1312 $.323 1.333
Inferest-bearing liabilities 423 . - -
Lease liabilities 424 524 130 505
Total non-current Habilities 422 1.836 1453 1838
Total Nabilities 4955 4 579 4974
Net assots 306,213 305,740 305,361
Equity
Accumulated surplus 133,127 132.654 132275
Reserves 173,086 173,086 173,088
Total equity 308,213 305.740 305,361
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the four years ending 30 June 2025

Accumulated

Surplus

NOTES $'000 $
2021 Forecast Actual

Balance at beginning of the financial year 285232 112,146 173,085 -
impact of adeption of new accounting standards - - - -
Adjusied opening balance 285,232 112,146 173.086

Surplus/{deficit) for the year 8143 8.143 - -

Net asset ravaluation increment/{decrement) - . . -
Transfess to other reserves - - -

Transfers from other reserves N [§))] - -
Balance at end of the financial year 29).574 120,288 173,088 -

2023

Balance at beginning of the financial year 04725 131638 173.086 “
Surplusiideficd) for the yoar 1,488 1,488 .

Net asset revaliation

increment/idecrement) - . - .

Transfers 1o other reserves - - -
Transfers from other reserves -

Balarice at end of the financial year 306,213 133,127 173,086 -
2024

Balance at beginning of the financial year 306,213 133127 173,088 -
Surplus/(deficit) for the year (473} 14731 -

Net asset revaluation

increment/{decremant) -

Transfers 1o other ressrves
Transfers from other reserves - - - -

Balance at end of the financial year 305.740 132,654 173.066 -
2025

Balance at beginning of the financisl year 306,740 132,654 173,088 -
Surplus/(defict) tor the year (379} {379) - -

Net asset revaluation

ncrement/(decrement) - - - -
Transfers to other reserves - - - -
Transfors from other reserves - - - -
Balance at end of the financial year 305,361 132,276 173,086 .
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the four years ending 30 June 2025

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Rates and charges

Statutory fees and fines

User fees

Grants - operating

Grants - capitad

Contnibutions - maonetary

Other recsipts

Net GST refund / payment

Employee costs

Materials and setvices

Short-term, low value and variable lease payments
Trust funds and deposits repaid

Other payments

Net cash provided by/{used in) 441
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and
squipment

Procesads from sale of property, infrastructure, plant
and equipment

Payments for mvestments

Proceeds from investments

Loan and advances made

Payments of loans and advances

Net cash provided by/ (used in) 442
investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Finance costs

Proceeds from borrowings

Repaymant of barrowings

Imerest paid - lease habilty

Repayment of lease liabdities

Net cash provided by/(used in) 443
financing activities

Net increase/{decrease) in cash & cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
financial year

Actual

Forecast

Projections

2020/21 2022123 2023/24 2024125
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Inflows Inflows infiows infiows
{Quifiows) {Quthows) {Outfiows ) {Outflows)
14,282 13,782 14,788 15,062
239 258 264
757 817 837
B324 8520 9,753
3,748 2.383 2475
276 276 28
168 197 201
1,789 - .
(11,428; (11,188) (11.422) {11.850)
(7.951) {7.682) (7.404) (7587}
{819) (840) (861)
9,884 8573 8771
(20,998) (8.263) (8471) (8.267)
{9.9935) {8,263) {8.471) (8.267)
33 (33) £33}
{345) (304) (304)
{378} (427) (427)
1,242 (325) (623)
11,022 12,264 11,840
12,264 11.940 11,017
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Statement of Capital Works

For the four years ending 30 June 2025

Property

Land

Land improvements
Total land

Buildings

Building improvements
Lessehold improvements
Total buildings

Total propoerty

Plant and aquipment

Plant, machinery and equipment
Fixtures, fittings and furntture
Computers and felecommunications
Library books

Total plant and equipment

Infrastructure

Roads

Bridges

Footpaths and cycleways

Drainage

Recreational, leisure and community
facilitios

Waste management

Parks. open space and streetscapes
Aerodromes

Off street car parks

Other infrastructure

Total infrastructure

Total capital works expenditure

Represented by:

New dsset axpenditure

Asset renewal expendture

Assat expansion expendiure
Asset upgrade expenditure

Total capital works expenditure

Funding sources represented by:
Grants

Contributions

Council cash

Borrowings

Total capital works expenditure

Forecast

Actual

Projections

2020/ 2022/23 202324 2024/25
NOTES $°000 $°000 $'000 §$'000

1,025 1,081 1077
&8 70 403
1,083 f524 1,480
1,083 1121 1.480
883 700 Al
63 88 65
178 183 188
26 27 28
951 875 999
5142 5271 5436
284 Fel) 208
263 268 276
420 A3% 862
53 54 55
58 &0 81
6,218 8.376 8,788
6,218 8,375 B6.788
451 8,263 8471 9,267
7,789 7,964 8528
494 506 740
451 8,263 8471 9.267
2187 2242 2487
8,076 8,228 8770
451 8 263 8,471 9,267
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Statement of Human Resources

For the four years ending 30 June 2025

Forecast

Budget Projections

Actual

2020/21 202122 2022123 202324 202425

$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $'000

Staff expenditure

Employee costs - operating {11,188 {11.422) {11,650)

Employee costs - capdal

Total staff expenditure (11,188) {11,422 {11,650}
FTE FTE FTE

Staft numbers

Employees 133.0 115.0 1150

Total staff numbers 133.0 1150 115.0

A summary of human résources expenditure categonsed according 10 the organisational structure of Counc 15 inciuded below
Comprises
Budget Pormanent
Department Casual Temporary
2021122 Full Time Part timo
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $'000

Commundty Services

Corporate Services 524 . -
Works and Technical Services 933 413

Oftice of CEQ 247 - 15
Total permanent stafl axpenditure 2640 558 1

Other employee related expenditure
Capaslised labour cosis
Total expenditure

A summary of the number of full ime eguivalent (FTE] Council staff in relation to the above expendiure i8 includad telow
Comprises

Permanent
Department Budget ‘

Casual Temporary

2021722 Full Time Part timeo

Commundy Services 8 1" 2 -
Comperate Services 12 (]

Waorks and Technical Services 8 65 12 T 3
Office of CEO ; 2 3 - -
Total permanent staff FTE ¢ 133 89 a2 o 3
Capaalised iabour cosls ‘

Total staff
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4. Notes to the financial statements

This section presents detaded information on material components of the financial statements. Council needs 10 assess
which components are material. congidesing the doilar amourits and nature of these components

Rates and charges are requead by the Act and the Regidations to be disciosed in Council’s budget

As per the Local Government Act 2020, Council is requied fo have 3 Revenue and Rating Plan which is @ four year plan
for how Council will generale income o dediver the Councd Plan, program and services and capdal works commitments
over 3 four-year percd

In devetoping the Budget, rales and charges were identified as an imponand source of revenue. Planning for iulure rate
ncreases has therefore been an mpartant camponernt of the financal planning process. The Fair Go Rates System
(FGRS) sets out the maximum amount councils may increase rates in a year, For 2021/22 the FORS cap has been sat at
1.5%. The cap appées o both general rates and municipal charges and is calcidated on the basés of coundl's average rales
and Charges

The level of reguired rales and charges has been considered in this context, with reference 10 Counall's other sowrces of
nicome and the planned expendiioe on survices and woarks (o be undertaken for the comemumt

To achieve these abjectives while mainisning sanvice levels and 2 strong capial expenditure program, the average general

rate and the municpal charge will increase by 1.5% in line with the rate cap

This will raise total rates and chasges for 2021722 to $14. 250,424

4.1.1(a) The reconciliation of the folal rates and charges to the Comgrehensive Income Statement is as
foliows

20201 2011122
Forecast Budget Change

Actual
$°000 $'000 §$'000

Service rates and charges® 1.48%

Supplementary rates snd rate adjustments 7 -100.00%
Waste management charge 1 0.07%
Interest on rales and charges 15 23.08%
Revenue in heu of rates 0.00%
Total rates and charges 205 1.47%

“Thess items are subject to the rate cag established under the FGRS

4.1.1(0) The rate in the dollar 1o be levied as general rales under seclion 158 of the Act for each type or
dlass of land compared with the previcus financial year
2020121 2021722

Type or class of land ) Change

conts/$CIV* conts/SCIV*
General rate for rateable residential properties 0.76%0 Ta%¢ -3.27%
General rate for rateable commercial and industnal 0.7650 g
propertos
General rate for rateable farming properties 0.6120 §1; -15.36%

~3.27%

Page 21



Buloke Shire Council Special Meeting Agenda
3.1.2 Adoption of Annual Budget 2021 - 2022 Financial Year
Attachment 1  Buloke Shire Council Annual Budget 2021 - 2022 Financial Year

Wednesday, 16 June 2021

4, Notes to the financial statements

4.1.1{¢) The estimalesd tolal amount 10 be rised by general rates in redabion 10 ach type or ciass of land, and the estimited

ol amound §

o be faised by general rates, comparad with the prévious financial year

2020/ 202172
Type or class of land Budget
$'000
Resdential 2
Commercial and indusiral

Farming

Total amount to bo raised by genoral rates

4.1.1(d) The numBer of assessments in redation 1o each lype or dass of land, and the lolal numbet of assessments
compared with the previous inancal year

2020121 2021122 Change
Type or class of land Budget Budgot
Number Number Number

Residental

Commercial and Indusinial 1 0.22%
Faming 22 0.76%
Total number of assossmonts 29 0.46%

4.7.1{e) The basis of valualion o be used is the Capital improved Value (CIV)

4.1.1{1) The estmated total vakie of pach type or class of land, and the estimaled total value of land, compared with the

previous fnancis! year

2020121 021122 Change
Type or class of land Budget Budgot
§$°000

Resdential 18,302

Commercial and Indusiral 508 -0.62%
Farming 281 882 20.43%
Total vaiue of land 299,768 16.70%

4.1.1{g) The munrscipal charge under Section 158 of the Act compared with the previous fnancial year

Por Ratoable Per Rateable
Property Property Change

Type of Charge
2020/21 2021122

$

Cipal

1) The estimated total amount 10 be raised by municipsl charges compared with the previcus financial year

Type of Charge

Municipal
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4. Notes to the financial statements
4.1.1{1) The rate of unit amont (0 be levied for each type of service rafe or charge under Seclion 162 of the Act compared
with the previous financisl yesr

Por Rateable Por Rateable
Proporty Proporty Change

Type of Charge
2020021 202122

0.00%
0.00%

Kerbside garbage and recyckng cofechon
Total

#led {otaf amount 1o

4.9.15) The estmated lotal amount 1o be rased by each type of service rafe or charge. and the
be raised by seérvce rates and charges, compared with the pravious Snancial year

Type of Charge

12,408

12 405 0.85%

Kerbside garbage and recycling colection
Total

2020/21
Actual Budoet
Forecast ge

190,915 1.64%

General rates

Municipal charge 626 0.08%
Kerbside collecthion and recycling 1678 0.11%
Supplementary rates 5850 0.00%
Electricily generation charge in ey of rales 0.00%

187570 1.34%

Total Rates and charges

4.1.1{ Falr Go Rates System Complance

oria City Councll is reguired to comply with the State Governnent’s Fair Go Rates System (FGRS), The table below

Todal Rates

Number of rateable properties

Base Average Rate

Maxmum Rate Increase ($ot by the State Govemment)
Capped Average Rate

Maxmom General Rates and Municipal Charpes Revenue
Budgeted General Rates and Muncipal Charges Revenue
Budgeted Supplormentary Rates

Budgeted Total Rales and Municipal Chatges Revenue
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4. Notes to the financial statements
4.1.1(m) Any signficant changes thal may affect the estimated amounts (0 be raised by rates and charges

There are no known significant changes which may affect the estimated amoants fo be ralsed by rates and charges.
However, the tolal amount to be raised by rates and charges may be affected by

The making of supplermantary valuations

The vasation of returnes levels of value {e.g. valuation appeals)

Changes of use of land such that rateable land becomes nonsateable land and vice versa
Changes of use of land such that residentiai land becomes busmess land and vice versa

- " = =

4,1.1{n) Differontial rates

Rates to be levied:

The rate and amount of rates payable in refation to land in each category of diffarential ase:

. A general rate of 0.0073998% (0.73999 cents in the dollar of CIV) for all rateable residential properties; and
. A general rate of 0.0073866% (0.73998 cants in the dollar of CIV) for ait rateable commercial and industrial
propesties.

. A general rate of 0.0051798% (0.51799 cents in the doliar of CIV) for all cateabie famming propetties.

Each differential rale will be determined by multiplying the Capdal improved Value (CIV) of each raleable land (categorised
by the charsctenslics described below) by the relevant percentages indicated above.

Council considers that each differential rate will contribate 1o the equitatile and efficient carrying out of Council functions.
Detais of the objectives of sach afferential rate, the types of classes of land, which are subject 10 each differential rate and
the uses of each dferantial rate. are set out below.

Commercist and indusiral lang:

Commercisl and indusirial land is any tand, which is:
. Oecupied for the princips! purpose of camrying out the manutaciure or production of, or fade in, goods of services: of

. Unoccupied but zoned commercial of industrial under the Buloke Shire Councll Planning Scheme,

The abjective of this differential rate is 1o ensure that all rateatde land makes an equitable financial contrution to the cost
of carrying out the functions of Council, including (but nat limited to) the:

. Construction and mamntenance of infrastruciure assels;
. Development and provision of health and community services; and
. Provision of general suppon sesvices.

The types and classes of rateable land within Hhus differential rate are those having the relevant charactenstics descrbed
abaove.

The money raised by the differential rate will be applied to the itlems of expenditure described in the Budget by Councl,
The leved of the rate for land i this category is considered to provide for an appropriate contribuson to Counclls budgeted
expendilure, having regard 1o the ch ishes of the land.

The geographic location of the land within this ditferential rate s wherever located within the mumicipal district. without
reference (o ward baundaries.

The use of the land within this diffierential rate, in the cass of improved land, is any use of land,

The charsclenstics of plaming scheme zoning are applicable to the determination of vacant land which will be subject to
the rate applicable to commercial and industrial land. The vacant land affected by this rale is that which is zoned
commercial andior industrial under the Buloke Shire Council Planning Scheme. The classiication of land wiich is
mproved will ba determined by the occupation of that land and have reference to the planning scheme 2oning.

The types of bulidings on the land within Bis efferential rate are all buddings which are now constructed on the land or
whith are constructed prioe 1o the expiry of the 2021/22 financial year.
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4. Notes to the financial statements
Resdential fand:

Residertial land is any fand which is:
. Qocupied for the principsl purpose of physically accommaodating persans; of
. Unoccupied but zoned residential under the Buloke Shire Planning Schema and which is not commercal tand.

The objective of this differential rate is 10 ensure that all rateable land makeos an squitable fmancial contrution 1o the cost
of cacrying out the functions of Council, including (but not limited to) the:

. Construction and maintenance of infrastructure assels;

- Development and provision of hesith and commurnity services, and

- Provision of genersl suppon services.

The types and classes of rateable land within this differential rate are those having the relevant charactenstics descnibed
above.

The money 1aised by the differendial rate will be spphed (o the lems of expenditee desaibed in the Bixiget by Counal.
The leved of the rate for land in this citegary is considered 1o provide for an appropriate contribution to Coundl's budgeted
expendiure, hiving regind 10 the charscteristics of the land,

The geogfaghic location of the land within this differential rate is wharever iocated within the municipal distnict, without
reference to ward boundaries.

The use of the land within this diffecontial rate, in the case of improved kand, i any use of land.

The characteristics ¢f planning scheme zoning are applicable to the determination of vacant land which will be subject to
the rate applicable to rosidensial fand, The vacant land affected by thes rale s that which is 200ed fesidential under the
Buloke Shire Councit Plarming Scheme. The classification of land which is improved will be determined by the ocaupistion
of thal land and have reference 10 the planning scherme zoning.

The types of buildings on the land within tis aifferential rate ate all buildings which are how constructed on the land o
which e consiructed priot fo the expiry of the 2021/22 financial year.

Farm Land:

Farm land i any ratesbie fand:

. That is not Jess than 2 heclores in aroa;

. That Is used primardy tor grazing (including agistment), dswrying, pig-farming, pouliry farming, tish farming, tree
Tanming, bee keeping, viticuliure, horticuttisre, frult growing of the growing of crops of aay kind of any comiination of those
activities: and that is used by a business;

. That has significant and substanbal cormmertial purpose or character;
That seeks 1o make 3 profit on 3 continuous of repetitive basis from its activitiea an the tand;

The types and ciasses of rateabie land within this differentiad rale are those having the relevant charactenstics descrited
above.

The objective of this differential rale is 1o ensure that all rateable tand makes an equitable financial contribution to the cost
of carrying out the funchions of Council, including {but not limited to) the:

Construction and maintenance of infrastructure assets;

Development and provision of health and camemunily services:

Provision of general suppor services:

To maintain agricufture as a major industry in the municipal desiricl: and,

To ensure that the concessional rate in the dollar declared far defined Fam Land properties is fair
moqm having regard to the cost of provision of Councll services, and the level of benefits dertved
from expenditures made by Council on behalf of the farm secior.

The money raised by the differential rate will be applied to the items of expenditure described n the Budget by Coundl. The
level of the rate for land in fhis category is considersad 1o provide for an appropriate contridution to Council's budgeted
expenddure. having regard 1o the charactedsiics of the fand.

The geographic location of the land within this differential rate is wheve i is located within the muricipal district, without
reference 1o ward boundaries.

The use of the land wathin this differential rate, in the case of improved fand, & any use of fand,
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4.

4

Notes to the financial statements

atutory § r fines

Forocast
Actual
2020721 202122

§$'000 $'000

Budgot

Town planning fees -22.08%

Revenue collecten 1 -12.50%
Compiance g9 10.23%
Buliong 64 ~46.04%

Total statutory fees and fines B '3 ~23.40%

Forecast
Actual
2020021 2021122

$'000

Budget

Complance 9M.43%

Indapencence Suppor! 1 0.23%
Public Health and Wellbemg 42 13 44 83%
Buikeng Regutations and Inspettions - 3 45.79%
Halls | 8 200.00%
Electnc Vehicle Charge 11 -
Stormwater Discharge - 3 ~100.00%
Landfill and Transter Siations N - 66 A42.31%
Saleyards Truck Wash 0 32 -28.57%
Total user foos 41 -5.12%
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4. Notes to the financial statements

4.1.4 Grants

Gramts are required by the Act and the Regulations 1o be disclased in Councl's budget

Forecast
Actual

2020721

$°000

Grants were received in respect of the following:

Summiary of grants
Commonwealtt funded grants
Staje funded granis
Total grants received

{a) Oporating Grants
Recurrent - C: ealth G t
Financial Assistance Granis
independence Support
Recurrent - State Government
Indepercience Support
Libriaies
Marernal and chikd health
Other
Total recurrent grants
Non-recurrent « C ith Gove t
Australia Day - Cowd-19 Safe
Non-recurrent « State Govermnment
Fiood rehabiltation warks
Enveronmental management
Waorking for Victoria
Nighl Ast Acthivation
Other
Total non-recurront grants
Total cperating grants

(b} Capital Grants

Recurrent - C ith Gover
Reads 1o recovery

Totsl recurrent grants
Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Roads Infrastructure

Buiksngs

Other

Non-recurrent - State Government
Roads Infrasiructhure

Buildngs

Othar

Total non-recurrent grants

Total capital grants

Total Grants
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Change
$'000

2458 20%
3.828 41%
1,368 6%
361 5%
78 14%
7 -50%
3 2%
3 0%
2 2%
320 4%
F3) 100%
1,168 -100%
17 -100%
1374 100%
835 ,
53 AT%
2158 ~73%
1878 -17%
1,200 S0%
1,200 -50%
614 -100%
1253 58%
327 -AT%
0"!
4447 53%
3247 30%
1,368 0
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4. Notes to the financial statements

F 1
orocas Budgot

Actual Chango

2020721 202122
$'000 $'000

41.54%

L3 41.54%

Forecas!
Actual
2020121 2021122
$°000 $'000

Budget

Interest

Rembursements and Other Intom

Total other income

Forecast
Actual

202021 2021722
$°000 §'000

BUcom Change

HA43%

Wages and salaries )
19 211.11%

Travel Allowances

WarkCaver {12} H143%
Superannuaton {12) A49%
Fringe Bene®™ Taxation 0.00%
Total employes costs {629} $.52%

Forecas! Actual 2020/21 includes addition 50 lemporary employees under the Work for Victoria funding

Forecast
Actual
2020121 2021122

$°000 $'000

Budgot

Matedals, services and contracts

Utilties 7 -2.98%
Plart costs 32 2.55%
Total materials and services 1,086 43.41%

Forecast Actual 2020021 includes adddion requirement under Ihe Work for Victeda funding and December 2018 flogd

restorabion works
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4. Notes to the financial statements

Forocast

Actual

2020721 2021122
§$°000 $'000

Budgot

Froperty

Plant & equipmesnt 113 11.19%

Infrastructure 56 0.99%
28 331%

Total deprociation

Forecast
Actual
2020721 2021122

Budgot

$°000 $'000

Right of use assels

Total amortisation - right of use assets

Forecast
Actual
202021 2021122
$°000 §'000 §'000

Budget

Change

Audiors remunecation

Bank fees 4 -8.88%
Mayors! st Councilor aliowances 10 5.58%
Council meeting expenses 5 50.00%
Contributions ang donations 6 1.40%
Imernat Audit 3 ~30.23%
Other c 21.95%

4 0.51%

Total other expensoes
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4. Notes to the financial statements

Councl is forecasting cash and investmant position at 30 Jme 2022 of $§12 4820 inciuding $2 011M resincted funds
relating 10 grants received in advance

4. 2.3 gorrowings

Forecast

Projections

Actual
2020721 202223 2023024 2024/25
$ S $

Amdunt borrowed as at 30 June of the pooe yeor
Amount proposed 1o be borrowed

Amouint projectad to ba redesmed

Amourt of borrowings as at 30 June

S$.241 IN0S By caleqgo

As @ result of the introduction of AASE 16 Leases . right-of-use assets and lease labities have been récogrised as
outined in the table Delow

Forecast
Actual
2020/
$

Budgot

Right-of-use assets
Vehities

Total right-of-use assets

Lease Habilities
Currant lease Liabilitios
Vehicles
Total current lpase labilities
Non-current lease labilities
Vehicles
Total non-current lease liabilities

Tolal lease Kabilities

Where the interest rate appicable to a lease 8 not expressed in the lease agreement, Coluncd sppiies the average
ncremental bomowing rate in the calculation of lease kRabges. The cument Incremental bofrowing rate s 5.5%.

Movement in eguiy due fo moreesed accumulmed surplus only

Page 30



Buloke Shire Council Special Meeting Agenda Wednesday, 16 June 2021
3.1.2 Adoption of Annual Budget 2021 - 2022 Financial Year
Attachment 1  Buloke Shire Council Annual Budget 2021 - 2022 Financial Year

Don presents a lgbrg of the

ol ' works propects thal will be unidertaken for the 202122 yeur, classbed by expenddure type and fundang source. Works

Fe ¥80 OS50

50 a8 cument BLAget or Camed foraard from pnor year

Forecast
Actual
2020021 20272
$000 $'000
Propesty 8650 5934 3,820 <A3.91%
d 935 1,256 34.33%
3 8.017 81.56%
17.011 20048 3,038 17.86%

Budget

Plant and equiprmen

Assot expenditure types Summary of Funding Sources
Council
Renewal Upgrade Expansion Grants Contrib (:s' Borrowings
- 1

$'000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 3000

ty 5934 400 2121 3413 . 4,792 100
Plant and eguipment 1,256 7( 1,161 e . 1,258
Infrastucture 12,859 2.78¢ F 656 2.1 1 1 48
Total 20,049 £ 562 e 5,785 |
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Buloke Shire Council
Capital Works Program

For the yoit an@ng 30 June 2022

New Works
Asnet expenditure type Sumimary of funding sowrces
Coancil
Coapltal Works Area New Reawwsl Upgrade Grants  Contributions » Borrowings
cas
3'000 $°000 3'000 000 $'000 5000 $ 000
lemeny
Lol
L e vy 1 6% ) 58 1%
tdn 14 s s
o & 3 114
“@ o )
WX A% & <A 1 174
1,674 40 1 387 o id 18410 L= 73
- "
" 2% 11
220 =0
1 7o 1005 . - XE
res LF By 4w
tar it 141
Doty sed oychewiyt s
iTrenage @
Wacreanprad leawe wed sorsesurety dechte " 82 &1 9
1 VAT )
spen space and sheriscapet 2.9 3 25 =
© 4 &
) [ 2786 8774 3 3,390 F FY1E)
Total capetal warha £xpondtiue 11614 12%% 5,005 254 %633 v Lot

Works Carrled Forward from Previous Year

Asset eapanditure type

Summary of fundng sources

Council
Capital Works Ares Ke'n Renewal Upgrade Grants Comributions canh Borrowings
$°000 $ 000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $°000 5
Progety
Land
A g Ovaereniy 320¢ 0 162
STorst bend 3083 TS
ISy 34 - " ot 0¥
i e
BARNG i "
Leiitehl (ot
Total buddngs &34 ¥4 . Asf ah 327
[Tolal proparty 4 w3 s ) ink 38 w oy
Pact and squpment
12% i ]
14 - L 124
ERL- w0 2008 L]
e L U 2 1% 7% 13
1A marageeed
P N S8 I ST 08IILaped
ok iaray
LM sireet car perks
Chber pergsnchis .
Totsl intrastrusture & 247 2142 L4 1 E34 1% 174
[Total sapds werks § o Stue 5433 - 5142 A *da ) Y -
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Buloke Shire Council
Capital Works Program

For the yoat en@ng 30 June 2022

Works for 2022722

Copital Works Area

Asnet expanditure type

New Reoewsl  Upgrade

Sumimary of funding sowrces

Coancil

Contributions Borrowings

cash
3'000 $°000 $'000 1'000 5000 $000
ey
Lot
LS e irrerm Ay
8 L7 1.4
BT KT - P =)
T S = T
(Total huddngs 1 09 1,063 1683
| Totsl property 1093 - 1,003 1883
Pt ang equ pesent
Vrwriyye e vy o egered a
TACIA Ty WO P s 543 e
HATEs Mrgd 20 ATy © &3 pid
FIATR AN 278 AT T S 5 "m
jeagows ] B 2 . Bl
| Total plard w0a aquegrmat e - 73 i) - ¥4
Sredrevtructere
L ] tLH) LR INNg
a4 . ™
« ac
L3 5
tpen apwce e sterivcapes - .
o
et Sl Pk
w PREMGTEe >
Total ndrasseuctare §.263 5904 18 202 .
Total captal warka expenirtuee [(¥3) 7.7 aH s
Works for 2023724
Asset eapanditure type Summary of funding sowrces
Councll
Capital Works Ares New Reavewal Upgrade Comributions > Borrowings
canh
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 000 $000
Fesperty
and

TLeN imgr o ey
1Tatal lend
L]

[over o wgn wiare

Plart. Ty 30 wo o T
1Fitures Rabmgs and [ &5 ol
IR AR 152 29 i
{Lowry booy 2 2 2
Total plare avd s iTmed 75 YAz (X3 73
ferivantoychure
RAn Lo 6z 2558
gy .
B = M a0
Py 3
weurty S hvey £ 43 9
. < 54
1P coen igie deetszapmy L) w 0
thervd omes
asds
{Total indipstrsue L 33 410
(Yot capdar wusks supensitues e L 4 . S )
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Buloke Shire Council
Capital Works Program

For the yeat en@ng 30 June 2022

Works for 2024/28

Coapital Works Aren

Reawwsl

Asnet expanditure type

Upgrade

Grants

Suminary of funding sowrces

Contributiona

Council
Borrowings

cash
$°000 $'000 3000 $'000 5000 $000

LANEAGS npeomenarty
Towsl .v“c\!l 1 o & 430

| Totsl property (T 1,45 1485

PR 0 e pese it

O s e Ll

Pt Tackwigry sod sGApiTent mn kAl T

Fldures ¥omgt a0d aniry " [ e

IoraTgaaeit @78 WRCUTET LS 15 a» .

itvacy Wows ) : 28 : \
TTotai plard w0d oquaprrmet s e W w

Srdveviructery

Wb o 47 138

aoges

j"u 34 g SaCeay b > Iy - e

o 27 ¥
wd beaue el soreesurdy fec ey AL a3 an w0 a3

i varagears e

Part cpen scwce et stertscapes ’ & ar

{Aersarams

O atrwed cur pards -

| et - pand
Total ndnstaciare wre8 €336 243 2497 e

Total captal warke £xpendriuse 8397 5528 40 247 178
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§. Financial performance indicators

The foliowwng tatie higldghts Counol s Sl a0 pre
Cousul's feanciyd postion wnd peariormancs and should e itopreied & the
% DWW e he noed $ a9l perforiunce nacator
SUEX agonst hese Indcaions will be reporied in Count

RGNS IR & usehst

Md pOrfEmanoe 055 & (6100 o Koy feanoal peiforms

i The orpamess
Comaned in Fan
Patomance Satemant wobded n e

arabyele
Thi fnancial peifcrmance ndve
and Reportng) Reguiatons 2

of the Local Government (Planning

T Feport

Projections
Indicatos Measure

020021 W WINM

Operating pOxINGn

Adpadied sndedyng sorpius (defol
wrrdeching TeveR

Adpaden andertpng s 29 4% AT 44 5 1 ) )

Ligusdity
Yioeking Capasl Currerst stsety ( curmmd katdite s s71% P 4884
Jorenincied cash Urrsalricted caxh ¢ cusrerd habilses oY 22T%: 3 jaks avax 344% NA
Oodpations
Loy and Borrowigs lrtiores! bearnig loans dnid DOFTOw e s [ o 0%
lgres! and pancat Tepiaymeris o0 nlbrest R N N
Loans and borfosngs . 2 ’ L% frg % o R
BOanng loas and BOrowings ' 1R rivenud
el mas Nors-Cumrant Kabiltes © ow SoUrte rivenus & 8% 1% e 1 *

Asxsut tenirand AN cpyrade sxpenes | Ased

AsSel renuny 18748 194 -
Mpreciation 3
Stadility £
Ratas LONCanlanoe Rate reyenos | adpaled undetpng reverus 41 45 54 4 .
Hale revenas ¢ LIV of raloatie groperties n e - a . .
- -]

Fsraa aort
it

Indicator Moasure

Eficiency
Frpandiure lowsl Tt axpanses! no. of progerty sssessonenls §4.227 4 857 36400 o
Havewan ey Totd radee revwncs / no. of propetly msessments $2.2 §2.352 §2. X% o

Koy ta Foracast Trend
* Forucasts improversant o Cowals tnancd peciamancatimahiod posion ndkales
O POSBON G wit be steady
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BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL FEES B CHARGES 2021 2022

HALL RS Main Halkl (a6 hours) | szl 50
Supper Rogm imax. & hows) l suoot $6600
Cont pih {aver mav. hours) ' Sslwi $5L00
7 Dy Kitcoen $100f  sam
Al Bay 24 bows, full use of vence samoo‘t 440000
{ \
il e - Boesd | $smool 500
Serdor Citagns (Max & Hours) : slo7eo | s0700
Semior Citszens Houry rate over max & hours ' $ 9w # $2900
Regudar ire - Prvate or Commesgiad | sawm 1 s
WYCHEPROOK SALEYARDS Yard Foes 0.90% of gross sales turmoves . [ :
i \
Ageat's Fees 13% of yare fees . ] -
Puiic Holday Fenatty Rate . sx.omw£ $120.00
Unsald stock fee (per head) ‘ 2230 | 5020
Destruction and dispasal of dead stock fee [per hend] ' $ 2000 I S0
Truck Wash Key Deposh (Aviats) Refunded v return of keyy $7.00 t S0
Water Usage Jper minute) e
STANOPIE Wit chavge Sor ynder 3,000 itros $weel S0
Pec 1000 1eres {  sw0p I $1100

i J
$13t00 | 52400

i
|

Dog or Cat Full Registration (Not micro chipoed or desexed - only selevant to ammisls regiiteced poior to May
ANIMAL CONTROY, w00

Reduced Sepstration - Dog or Ot - Moo chipped phus one or more of the following - desexed, not deseses, |

working or farm dog. over 10 years old or WCA member ;o Swne Sam0
i £

Ferascney Concaian Ful DogiCat Begrstration (holf price for 3 dog & (ot registation categrires] | se30| 3800
| J

Pemsioner Concession - Reduced Dog/Cat Regstration thalf price for ali dog & ¢at registration categones) P S18%0- 5000

Exvemngt Dogs « Guide dogs, Pokice dogi & Rating dags (Greyboungi]

Replacement iifetime tags - No charge

Regintered arumals moving to Buioke {from within VIC anly) - No Charge ! -
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BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL FEES B CHARGES 2021 <2022

_ IAPOUNDED GOODS Heleasa fee (Phas cther associated £osts) | sumoc| s
IMPOUNDED LIVESTOCK Sheep up to § hesd ‘ szoei‘ $104.00
Pei Shwep 55 ‘ snoo;' $1am

Gous & s up to 2 head ' SAOJCOI{ 510000

Per Goat & Pg > 2 snocefL $2200

Cottie up (o 3 hwwad ' suwoi 51000

Por Cow >3 ' smmf $ 10400

Por Harse i sz&s.ocll §360.00

|
Tratsport of Svesteck - Total cost of anspoct t be recouped i - |

}

Sustenance - Sheeg (Per disy per hiad) | suw l suw
: t

Sustenence - Goats & Pigs - Per day pec hesd | sxos| SD0

Sustandnce - Cattie & Hovses - Per day per haad SHW 20
l

Dog/Cat - 1st impauadment i sSmoo| -smam
{ |

TogfCat - 2nd impoundovent within 12 manth period | S16400 L S3MD0

! k

i

DogfCat 32 ispoedinents within 12 months S0 5300

Dog/Cat in excess 4 duys (Fer day foel | snw sum
Anirmal Swrendes Fee $2uce |- 50600
IMBOUNOID VERICLES Releasn Ten (P other associated costs) per vebicle l 52900 : § 29500
LOCAL LAWS Application Fee : sam
At Foe $53.00 } $6200
Excess animal pesmit {Vahd 3prs) o s7s00 f SH000
Camping & Becksepng Permt. =] iR
: Court Costs - Full costs recouped . T -
Street Fursttare Perawis : swm% -$62.00
Natice 1o Compty e Fee | seoo| sem
CAT THAP WiRE Daposits - Cat Trapy | $to000| 520000
Fifst hwo weehs per week] | swwf oo
T wees and sutsequent (ger week) | siom | sson
DOMSTIC ANIMAL BUSINESS  Repstration Renewal | sa000 sa0000
Annual Auda inspection Fee ' $10000 | 520000
] New Regiteation Fee | sroo| sasooo

i I
|
|

FIRE PREVINTION WORES Engeged contractars to undevtaho compulsory fire dearances - 150% Cost to Counc phuscontratoe costs & - |
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BULOKE SHIRE COUNCH FEES B CHARGES 2021 2022

DUILDING FIES & CHARGES
Alteeations/Addition /S |
Carports/Giarnges Buing Works 50+ 310,000 sha levy | $si000; ss2000
Buidng Works 510,001 - $20.000 phus vy | smsool sm000
Buhding Works $20,001 - $60.000 ghus levy [ s1Lzs000 | $137500
Buding Yévrks $50,001 - 530,000 s devy i $340000  $ 142000
Budding Wesks 590,001 - $170.000 plus levy | $1ss000 | $1890.00
Butting Works $120,003 - $200,000 plus evy ' S150000 | $1835.00
- Buikling Works 5200000 phes.[plus Yewy) ’ $2.20000 | 34500,
Oweltngs Now Dwelings 40 - $110.000 phus ey : S150000 | $2536.00
New Dweings -$110,000 - $2001000 D ey | 1m0 | samso
N Drwetings -5300,000 - $390.000 pis lewy. ] $2.20000 | $2345.00
Nesw Dwelings -5350,001 - $500.000 s levy : $28%000 | $2505.00
New Duelings $500,000 phs (ks ey} 1 $sam00
fwimning Pocs & S Swievering Poud and Fence « Above ground g0l s;eooof $4700
Susenening Pood and Fence - Inround Posl $3-$50,000 i smw§ 5915.00
Swvimining Pool and Fence - Ingrosnd Poul $56.001 phus f s:.nwwf $1.070.00
Yence Only j 52“005' Ssam
Swmeming Poot Sefety Audi Inspecton Fee . $&000|  S40000
Any Addmiona Inspeciin : samoo% $100.00
Agyivavan for regattation fes (siatutary fee) | sum| smm
information search fee (statutary fee) T SY i S0
Lodgement of certiftcate of pook bacrier complivnce (xtatiaary fee Reg 347%) [ swmal sma
Tpdgement of certificate of poot hastier non-comphance {siptary fee Reg 1472)) 5535}0.‘%_1&.
~ Commertal Worka Commercial Wiaeks - $0- $20.000 plus ey : $18500 S80000
Commencial Works - 520,003 - §120,000 pit levy is:,moo % 1000 00
Commereal Werks < $120,001 - $500.000 {Svalue x 0.4 phus $1900 plas bevy) : $£192000 | § L9000
il Commesal Werks - $500,000 phus {Seabos x0.49% pius $2150 00 pls lew} | s2a5000 | $219000
Mty Unit Devetapmen Usves - $0 - 5200 000 pius lewy 3 $2.07%.00 | $ 233000
ity - $200,001 - $350.000 phos levy $23m00 | S2A500
Ut - S350.001 PLUS Svalue/ 125 plus tevy 1 « I =
Burting Notees/Driers (To aHow uBSngs 10 remaimn a5 Lontiructed without a Sudding Peomie} Budicing Permit :
Frtorcement e phat 40% | . -
i
MAinos Werks Comphante {indusing 8 B0k, sp & sthnr mings works) Busiding Pomat Fee pius 3% | . -
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BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL FEES & CHARGES 2021 -2022

BUILDING FEES & CHARGES CONTINUED
Mucefaneous femy tence

Sznw‘ 523000

Demaentions or removals iess thim $10.000 $400.00 |

1
|
swoeg $<a000

5405.00

Dersadimons o semavals $ 10,001+

:
Deposit Ke-Erection of Dweiing , SS,lSQm£ sSsum
Drtension of Towe Reguest (Fiest request) s:ssoaf $358.00

Extenstion of Time Reguest [Second & sdiegornt requests) § 25500 I{ S3A00

Pian Amendments $11500 | $11700

information Request Reg 326 {11 Peroe tedo, Tinad Contifications. Current Orders of Notices . L1 % s

ieformation Request Reg 326 (2]: Flooding, Termite, Bushiire, Snowlan, Devgneted | sw i s47.9

i Requent Reg 326 (2 Mandatory ctif states, Dates sa.'mi $41.0

< Sedich Reguent of bulding peremts i SN S0

Report & Conuent Planning Avthorsy for deroltion Sec 294 (% 75unts) : $8820 8520

Butd over Counci Easement Reg 310{1) { . -~

Repant & Conyent undey Parts 4560 &

Legal Pont of Ducharps for Stormavates Reg 610 (20

qu.m!I san
Additonal msgection | $13700| sam00

- OtherfGeneral Inspecton per bow fee {Includes report) 518000 S0

Red Line Aggiication Fee $955 00 5995 00
POPE [t tuden | mpection) | $9w00 [ 599500
POPE feschodes 1 nsp | iate - appli b 4 bess than 2 weeks prior to event : $1295.00
Sitng Appronel Sor Marque (mcludes 1 inspestion) ' 56500 SSMM.00
Tithe Seurch i $46.00 $a600
Comrmunity Groups {Mot fo7 peofit] ;

Report & Consent for busding In sreas Rabie (o Soodng (Reg, 153} $29045 | 520045

Fiivate burldag suneyos lodgement fee $121%0

PLANNING FEES Agphication for Btension of Time to a Panning Pedme - First request s $205.0

Appheation for Dxtension of Tinte 10 2 Manning Prrmst - Second feguest $ 50000 § 105 00

Appiiatign for Extension of Time 10 @ Manmiag Pere - Third request 54000 F Sa0800

Giving Notice of Appication for a Manmning Permit {advertmg) I ss10 I
Setmndary Consent $20000 | 520500
Eadoree Minor Amendment $1woo { 5102 00

Fee Refund - 100% prior 1o fodgment of apphication

Fee Refund - S0% prior fo the giving of notice | "

Fee Rehund . 7% prior 1o reguest for informaation
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BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL FEES B CHARGES 2021 2022

PUBLIC HEALTH Fioad Ast Class 3 Food Preriises Apphication | smsccl SRAW
i |

Food Act Class 2 Food Premises | $amoe| $mmoo

Yood Fremises Cass 3 Apgication | 32000 s0M0

Food Act Fransler Fae SOK current casied fee | .

Non Proke Ougacisations 8 Commenity Group +003 s prepered predommately o7 corsumpiion by membiers ot {
Sor fundraising sctwies Service Guuba, masty Sporting Clubs I

PUBLIC HEALTH - SEPTIC TANK Sopic Tank New

PUBOC MEALTH & WILLIEING Handeesyer (One off registeatiun fee|

Doty Therapy Registration | sisopl SISm0

1
| !
Skan Penetration | Strsoop SIM00
{ |
 Mors than 1 heaitfy sctivty | 52:00| S2000

Prescribed Arcommodstion {Priviimg sccommodation for § of sore persoss indudeng hrotely, matels & comps. | $ 20000 $317000

Lite payrnent - S5 of ceghtration [mare than 1 month late)

Additonal inspectiom shar it otiow up

Registiaton of Caravan Park - Totsl sitel nof exteedng 25 |

Registeation of Caravin Park - Total stes between 25 - 50 :

Regstration of Caravan Fark - Total utes excoeding 50 : - ‘r.Z!:L.m
STAETT STALL K Y000 VENDOXS - Ran Profit & Community Groups - Sngle Everr Permat Frivate indnadusis & businesses :

Noo Proft & Tormueay Groaps - Yearty peeret (up 1o 12 Gvents par paw)

Nan Profit & Commmuntty Groups - Tronsfer tnipection Fes

Singie Fuent Permt Piivate ndirdusls 8§ busmisies | Ssw0 $4100
Yearty peemit fug ta 12 Events per year) S®oe S
Transfer inspection fee | $2000  s2000

iae payment - 5% of regstration imgre than 1 mondh iste)

_ IMMUSISATIONS ations {Cost o Counti! - paterisis & labout) { « I -
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BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL FEES & CHARGES 2021 2023

=
.
LN

HOME & COMMUIRTY CARE Generai Home Care Low | $4am| sam
Geowrw Home Care Medium $1i9s I $1198
Gerersi Home Care High L gsao | oswa
Maidenance Low $93% ‘ $338
Maintenante High $5040 ‘r $508

i
Marrripsante Medigm I 1560 ? S15W
Pevsonal Care Low ‘ 53 10; $110
Persomal Care Mediim sns‘% 517
Pevyomal Care High | ssan| s
Respe Low $3.10 [ $310
| I
Recpae Medium | sam \ $4%
Respae igh soi0 | 4508
Maols on Whees Low ss.m} $030
Meals on Whee's Medeom [ $e% i £9.90
Meils on Whasb $1455 0 SAss

POCK HIRE Lanve Hire per hour {Commercint within pood hours {Mix 3 lanes) ‘\ $1.00
Lane Mire (Casust) Sree wathin poal Do (i 3 ledes) l‘ .
Fudl Ve Hinet g hoar {00050 10 putie) misx 5 hours, incudes Deguand B se! up/pack up l i $mod
Additional Usguard per howe - Reguired # ration sxceeds 1: 100 or ioflstabies we being inciuded ' a : $s0.00
Faciiay Hire pev oo - iComniercial & Schook) Intluties cost of Iifegaand (910 1100 rathd & e wp/patkup | . ; $80.00
Additiar Lésguind per howr - [Cammencial & Schools) Reguared ¥ ration sxteeds 1-100 or inflatabiles are being i

wchaded S4600| $3000
Facilty Hive - Not for profix Comenginty groups - Maust pay for Meguard

\
! }
Uupment Storage per seuzon. applicatie 10 any growp o OMEANSItan SEONNg equipment oo site 1 - | S0
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BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL FEES B CHARGES 2021 2022

LANDI I Geaen Waste ; : st:c}L

L buot per oad smcoz $1m
Tandem Trafer op bo 2 cubis mstres ' $5103% sNm
Wineelie bin 120¢ ! snwll $um
Wheehe bin 2401 suoa% $15.00

| I
Gereersl Waste 10 Landhi ipes cubic mebr} | smowl smo
Commarcial Waste (per Ot matro) ‘ 55109‘: snom
Buikder Waste and Loncrete [per cubic metre} s4aw %r Sa2m
Contrete onzoateesinated fpes cubs tetre) | sam| san
Bricks untontimsnatied (per cubise metre] s4100 ‘[ sam

: {

Vvt Gaods (#0018 Mt e ¢ g from refrige L oveny & hers) Free to lotsl mesidents only !

Car Rodins - Tree to logsl residents anly ‘

f
E-WASTL: Genersd ftems | y 200
TV $crpens and Computer Mandars | s1m t S0

Mattresses ' $4100 | tum

Ynes Light car tyre | sa00 $11.00
i !
Car tgre O vim | smx.-f s
WO #v Light Tryck tyre [ sio0 ‘ $17.00
Truk tyee ; sasw? 53600
Truck Tyee on 1im ' suos} iam
Sreall Tractor Tyres | simo } $12100
Lavge trartortyres | s L&Q_
1 |
ANIMAL CARCASSES Pouitry lincliding trkeys) per bird | s i 5000
Cots wed Dogs $10.06 l $1L00
Sheep, S and Gons [ smml snwm
‘
#eryes and Cattle ) . s_uoor__&
RIOYCUNG Comingled & x 4 Teader Loa/Ute Loxd up 1o 1 cubic metre Sa0e 1 $800
Cominghed Tandem Trader up to 2 tdi metres l $ I.SDG: $1500
Ghas T Y
Paoer & Cordhionrd sooc{ 5600
Plastees 5600 : 1600
Jandem Trafer - Guss only 51100 1
Tandem Trader - Pager & Caroboatd $1100 j S0

!
Tondem Traker - Mastics Lo suool  suom
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Project capex ($°000)

Project description Nominal Fedoral State

total Ronewal Upgrade New Grants G User Cash

$000 $'000 §0660 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Land improvements )
Wycheproof Saleyards 187 187 - - 11 . 187
Charlion Park Camank 144 144 - - - 55 58 29
Nulawd S0 Art Corpack 28 25 - - - - - 28
21 C/F Buchip Streetscapes 354 - a84 { - 347 = 7
21 CJF Brightening Beosdway 420 . 420 - - 349 . 71
21 CIF Chanton: Stsetacape 523 - 523 - - 513 - 10
21 C/F Donald Sywetscapes 6Q7 “ 807 - - 595 - 12
21 C/F Sea Lake Stwetscopen 1.074 . 1074 . E 1.083 29
21 CF Wyche Wellands | Mt Wyche 138 v 138 - : e 120 - 18
21 CF Wycheorecd Strestscases 110 - 110 . - 108 - 2
Crarfion Riverfronts - candrived 450 450 - - ] 45 - - -
‘Donald Riverfronts - consnued 450 450 - - 450 - - .
Laxe Tyrrel - confinued 155 155 - - - - . 155
Sub-Total - Lang improvements 4840 §.227 3413 - 900 3147 58 542
Bulldings
Lakes Cobine 400 - - 400 200 83 33 83
21 C/F Birchip Town Certre 41 41 . . " . N Y
21 CF Donald Community Precmct 2020/21> 77 tred - - - - - 177
21 C/F Tchom Lakes Septic Works a3 a3 - - B - - p X}
21 C/F Wutonem Lave Tollet Hemedation 91 o1 - . - - - "
71 CIF Wooroonoak Lakes Camping Ground Upgraae 120 120 - - - 120 - -
21 CIF Wychepooot Caravan Park Upgrace 140 149 . - v 12% s 1%
21 CF Wycheproot Libeary 232 2032 . . ) - 223 ] *
Sutr-Tots! - Buldaings 1.24 534 . 400 200 551 43 aat
Building impravemants
Charlion Travellers Rest Roof 25 25 - - - 25
Waorkshop upgeade 35 38 - - - - - s
Sub-Total - Bulgng improvements 50 50 - - - - - 60
Plant, machinery and oquipment
Jebmnater 400 400 . - . - ] . 400
Tracovuior (Na1 $150K trage-n) 00 300 - - . - - 300
21 CJF Major Plamt 126 126 - . - - . 126
Sub-Tolal - Plart, macherieny and equipment 826 524 B - - 828
Fixtures, fittings and furniture
Litrary Shelving 28 - 28 - “ - - 25
Spbt Systern rerewal - Anrust Aflocation 18 18 . . - - . 8
Depot Safety Upgrade - Kaylens Erry 30 - n ¢ . 50
COTV Program 40 - - 40 . - - 40
Sub-Total - Fodures, fatings and fumdure 110 i % 0% - - . 110
Computers and telecommunications
¥ Equipment roviewst - Annual siocation 170 179 - - - - " 170
IT Systerm %0 180 . » o i - . !
Sub-Total - Computers and telecommunications 320 320 - . - - - 320
Roads
Raseal Annuad Adocanon 1,224 1224 - - 1200 - - 24
Reshesting Annusi Alocation 808 508 - - - - - 806
Bitcho Nullawd Rosd (LRTH 1623 1853 - - - 1,227 - 396
Jofican Road 502 502 - - - - - 502
Mt oughian Rood a7 587 < o . . . 7
Borrliocs - Springfels Road 140 140 . - ] - - - 140
Maor Pateh Annusl Allocation 00 100 - - . - - 100
Buohip Nultawid Rood (Agn-Links) 32 3z - . - Eral - +

i N Road Rahaby 22000 48 45 o - - - = &4
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Marfbee Curyo Renaty 22003 7 17 - - - - - 17
ML oughlen Read Retatiltaton 22773 a7 4 - - - - - r{i
Wikur Watchupga Road Rehab 22123 32 32 . . - B a2
Waookshod Road Rehab 2223 5 L5 - $0
21 CIF Bartiwiliock Bechvp Rd Fisodways Er 77 - - - L2 - -
21 C/F Bamwiliock-Buchip Rosd Retatshation 1,567 1,987 . - - 1,588 . 5]
21 C/F Sea Lake LascsliewCulgoa-Lalbart Roed 138 138 - B - 138 - -
Sub-Total - Roads T 437 7437 - - 1200 3652 . 2585
Bridges
Scibeys island Brdge 541 141 . . . . . 149
Sub-Total - Bridges 141 141 . . - . . 141
Footpaths and cycleways
Footpaths « Annual Allocaton 100 100 - E - - - 100
Crossavers - Annual Allocaton (] %3 - - - - - LX)
Subr-Total - Foctpaths and Cyciewsys 183 163 - - - - - 163
Drainage
Nubawel Dramage 40 40 . , . . » 40
Sub-Total - Drainage 40 40 . . . - - 4D
Recreational, lelsure and community facilitios
Swimming Pool Renewal - Annual Allocation 75 75 . - . - . 78
Wycheoroof Cammvan Park Camp Kitchen 52 - 52 - - 47 - 5
21 C/F LUB Tharfton Foottall Club 377 - 377 - - 32% 1% 34
71 CF LUB Chartton Hockay Club 0 * 230 . - 200 ) 21
21 C/F LUB Nulewil Footbad Club §93 - 883 ° ‘ 503 as 55
21 C/F LUB Nulerwil Nettiad Chuty 5 . 255 “ v 224 10 20
21 CIF LUB Wychaproof Narmpon Foothall Cilt 325 . 320 - v 286 i3 30
21 CIF LUB Wytheptoof Nenmnpon Mocksy Chuts 181 - 181 . . 157 & 18
SubrTatal - Recrestionsl, lesure and commurty taciltes 2102 75 2417 - - 1,848 &8 258
Waste management
Qid Sos Lake Landfd Fence 20 20 . . . 20
Sul-Total - Wasle management 22 20 . . 0
Parks, open space and streetscapes
Night Art Activation . . - - . - - .
Buloiue Playspace Trail 2,786 . - 2,786 - 2587 - 198
Faek Imgation - Annusl Allocation 40 40 - - - - - 40
Sub-Total - Parks_ open spsce and sireeiscapes 375 40 - 2.785 - 2.587 - 239
Landfill cells
Sea Loke onll repacanion 40 40 - - v - - AD
Sub-Total - Lang®il cells 40 40 . - . - . 40
P ———
Total
Land improvemants 4,840 1227 3413 . B00 RATS) 58 542
Buldgings 1338 034 - 400 200 551 432 A41
Budding improvements 60 80 - - - - - §0
Plart, machoary and equipmont 824 826 . . 826
Fodures. Miings and fumiture 110 15 25 70 - - - 110
Computers and ielecommunications 320 320 - - . E - 320
Roads TA37 1,437 s 1,200 1652 2555
Bridges 141 141 - > - . 144
Footpaths and cyclvaays 163 163 s - - . 163
Deanage 40 40 . B - . 40
Recreatanal, lessure snd comanunity facites 2192 (4] 287 1,846 a8 258
Waslo management 20 i . ‘ . . . 2%
Parks, open apice and streslscapes 2828 40 - 2,786 - 2587 - 239
Lanods calls 40 40 > 40

Toral 20,045 11,238 55585 3.256 2,300 11,778 128 5,785



3.1.3 COUNCIL PLAN 2021 - 2025 AND LONG TERM COMMUNITY VISION

Author’s Title: Director Community Development
Department: Community Development File No: CM/13/06

Relevance to Council Plan 2017 - 2021

Strategic Objective: Support our councillors, staff, volunteers and the community to make
informed and transparent decisions.

PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to present the Council Plan 2021-2025 and Long Term Community Vision
document for adoption.

SUMMARY

Council must adopt and prepare a Council Plan for the period of at least the next four financial years
after a general election. Council must also prepare a Community Vision with an outlook of at least the
next 10 years. This document presents both of these together under the four Strategic Objective areas
of Our Built and Natural Environment, Our Community Wellbeing, Our Economy and Our Council and
Community Leadership. This document also incorporates the Municipal Health and Wellbeing Plan for
the second time. The Council Plan 2021-2025 and Long-Term Community Vision comes to Council after a
period of feedback from the community and stakeholders on the draft document.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council adopt the Long-Term Community Vision and Council Plan 2021-2025

Attachments: 1 Buloke Shire Long-Term Community Vision and Council Plan 2021-
2025.

DISCUSSION

The Buloke Long-Term Community Vision and Council Plan 2021-2025 comes to Council for formal adoption. Under the
vision of “Building a Better Buloke”, this document presents a range of strategies to guide Council for the next four
years, under the ten-year vision of the community. This document has been prepared following a range of community
consultation processes, analysis of strategies and plans which interact with this document and consultation with
stakeholders. The Municipal Health and Wellbeing Plan is integrated into this Council Plan for the second time.

We have some strong data through the Primary Health Network, the Primary Care Partnership, the Buloke, Loddon,
Gannawarra Health Needs Analysis and the State of Buloke’s Children and Young People’s Report which have been
reflected in this document. Critical partnerships with service providers and key stakeholders sit behind these reports
which have given a great foundation for Council to continue to work towards prevention, early intervention and
population health outcomes.

Alongside this planning, the Buloke Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation Strategy is being
developed also which will present some key actions to focus on as we move towards our future vision.

Outcomes of our last Council Plan, including the Customer Service Charter, Inclusiveness Plan, updated
financial systems, Volunteer Strategy, Rural Land Use review, Economic Development and Tourism
Strategy will also play into this plan with the actions from those carrying through to what we are hearing
from community in their aspirations.




Our newly adopted Community Engagement Policy has shaped the way we have put this document
together.

In 2018, Council undertook an extensive planning exercise which resulted in ten individual community
plans, feeding into the integrated community plan under the heading of “Building Buloke 2030”. Under
the new Local Government Act 2020, we have reviewed this vision to “Beyond 2030” to form Buloke’s
long term community vision. Much remains the same as that original 2018 aspiration as we take in the
lessons of 2020 and build towards a better Buloke, led by our community.

The draft document sets out the ten-year aspiration under each theme and then leads into the four-year
strategies and actions which will guide Council is assisting these long-term aspirations.

These will then form Annual Plans. The progress of these will be reported on each quarter. A full review of this document
will be undertaken annually.

Several high-quality submissions were received to the Council Plan 2021-2025 and Long Term Community Vision
throughout the public exhibition period. These have been carefully considered by officers and taken into consideration
in the latest update of this document. This feedback, as well as the extensive amount of feedback collected throughout
the development of the draft, will also be used as Council develops its annual plans which will action these strategies
over the next four years.

The Draft plan was also submitted to the State Government for exemption to include the Municipal Public Health and
Wellbeing Plan in this document. Some detailed feedback was received through this process and is reflected in the
inclusion of the page titled “Health and Wellbeing Priorities”.

The high level of engagement from community throughout this process will continue to guide the implementation of this
plan and the subsequent annual plans, reviews and contributing strategies.

RELEVANT LAW
Not applicable.

RELATED COUNCIL DECISIONS

Council decisions around other key strategic documents will interact with this Council Plan.

OPTIONS

Council has the option to not adopt this document.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

The Long-Term Community Vision and Council Plan 2021-2025 presents several strategies around
sustainability initiatives and responds to the requirement that Local government is identified in the
Climate Change Act 2017 as a decision-maker that must consider climate change when preparing a
municipal public health and wellbeing plan, which is incorporated into this document.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

A range of community consultation activities were undertaken to form the draft document which
resulted in high quality feedback from community members.

Letters were issued to Community Forums in December 2020 explaining the upcoming community
planning process and a suite of tools were provided to the groups to aid in the revision and renewal of
their own community plans to feed into the process of this planning cycle.

Listening Posts and Street Walks were held in all ten communities, where possible, in conjunction with
the Buloke Library Service. Both Councillors and Officers attended these.



Flyers were sent to all residents explaining the planning process and ways to get involved. Three key
questions were included in the flyer as well as ways to get involved in the feedback process. These flyers
were also distributed as an insert in all three local newspapers that cover the Buloke Shire area.

An online survey was made available, and hard copies also on offer for those unable to connect online.

A total of 68 people filled in the online survey, with each respondent spending at least 30 minutes
answering the 16 open-ended questions. The depth of this engagement delivered more than 1,000
individual pieces of feedback which have been analysed in the production of this document.

Councillor and officer attendance at Community Forum meetings and key gatherings during the consultation period
included explanation of the planning process, ways to get involved as well as feedback taken on the spot.

Further consultation during the draft period also included written submissions as well as listening posts throughout
Buloke.

It should be noted some valuable feedback was received and noted on the community consultation process and ways to
continue to strengthen this going forward.

INNOVATION AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT

This document being presented outlines several innovative strategies building on the community
feedback as well as indicators to promote continuous improvement. This document will have an annual
review and an annual plan which will be reported on quarterly.

COLLABORATION

In developing this document, Council has collaborated with a range of stakeholders and regional and
state bodies to build into the strategies presented.

FINANCIAL VIABILITY

The Annual Budget underpins how the strategies in this document will be resourced, grouped under the
same four strategic objectives.

REGIONAL, STATE AND NATIONAL PLANS AND POLICIES

There are a range of Regional, State and National Plans referenced throughout this document. They are
specifically named under the heading of “Current Strategies and Plans” following each key focus area.

COUNCIL PLANS AND POLICIES

This document sets out the next four year Council Plan. The previous Council Plan (2017-2021) has been
taken into account to link through to this new document. The Integrated Buloke 2030 Plan has heavily
influenced this document also.

TRANSPARENCY OF COUNCIL DECISIONS

This report comes following the draft document going on public exhibition for 28 days to enable the
public to make submission and provide feedback on the proposed strategies and direction.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

No officer involved in this report has a conflict of interest.
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The Buloke Shire is located =
in the north west of Victoria
between 210 and 360
kilometres from Melbourne.

It is bounded by both the Mildura and Swan
Hill Rural Cities in the north, Gannawarra and
Loddon Shires in the east, Northern Grampians
Shire in the south and Yarriambiack Shire in the
west,

Buloke'is a predominantly rural area. The main
townships are Birchip, Charlton, Donald, Sea
Lake and Wycheproof. The Shire also comprises
of the smaller townships of Berriwillock, Culgoa,
Nandaly, Nullawil and'Watchem,

Buloke encompasses a total land area of 8,000
square kilometres and is approximately 140
kilometres long and 60 kilometres wide.

Council maintains a road network spanning
5,302 kilometres. There are also 747 kilometres
of roads under State Government control within
Buloke.

The two main highways servicing the Buloke are
the Calder Highway and the Sunraysia Highway.
Both highways run north and south through the
Shire.

Land is used largely for agriculture, particularly
grain (wheat,-oats and barley) production and
sheep grazing.

The Buloke Shire is named after the ‘Buloke’ or
‘bulloak’ tree, ‘Allocasuarina Luehmannii ‘which
is common in the area and the feature of the
Buloke Shire fogo. )
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BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL

LONG-TERM COMMUNITY VISION
AND COUNCIL PLAN 2021-2025

OURVISION

Building a Better Buloke - A healthy, connected,
inclusive and prosperous community.

UR VALUES

Council addresses its key values through:
« Good communication

« Transparency in decision making

« Accountability for actions

» Working collaboratively with partners

« Taking responsibility

« Being responsive and timely

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Buloke Shire Council acknowledges the Wotjobaluk, Jaadwa, Jadawadjali,
Wergaia and Jupagalk Nations and the Dja Dja Wurrung people as the
traditional owners of parts of the land now known as Buloke. We pay our
respects to Elders past and present, and value their ongoing contribution
to our heritage and our community.

Buloke has significant number cultural heritage places including an
Aboriginal historical place, burials, artefact scatters, earth features, low
density artefact distributions, scarred trees and a stone feature.
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BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL

LONG-TERM COMMUNITY VISION
AND COUNCIL PLAN 2021-2025

WHAT IS THE
COUNCIL PLAN?

Council must prepare and adopt a Council Plan for a period of at least the next 4 financial years after a general election.

The Council Plan must demonstrate:

- the strategic direction of Council

— strategic objectives for achieving that direction

- strategies for achieving the objectives (for at least 4 years)

- strategic indicators for monitoring achievement

- description of initiatives and priorities for services, infrastructure, and amenity

The Council must own the Council Plan and is responsible for developing, adopting, and maintaining the Plan.
The community must be consulted and involved through deliberative engagement and other consultation processes.

WHAT IS THE
COMMUNITY VISION?

Council must develop, maintain, and review a Community
Vision with its municipal community using deliberative
engagement practices.

The Community Vision has an outlook of at least 10 years and
describes the municipal community's aspirations for the future
of the municipality.

It should describe the social, economic, cultural, and
environmental aspirations for the future of the municipality.

The Public Health and Wellbeing Act (2008) requires the
Municipal Public Health and Wellbeing Plan to be consistent
with the Council Plan prepared under section 90 of the Local
Government Act 2020 (previously section 125 of the Local
Government Act 1989) and the Municipal Strategic Statement
prepared under section 12A of the Planning and Environment
Act 1987.

Councils are required to review the Municipal Public Health
and Wellbeing Plan annually and, if appropriate, amend it; and
to provide a copy of the current Municipal Public Health and
Wellbeing Plan to the Secretary of the Department of Health
and Human Services.

For the second time the Municipal Public Health and
Wellbeing will be incorporated in this Council Plan.

The Community Vision will establish higher-order aspirations
for the community and ambitious goals for Council and the
community to work towards in collaboration.

Itis informed by community engagement and a consensus
view on aspirations and it is an influential document informing
Council’s strategic planning and broader partnerships with
civil society, government and community organisations.

The Community Vision extends beyond Council's jurisdiction
and provides a platform for collaboration with community,
regional partnerships, and advocacy. It should reflect and
consider relevant regional, state, and national plans.

The Community Vision is, in part, an expression of how Council
will work with the community to apply and direct resources
under its control towards achieving the desired future. The
Vision will significantly influence and provide direction to the
Council Plan and for other mandated plans and strategies.

Section 26 of the Public Health and Wellbeing Act specifies what must be included in a Municipal Public

Health and Wellbeing Plan:

«include an examination of data about health status and health determinants in the municipal district

- identify goals and strategies based on available evidence for creating a local community in which people can achieve
maximum health and wellbeing

« specify measures to prevent family violence and respond to the needs of victims of family violence in the local community

- provide for the involvement of people in the local community in the development, implementation and evaluation of the
Public Health and Wellbeing plan

« specify how the Council will work in partnership with the Department (of Health and Human Services) and other agencies
undertaking public health initiatives, projects and programs to accomplish the goals and strategies identified in the
Public Health and Wellbeing plan.
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BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL

LONG-TERM COMMUNITY VISION
AND COUNCIL PLAN 2021-2025

HOW THIS DOCUMENT
WORKS AND WHERE IT FITS

There are some other important
considerations to take into account in
this new planning cycle. The events of
2020 rearranged many priorities, but in
Buloke, the impacts felt were largely an
exacerbation of issues our community
had already told us needed attention,
for that reason there will be reference
to Covid-19 Recovery actions in the
planning document. Many of these
actions, if achieved, would address
long-term aspirations of our Buloke
communities. Examples of this are
connected access to services, especially
mental health services and addressing
internet blackspots.

We have some strong data through the
Primary Health Network, the Primary
Care Partnership, the Buloke, Loddon,
Gannawarra Health Needs Analysis
and the State of Buloke’s Children
and Young People’s Report. Critical
partnerships with service providers
and key stakeholders sit behind these
reports which have given a great
foundation for Council to continue

to work towards prevention, early
intervention and population health
outcomes.

Alongside this planning, the Buloke
Climate Change Adaptation and
Mitigation Strategy is being developed
which presents some key actions to
focus on as we move towards our
vision.

Outcomes of our last Council Plan,
including the Customer Service Charter,
Inclusiveness Plan, updated financial
systems, Volunteer Strategy, Rural Land
Use and Settlement Strategy, Economic
Development and Tourism Strategy will
also play into this plan with the actions
from those carrying through to what
we are hearing from community in their
aspirations.

Our newly adopted Community
Engagement Policy has shaped the way
we have put this document together.

There are many other considerations

to take into our forward planning,
including the proposed new Emergency
Management Act, recent Royal
Commissions and recommendations,
the incoming Disability Act 2020.

The Gender Equality Actis only in

its beginning stages as we write

this document, but it brings with it
significant and timely considerations to
take into our forward planning work.

In 2018, Council undertook an extensive
planning exercise which resulted in ten
individual community plans, feeding
into the Integrated Community Plan
under the heading of “Building Buloke
2030" Under the new Local Government
Act 2020, we have reviewed this vision
to “Beyond 2030" to form Buloke’s

long term community vision. Much
remains the same as that original 2018
aspiration as we take in the lessons of
2020 and build towards a better Buloke,
led by our community.

In this document, we set out the ten
year aspiration under each theme and
then lead into the four-year strategies
and actions which will guide Council is
achieving these long term aspirations.

These will then form Annual Plans.

The progress of these will be reported
on each quarter. A full review of this
document will be undertaken annually.
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BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL

LONG-TERM COMMUNITY VISION
AND COUNCIL PLAN 2021-2025

COMMUNITY
CONSULTATION

A range of community consuitation
activities were undertaken to form

this draft document which resulted in
high quality feedback from community
members.

Letters were issued to Community
Forums in December 2020 explaining
the upcoming community planning
process and a suite of tools were
provided to the groups to aid in the
revision and renewal of their own
community plans to feed into the
process of this planning cycle.

Listening Posts and Street Walks
were held in all ten communities, in
conjunction with the Buloke Library
Service, Both Councillors and Officers
were in attendance.

Flyers were sent to all residents
explaining the planning process

and ways to get involved. Three key
questions were included in the flyer

as well as ways to get involved in the
feedback process. These flyers were also
distributed as an insert in all three local
newspapers that cover the Buloke Shire
area.

An online survey was made available,
and hard copies also on offer for those
unable to connect online.

A total of 68 people filled in the online
survey, with each respondent spending
at least 30 minutes answering the 16
open-ended questions. The depth of
this engagement delivered more than
1,000 individual pieces of feedback

which have been analysed in the
production of this document.

Councillor and Officer attendance at
Community Forum meetings and key
gatherings during the consultation
period included explanation of the
planning process, ways to get involved
as well as feedback taken on the spot.

Survey Results:

AWy /
§ O
328 68

Number Number of
of views Submissions

31:52

Average
Completion
Time
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BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL

G-TERM COMMUNITY VISION
D COUNCIL PLAN 2021-2025

In engaging the community during the
draft stages of this document, and in
support of the above traditional and
face to face methods of engagement,
Council undertook a social media
campaign to capture the thoughts of
residents and engage each individual
community.

Engagement results
throughout the campaign

were:

Facebook post reach of 12,630
(average 790 per post).

Twitter impressions 3,386
(average 546 per post).

LinkedIn impressions 1,534
(average 384 per post).

During March (2021), a Community
Summit was held with invited members
of a diverse range of community
sectors coming together in Wycheproof
(numbers capped due to gathering
restrictions under Covid regulations)
with Councillors, Officers and Senior
Management. This deliberative
engagement session formed around
the four priority areas and empowered
attendees with information, data

and context as well as subject

matter experts to help engage in the
conversation and discuss strengths,
challenges and opportunities for the
ten-year vision and the next four years
of Council’s strategic direction.

This event resulted in more than 500
individual pieces of written feedback
during the two-hour event. The theme
that was the most active was the
topic of Tourism and Housing with 40
individual points raised.

All the received feedback has been
recorded and while not all of these
individual points are able to be
reflected in this document, the key
themes and common points have
been pulled through into the following
strategies and actions.

The rich resource of the feedback will
continue to guide this plan going
forward as annual plans are established
and work on individual community
plans continues.

Community Summit:

by

w U

100

500

Attendees Ideas and
feedback
. .
_——7 /% 40 sticky
‘- notes

Most popular
feedback station -
Tourism and Housing
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BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL

LONG-TERM COMMUNITY VISION
AND COUNCIL PLAN 2021-2025

MAYORS
MESSAGE

The Councillors and | are pleased to
present the Buloke Shire Council Long-

We also understand our challenges.
Strong consultation with our

Term Community Vision and Council
Plan 2021-2025.

This document is Council’s most
important, everything we do on behalf
of ratepayers and the community
relates to what is set out under our four
key themes:

community over many years together
with Council's work during the last
Council Plan period has identified key
challenges that we need to address.
This at a time that the world is
looking to emerge from the COVID-19
pandemic.

Like the pandemic, issues around

Our Built and Naturad climate change and waste reduction

Environment_ are not unique to Buloke. Whilst locally
Our Community Wellbeing we are challenged by the availability of
Our Economy quality housing stock, skills gaps, and
Our Councl and Community digital connectivity. All of which will
Leadership define our population and demography

in the years to come.

If our population is to grow, critical
issues such as these and support
service like childcare need to be
understood and addressed. This will
give families the tools they need to not
only survive, but thrive.

Council also needs to continue

to appropriately fund its ageing
infrastructure and control its asset
renewal gap. Our road and drainage
networks as well as an array of buildings
and other assets place an enormous
burden on our small ratepayer base.

Council and staff are looking forward
to working with the community, all
levels of government and external
stakeholders in Building a Better
Buloke.

oke is on the bubble, adding layers
our economy that is so strongly
rpinned by the agriculture sector.

Cr Daryl Warren
Mayor
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OUR

COUNCILLORS

LOWER AVOCA WARD
CR DAVID POLLARD CR CAROLYN STEWART
M: 0458 918 638 M: 0488 032 063
E: apollard@Buloke.vic.gov.au E: arstewart@Buloke.vic.gov.au
(r Pollard is currently serving a fourth (r. Stewart’s second term on Council has
term as Councillor. David's extensive seen her elected as a representative of
community outreach has included the Lower Avoca Ward. With a strong
involvement with Ambulance Victoria, commitment to ensuring future growth
the CFA, Scouts Victoria, along with and viability for the region, Carolyn's
being the driver of the community accountancy background, family
purchase of Chariton's Rex Theatre. involvement and farming commitments
David's lifetime experience on the at Buckrabanyule have her well placed
family farm near Wycheproof brings an to understand the future directions for
understanding of rural issues as well Buloke’s prosperity. Carolyn has served
as urban concems. A representative of two terms as Mayor from November
the Lower Avoca Ward since 2008 David 2018, 2019, and has also served on the
has served three terms as Mayor from Local Government Minister’s Mayoral
November 2011, 2016 and 2017, aswell ~ Advisory Panel in 2020.

as holding the role of Deputy Mayor
twice.

CR GRAEME MILNE

M: 0419126911
E: crmilne@Buloke.vic.gov.au

. Milne has begun his third term as
Councillor representing the Mount
Jeffcott Ward. Passionate about being

a voice for the people, Graeme believes
Buloke will continue to build on its
successes and provide valuable outcomes
for all ratepayers and residents. An active
volunteer in the Watchem community,
Graeme's skills are focused on providing
strong representation for all across the
wider Buloke region. Graeme served as
Deputy Mayor from November 2016 to
November 2017.

BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL 1 0

LONG-TERM COMMUNITY VISION
AND COUNCIL PLAN 2021-2025

CR BRONWYN SIMPSON

M: 0436 914 253
E: arsimpson@Buloke.vic.gov.au

(Cr. Simpson is commencing her
second term on Council - this time as
a representative for the Mount Jeffcott
Ward where she holds part-time

Bronwyn is focused on maximising the
potential of the Coundl Plan, within
budget, and in ways which will enhance
the liveability of Buloke. Environment,
economic development and advocacy
for rural issues are highlighted, and her
background in customer relations and
committee membership are a plus for
community engagement.
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MOUNT JEFFCOTT WARD

November 2017 and November 2019.

MALLEE WARD

bring a fresh approach to Council.

CR DARYL WARREN CR ALAN GETLEY CRDAVID VIS

(MAYOR) M: 0437 876 726 (DEPUTY MAYOR)

M: 0427 194422 E: crgetley@Buloke.vic.gov.au M:0488 032723

E: crwarren@Buloke.vic.gov.au Afirstterm Councillr, . Getley is E: crvis@Buloke.vic.gov.au

(r. Warren has been elected forasecond ~ representing the Mallee Ward. Alan is Cr. Vis has returned for a second term
term on Council. Daryl hasbeen heavily ~ keen to see employment opportunities to represent the Mallee Ward. With a
involved in numerous community grow through attracting more industry vision to help make Buloke a thriving
initiatives, and is keen to see Bulokeasa to Buloke, along with retaining place tolive and visit, David has been
vibrant, welcoming region. Witha‘an-  young people in area. Building strong a passionate advocate for his local
do” attitude and an ability to respond communication through greater area, and for the growth of the wider
willingly to resident’s needs, financial community interaction and exploring Buloke region. Building on his Council
accountability - now and for the future —  ways of easing the rate burden arealso.  experience, David believes a good
isalso an integral part of his vision. Daryl ~ Key areas offocus. Alan has embraced working relationship with Coundil
wasvoted in as Mayor in November 2020 leadership roles across many sectors of leadership team will bring continued
and served as Deputy Mayor between the Chariton community, and seeks to progress over the next few years.
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LONG-TERM COMMUNITY VISION
AND COUNCIL PLAN 2021-2025

HOW WE WILL BUILD
A BETTER BULOKE

PRIORITY 1:
OUR BUILT AND
NATURAL
ENVIRONMENT

PRIORITY2:
OUR COMMUNITY
WELLBEING

PRIORITY 3:
OUR ECONOMY

PRIORITY 4:

OUR COUNCIL AND
COMMUNITY
LEADERSHIP

The vision:

Our future Buloke has quality, safe and accessible infrastructure valued by and responsive to the
community alongside attractive streetscapes and a protected and celebrated natural environment
reflecting Buloke pride.

The vision:

Our future Buloke. .. is a welcoming, well-connected and inclusive community built around social
connections for all age groups and backgrounds and access to, as well as ongoing advocacy for, vital
services.

The vision:

Our future Buloke. ... is an innovative and strong economy with agriculture, small business and
industry capitalising on new ideas to provide a range of employment and tourism opportunities
backed by the services, connectivity and housing to achieve population stability.

The vision:

Our future Buloke.. . is dynamically led by a council that informs community, has active partnerships,
authentic advocacy and quality customer service delivering valued responsive community services in a
responsible way.
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OUR COMMUNITY

PO P U I.ATI 0 N . AGE Buloke (S) %

Median Age 51 -
2016 Census: 0-4 years 253 4.1
5-9 years 357 58
PEOPLE 6,201 10-14 years 383 6.2
5 - 15-19 years 345 5.6
F E M A L E 49 .40/0 20-24 years 195 3.2
" 25-29 years 252 4.1
(4) 30-34 years 215 3.5
MA LE 50'6 /O 35-39 years 245 40
40-44 years 307 5.0
45-49 years 402 6.5
50-54 years 454 73
55-59 years 516 8.3
ESTIMATED 60-64 years 519 8.4
65-69 years 486 7.9

R ES I D E N T 70-74 years 340 55

75-79 years 345 56
POPULATION: a0 8 yeors 54
85 years and over 336 5.4

2 o 1 6: 6, 284 Estimated resident population (ERP) is the official Australian Bureau of Statistics

(ABS) measure of the population of areas in Australia according to a usual residence

population concept. Usual residence is that place where each person has lived or
2 02 1 : 6,0 7 1 intends to live for six months or more from the reference date for data collection.

It refers to all people, regardless of nationality or citizenship, who usually live in

Australia, with the exception of foreign diplomatic personnel and their families.

2 0 2 6 ° 5 7 4 2 Itincludes usual residents who are overseas for less than 12 months. It exdudes
4 4 overseas visitors who are in Australia for less than 12 months.
In census years, ERPs are derived using data from the Census of Population and
Housing and Post Enumeration Survey, with an allowance for the number of residents
2 0 3 1 : 5 s 3 9 2 temporarily overseas (RT0s) at the census date. For post-censal years ERPs are

calculated using mathematical models and indicator data such as dwelling approvals,
Medicare enrolments managed by the Australian Government Department of Human
Services and Australian Hectoral Roll enrolments managed by the Australian Electoral
Commission.Population estimates for Australia and the states and temitories are
updated by adding to the estimated population at the beginning of each period the
components of natural increase (births minus deaths, on a usual residence basis) and
net overseas migration.

Estimates of the resident populations as at 30 June are released annually for all
Statistical Areas Level 2 (SA2s) and Local Government Areas (LGAs) in Australia. The
estimates are generally revised 12 months later and final estimates are available after
the following census. (Remplan)
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DEMOGRAPHIC
STATS

Population Median Age Buloke’s Children People aged
population aged 65 years
identifies as 0-14 years and over

Aboriginal and/
or Torres Strait
Islander

i C

6,201 50.7yrs

1.1%

16.1%

28.2%

Households in Buloke
are not connected
to the Internet
{compared to state
average 14.1%.

N AT
1 -
2 02 people

AVG Household Size
{Source: ABS Census 2016}

14.1%

One Parent
Families

&

185

People that
only spoke
English
at home

88.4%

Of all households in Buloke:

62 09% Were family households
3 403 % Were single person households

2.8%

Were group households

People that
had both
parents born
in Australia

Had both
parents born
overseas

1%
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Median weekly Persons 15+
PERSONAL income Earning Less
15+ than $300pw

Employed people in Buloke:

1 2 07% Worked 1 to 15 hours
1 009% Worked 16 to 24 hours
4606% Worked 40 hours or more

8474  24.6%
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OUR SERVICE

STATS

WASTE

TWO landfills O
located in Donald and Birchip.

THREE Transfer Stations

located in Charlton, Wycheproof and
Sea Lake.

ONE small recycle centre
in Watchem.

in2019-2020
Kerbside
2 1 64 rubbish
collected
tonnes
Kerbside
8 7 4 recycles
collected
tonnes
Green Waste
60 2 collected at
all sites
tonnes
Drummuster
16,205 Chemical
Drums
collected

h

(5

v

5,913 HOURS

of service delivered into
people’s homes under the
Commonwealth Home
Support Program.

Council is considered a leader in

the Local Government sector in its

use of social media. Be it in times of
celebration or emergency, Council

has one of the broadest reaches to its
community of all 79 Victorian Local
Government Areas with around 45%

of its population following Council’s
Facebook page. In February 2021
Council’s Facebook page was evaluated
as the second most engaging Facebook
offering of all Victorian Councils by
Shunt, an independent social media
analytical authority. Council operates
Facebook, Twitter, LinkedIn accounts
with a combined followership of

4,110. (*Figure taken at 31 March
2021.) Council also operates a YouTube
channel to broadcast Ordinary
Meetings of Council and Story Time
library resources amongst other media.

BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL

LONG-TERM COMMUNITY VISION
AND COUNCIL PLAN 2021-2025

5,313km

of Roads

900km

of Sealed Roads

700km

of Gravel Roads

Minor (3595km)

A Limited Access Road/Track provides
primarily access to undeveloped
properties in rural areas

Collector (311km)
A Collector Road provides primarily a
feeder service to Link Roads.

it provides access to local properties in
both rural and town areas and access to
moderate local rural industries

Access (1196 km)

An Access Road provides primarily
direct access to occupied residential
properties and industries in urban and
rural areas.

Link Roads (211 km)

A Link Road provides primarily for
collecting and distributing traffic from
local areas to the wider Arterial Road
Network.

16
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OUR COMMUNITY
STRENGTHS

AGRICULTURE

The Agricultural industry is by far the
provider of the most jobs in the Buloke
Shire. In the 2016 Census, 32.17% of
Buloke’s population were employed
under the Agriculture, Forestry and
Fishing Industry. The second highest
employer by industry was the Health
Care and Social Assistance area at
13.36%. The increasing diversity in the
agricultural sector, through intensive
agriculture, on-farm micro operations,
and value-adding opportunities

right through to farm-based tourism
continues to be a key strength of the
Buloke region. The industries servicing
the sector, including machinery
dealerships, rural supply businesses
and research bodies also present a
key strength as a flow on effect from
the Agricultural sector. With a focus
on the changing climate, paddock-to-
plate, and renewed interest in regional
Victoria, Buloke’s agricultural sector

is at the innovative leading edge and
presents a wealth of potential.

TOURISM

The ‘trail experience’ Buloke presents
is gaining significant spotlight and
momentum since the last Council
Plan cycle. Lakes, local businesses,
silo and mural art, playspaces, op
shops all encourage visitors to spend
time moving around the Buloke

area. Infrastructure projects continue
to build on this attraction with the
lockdown experience of 2020 also
injecting a renewed interest in local,
regional tourism. Water-based tourism
(lakes and rivers) is a key component
of Buloke's attraction to visitors.
Building on the attraction of campers
and caravanners and permanent
accommodation options continue to
build on this strength.

VOLUNTEERISM

In the 2016 Census, it was recorded
that 46.1% of Buloke's population
volunteer. This has been a long-held
strength of Buloke. With the growing
tourism opportunities, the events

and attractions that make Buloke

a great place to visit can almost

always be traced back to a dedicated
band of volunteers. Anecdotal
evidence suggests the rate of Buloke
volunteering is even higher than the
census reported data as many giving
their time in our communities don't
recognise it as formal volunteering.
Emergency response, sports and service
clubs, community transport, events
committees are just some of the groups
based on volunteering in Buloke. The
prevalence of volunteering contributes
heavily to the sense of community and
connectedness which came through as
a key reason why people love Buloke
in our community consultation for this
document.

OUR SPACE

On average, each Buloke resident has
1.3 square kilometres to themselves.
The expansive area Buloke covers offers
plenty of space to live, work and play.
The open space and natural attractions
are also gaining notoriety as a great
place to visit with the big skies of
Buloke sitting 276 kms from Melbourne
and 265km from Mildura, served by
the Calder and Sunraysia highways.
The space of Buloke also offers great
potential in key economic development
and tourism areas.

ACTIVATED
COMMUNITIES

Led by Buloke's high rate of
volunteerism, the communities and
districts within the area show great
motivation and action to respond

to community need, take advantage
of opportunities and work together

to achieve great places to live. The
forward-focus and activated nature of
Buloke communities has seen a record
investment in infrastructure projects
across the footprint and robust,
dynamic community plans which aid
in bringing together the place-based
vision to achieve long term goals.
Innovative businesses, community
enterprise and a solutions-focussed
attitude also contribute to this strength.



Buloke Shire Council Special Meeting Agenda Wednesday, 16 June 2021
3.1.3 Council Plan 2021 - 2025 and Long Term Community Vision
Attachment 1  Buloke Shire Long-Term Communlty Vision and Council Plan 2021-2025.

oﬁt%endshlps
between towns”

up great
place
to live.”




Buloke Shire Council Special Meeting Agenda

3.13

Attachment 1

Council Plan 2021 - 2025 and Long Term Community Vision

Wednesday, 16 June 2021

Buloke Shire Long-Term Community Vision and Council Plan 2021-2025.

19

BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL

LONG-TERM COMMUNITY VISION
AND COUNCIL PLAN 2021-2025

OUR COMMUNITY
CHALLENGES

DIVERSE AND QUALITY
HOUSING STOCK

Demand for a range of quality housing
options across sectors of the Buloke
community has been a long-term
challenge in the Buloke Shire. The
extra pressure brought about by the
2020 lockdown, as well as the renewed
interest in rural living has further
exacerbated this challenge. Access to
social housing, step-down housing

for older residents looking to down
size from their multiple bedroom
detached dwellings or move into
town from the farm, right through

to family-friendly housing and that
which suits the professional end of
the market all present challenges for
Buloke. Identification and availability
of land to build and develop is also

a key component of this challenge.
Addressing derelict and vacant housing
is also a key concern of the Buloke
community.

ASSET RENEWAL GAP

Ageing infrastructure has been a long-
term challenge in the Buloke Shire.
The enormous asset burden on a small
rate payer base presents an ongoing
challenge of sourcing appropriate
funds to reduce the asset renewal gap
on Buloke's extensive road network as
well as key community infrastructure
such as Town Halls, pools and sports
precincts. Upgrading the ageing
drainage network across Buloke and
ensuring accessibility considerations
are taken into account to cater for
Buloke's population demographic

all bring together the challenge of
ensuring required investment into the
priority areas.

DIGITAL CONNECTIVITY

Black spot issues and sub-standard
access to quality internet speeds has
an impact across the population. This
was also recorded as a community
challenge in our 2017-2021 Council
Plan. While some headway has been
made on rectifying black spot areas,
the lack of consistent access to online
options has become considerably
more noticeable following the
sweeping move and focus on remote
working, study, telehealth and finding
connection through online means that
2020 brought about. Beyond mobile
phone coverage, reducing the rural
disadvantage in dwelling and business
access to the internet is a key Buloke
challenge.

CLIMATE CHANGE

The wide-reaching impacts associated
with Climate Change present an
adaptation challenge for the Buloke
Shire. Plenty of opportunity is also
present in this adaptation challenge.
Innovating new ways to achieve
outcomes with a softer touch on the
planet, adapting to a climate with more
extremes, enhancing renewable options
and understanding the combined
community approach needed for the
long-term risk reduction.

WASTE

In March 2020, the State Government
announced its Circular Economy Policy
which will transform the recycling
industry in Victoria. Working towards

a reduction in waste to landfill,
resource recovery and addressing
illegal dumping alongside community
education in a small, rural Shire such as
Buloke.

SKILLS GAPS

The 2019 Nous Report into Workforce
and Training Need in the Buloke

Shire found established demand for
workers that cannot be met locally.
Consequently, skills are a secondary
priority to finding individuals that

can turn up and do the work. This is
most evident in community services
and agricultural roles and some
manufacturers. Selected businesses
in other industries faced similar
constraints. Critical issues exist around
childcare which limits the ability for
workers, particularly women, to work
in the region and the scarcity of rental
accommodation creates barriers for
people to move to the region. This
report also identified the risk of the
Buloke Shire becoming disconnected
from the tertiary education system.

COVID RECOVERY

There was a significant impact on
Buloke communities as a result of both
the adaptation to CovidSafe living as
well as the lockdowns, cancellation of
sport and events, impact on businesses
and loss of connection opportunities.
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Investment in
communlty to
upllft practical
sustamablllty

Y 7

|t|a|t|ves
ﬁ A »-H

»engagement
~and support of
thelocal youth
groups. B

“More
money spent
on rural

- roads”.
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Adult population

overweight.

48.5% 50.8%

Buloke Victoria

Children fully immunised at
1 year of age (2018)

{Australian Childhood
irmmunisation Register).

98.2% 94.39,

Buloke Victoria

BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL 22
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Smoking during pregnancy

(2012-2014) =SS

{Data Source: PHIDU from ABS
Census 2011 & 2016).

26.7%

~ Buloke

15%

Victoria

Median Age of death.
{Data Source: Murray PHN)

86 85 80 79
Males

Females
Buloke | Victoria

BIRTH RATES:
Total Fertility Rate.

2.38% 1.63%

Buloke Victoria

Adult population /
complied with fruit  \
consumption guidelines.

39.7% 43.2%

Buloke Victoria

w DENTAL HEALTH (Data source: Murray PHN):

Adult population
fair/poor self-reported
dental health.

36% 24.4%

Buloke Victoria

Children {0-5 years)
presenting with at least one
decayed, missing or filled
(baby) or permanent (adult)
tooth, attending public
dental services.

50%

| Buloke

26%

Victoria

Potentially preventable
hospitalisations dental
conditions for children aged
0-9 years, standardised rate
per 1,000 persons.

10.1%

Buloke

6.1%

Victoria

Estimated number of people
with high, or very

high, levels of

psychological distress.

(based on K10 score)
[ASR per 100).

11.6% 13.3%

Buloke Victoria

Avoidable deaths
from suicide and
self-inflicted
injuries, persons
aged 0-74 years.
{average annual ASR per 100,000}

225 10.1

Buloke Victoria

D

Adult population
increased risk of injury
from a single

occasion

of drinking.

52.9% 439,

v Buloke Victoria

Buloke has the HIGHEST rate of participation in organised

sport in Victoria.

(Sport Participation in Victoria, VicHealth, 2019).

31%



Buloke Shire Council Special Meeting Agenda Wednesday, 16 June 2021
3.1.3 Council Plan 2021 - 2025 and Long Term Community Vision
Attachment 1  Buloke Shire Long-Term Community Vision and Council Plan 2021-2025.

23 BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL

LONG-TERM COMMUNITY VISION
AND COUNCIL PLAN 2021-2025

OUR HEALTH AND
WELLBEING
CHALLENGES

The Buloke 2030 Community Planning process, which was undertaken in 2018 identified the following health wellbeing
challenges in Buloke, these were consistent with the 2020/21 Community Consultation in the process of forming this document:

Ageing community Attracting and retaining GP’s

Declining population Maintaining and increasing place-based health and
wellbeing services

High number of lone households Travel required to access specialist medical services
Youth retention Volunteer fatigue

Lack of access to childcare Access to public transportation

services

Accessing health and wellbeing Providing support for vulnerable residents; and

services, particularly mental
health services

Continuity of health and wellbeing Ensuring residents across all socio-economic
services backgrounds are socially connected.

Reduced access to digital and
telecommunication connectivity

Data shows that the Loddon/Buloke/Gannawarra region has over 1000 dependent
children in over 600 families earning less than $650 per week and over one third of all
young people in the region:

2R
D

leaving/ left school early, which
impacts on their income and life
chances.

have low wellbeing, with lower
than average scores on optimism,
self-esteem, happiness and
absence of sadness
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The State of Buloke’s Children and Young People’s Report identified the following Health
and Wellbeing challenges for our younger residents:

Physical Health and Wellbeing Social Competence
Buloke Victoria Buloke Victoria

On Track 71.2% 81% On Track 69.2% 77.3%
At Risk 7.7% 10.8% At Risk 17.3% 13.9%
Vulnerable 21.2% 8.2% Vulnerable 13.5% 8.8%

* Child is ready each day healthy and * Child gets along with others and shares,
independent, and has excellent gross and is self confident.
fine motor skills.

Data Source AEDC 2018

D Data Source AEDC 2018

is able to concentrate, helps others,

Data Source AEDC 2018

Communication Skills &
General Knowledge

Vulnerable in 1 or More Domain(s)
Buloke: 30.8%

Buloke Victoria Victoria: 19.9%
On Track 75.0% 79.4%
At Risk 13.5% 13.2%

Vulnerable 11.5% 7.4%

Vulnerable in 2 or More Domain(s)

Buloke: 17.3%

Victoria: 10.1%
* Child can tell a story, communicate with

adults and children, articulate %
themselves. ?
Data Source AEDC 2018

The Buloke, Loddon, Gannawarra Strategic \ . .
Health Partnership identified four evidence \ Provide more opportunities

Data Source AEDC 2018

based priority needs, which are: for teenagers to have fun
() eart and Resoiratory Health social interaction as a
N\ — eart an espiratory Hea
§.E< whole Buloke group. 77
Le@:*/s Mental Health
:’_ﬁ?\“\‘ .
™ Diabetes \\ Would be nice

to have access
Oral Health to a dentist! 7/
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OUR HEALTH AND
WELLBEING STRENGTHS

SPORTS PARTICIPATION

A VicHealth Research Study into
organised sport participation which
was released in 2021 found the Buloke
Shire has the highest overall sport
participation rate in the state,
Participation was 31% in the Buloke
Shire, in the Regional- other area.

The highest participation rates in the
other areas were: Regional- growth:
Surf Coast, 25%; Metropolitan- other:
Nillumbik 23%; and Metropolitan-
growth: Cardinia, 14%. This report took
into account player registrations across
12 key sports.

Strong player registration in organised
sport links with the high rate of
volunteerism in the Buloke Shire.
Membership of Sports Groups in Buloke
also tops the state at 50.2% in the last
Census.

IMMUNISATION RATES

SENSE OF COMMUNITY

Respondents to the survey undertaken
in the preparation of this document
highlighted the sense of community
as the thing they love the most

about Buloke, Caring communities,
connections between different
communities and the willingness of
community members to rally in tough
times and support each other were all
highlighted as key components in this.
The community advocacy undertaken
on behalf of health and wellbeing
challenges, access to services and
better connected approaches is also a
strength in Buloke.

Smoking rates are below
the state average, The
percentage of the aduit
population current {i.e.
daily or occasional)
smokers in Buloke is
13.2% compared to the
Victorian average of 16.7%

13.2% 16.7%

The rate of children in immunisations in Buloke has consistently been above the State average.

Buloke
Children fully immunised at 1 year of age % 98.2
Children fully immunised at 2 years of age % 96.4
Children fully immunised at 5 years of age % 100
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OUR HEALTH

AND

WELLBEING
PRIORITIES

Maintaining a sustained focus on
preventable causes of poor health and
wellbeing will lead to better community
health outcomes. Section 26 of the Health
and Wellbeing Act specifies a Municipal
Public Health and Wellbeing Plan must
identify goals and strategies based on
available evidence for creating a local
community in which people can achieve
maximum health and wellbeing.
We are incorporating our Municipal Public
Health and Wellbeing Plan into this core
document because the factors of influence
over the health and wellbeing in our
communities are widespread throughout
our organisation and partnerships and
don't just stand alone in one area. As
demonstrated by the above diagram
(from page 7 of the Victorian Public
Health and Wellbeing Plan 2019-2023),
these influencing factors are reflected
throughout the following priorities and
strategies outlined in both our four-year
Council Plan and Long Term Community
Vision,
In particular, following health and
wellbeing priorities will be the focus for
the next four years to not only build on
existing work with our key partners and
stakeholders, but also to address areas of
concern highlighted in the data, continue
to build on strengths and respond to the
feedback from our community. These
priorities have been imbedded across the
key areas of the four-year Council Plan,
below some examples are indicated where
the priorities link with these strategies.
« Addressing Contributing Factors to
Chronic Health Issues (2.1.1, 2.3.3,2.4.3)
« Increasing Active Living
(1.3.3,14.3,14.4)
« Improving Mental Wellbeing
(21.1,24.,243,244)
« Tackling Climate Change and its Impact
on Health (1.1.1)
« Address Access to Appropriate Housing
(1.2)
- Improve Outcomes for the Early Years

(2.1.2,23.2,244,333)

«Improve Outcomes for Young People’s
Health and Wellbeing (2.1.2, 2.1.4, 243,
244,413)

« Connect and Strengthen Partnerships for
our Older Population (1.2.2, 1.4.4,2.1.2,
224,243,244,33.3,343)

The Victorian Public Health and Wellbeing

Plan 2019-2023 includes 10 priorities and

4 Focus Areas. Our Health and Wellbeing

priorities align with two (Increasing Active

Living and Tackling Climate Change and

its Impact on Health) of these four focus

areas as part of our Long-term Community

Vision and Council Plan. Other Victorian

Priorities (for example, Increasing Healthy

Eating, Reducing Injury, Preventing all

forms of violence , Improving Mental

Wellbeing, Improving Sexual and

Reproductive Health, Reducing Tobacco-

Related Harm, Reducing Harmful Alcohol

and Drug Use are reflected through work

in addressing contributing factors to
chronic disease, and increasing wellbeing
outcomes for target cohorts).

Implementation and progress towards

outcomes/impacts will be reviewed

annually with our partners and processes
established for ongoing community
involvement.

IMPORTANCE OF EQUITY

Fair and equitable access to our services
and facilities is a key principle of our work,
regardless of gender, age, background,
location and abilities. As referenced in
Strategy 2.2, Buloke Shire's Inclusiveness
Plan has identified several key areas to
focus on in order to continue to maintain
an emphasis on equity.

PARTNERSHIPS

Partnerships are key to working towards
better health and wellbeing outcomes for
our communities. Our vision of “Building

a Better Buloke” is just as much about
building better place-based outcomes
through partnerships as it is about
building better infrastructure. Several of
these partnership approaches are outlined

BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL 26

LONG-TERM COMMUNITY VISION
AND COUNCIL PLAN 2021-2025

Source: Adopted from Dahigren & Whitehead 1991

in the following pages. In particular, we
have been successful in funding through
a VicHealth Local Government Partnership
to focus on increased wellbeing outcomes
for our young people. This is a direct
action of analysis of data (particularly

the State of Buloke’s Children and Young
People’s Report and the Inclusiveness
Plan) and overwhelming feedback from
our community on the need to re-set our
focus in this area. This Partnership will
span the duration of three years and be
directly linked with our Municipal Health
and Wellbeing Plan with a key principle of
being young people’s voices through to
Council Planning in a genuine way. This
will link with our Strong Youth, Strong
Communities partnership which spans
three Local Government Areas and links
with the health and education sector.

The Strong Children, Strong Families
Partnership has a similar focus on the early
years (0-8) with a goal of children arriving
at school ready to learn by addressing
systematic issues, one child at a time,
Both of these partnerships are backed by
a robust research component which aims
to connect the dots in data gathering in

a comprehensive monitoring approach

to shape evidence-based investment in
interventions.

Based on these successful approaches,
one of the actions for the next four years
to create a similar approach for our

older residents, building on the Royal
Commission into Aged Care.

In an overall health approach, partnership
opportunities through the Southern
Mallee Primary Care Partnership enable

a community-led approach to key areas
such a Gender Equality, Prevention of
Violence Against Women and Mental
Wellbeing.

The Buloke, Loddon, Gannawarra Health
Partnership is also a key component to
working towards these priorities. This
partnership presents the ability to work
together across geographical and sectorial
boundaries on common issues.
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PRIORITY 1
OUR BUII.T

LONG TERM VISION:

Our future Buloke has quality, safe and accessible infrastructure valued by and
responsive to the community alongside attractive streetscapes and a protected and
celebrated natural environment reflecting Buloke pride.

Long Term Aspirations:

Accessible buildings and spaces. A collaborative approach to safe, well designed and well
maintained local and arterial road network.

Inclusive footpath and kerb planning. Quality infrastructure and multi-use assets that are well
maintained and used.

Attractive streetscapes and town entrances that are well Natural areas are preserved and enjoyed.
maintained and presented.

Effective waste and resource recovery. Buildings and houses well kept and maintained to achieve
collective town pride.

Upgraded drainage. Housing diversity to suit various cohorts.

An environmentally aware community. Renewable energy in action.

Effective weed and pest management. Active outdoor spaces
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OUR BUILT AND NATURAL
ENVIRONMENT
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Long Term Strategies:

Strategy Council’s Role

1. Maintain, develop and plan for viable, multi-use infrastructure and assets Leader Provider
that respond to community needs and priorities.

2. Enhance parks and public spaces so they are welcoming, safe and Leader Provider

accessible to encourage active recreation and participation.

W

. Review built community assets and explore opportunities for shared

facilities and resources.

Leader Facilitator

. Work with key stakeholders to provide a safe road network and keep the

community well informed.

Provider Partner Supporter

v

. Work together with communities to activate town centres and entrances

and keep these well maintained.

Leader Provider

.Support local initiatives to encourage residents to tidy up their

properties and the community.

Partner Facilitator

7.Develop and enhance walking and cycling paths with a connected Leader Provider
approach.

8.Improve accessibility to buildings and public facilities for all community Regulator Supporter
members.

9. Educate, promote and support the community in implementing waste Leader Provider Regulator
minimisation and management strategies.

10. Actively use, pramote and support the use of renewable energy Leader Partner Supporter

SOUICes. Facilitator
11, Protect, enhance and manage natural resources, flora and fauna and Provider Partner

waterways.
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OUR BUILT AND NATURAL
ENVIRONMENT

COUNCIL PLAN 2021-2025
STRATEGIES

1.1 WORKTOWARDS SUSTAINABILITY
1.1 Develop and implement actionable plans from the Buloke Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation Strategy.
1.1.2 Implement key initiatives from the Buloke Shire Waste and Resource Recovery Strategy 2020-2025, including

campaigns to target illegal dumping and reviewing the feasibility of extending the kerbside rubbish and
recycling offering.

1.1.3 Partner with business and community to establish innovative solutions to rubbish removal.

1.14 Support, localise and track regional bulk-buy solar initiatives and support community groups and buildings to
go solar.

1.1.5 Investigate opportunities to improve stormwater harvesting and the use of reclaimed/recycled materials in key

community assets.

1.2 SUITABLE HOUSING OPTIONS

1.2.1 Build on the Wimmera Southern Mallee Housing Study to identify opportunities for Council and the
community to enhance diversity in housing stock.

1.2.2 Support Community Housing initiatives to provide suitable step-down housing for older population.

1.23 Advocate for quality and affordable social housing options.

1.2.4 Encourage housing development and investment suitable to community needs and professional housing
options.

1.3 AN ATTRACTIVE AND WELL MAINTAINED BULOKE

1.3.1 Develop and fund the implementation of drainage improvement plans in key flooding hotspots.

1.3.2 Prioritise the improvement of maintenance to town parks and other urban infrastructure across the Shire and
enhance green spaces through irrigation and tree planting initiatives.

1.3.3 Implement the Buloke Playspace Trail and develop masterplans for playgrounds in other key locations.

1.3.4 Identify and seek funding for opportunities to rationalise Council’s excess built assets and invest into multi-use
facilities.

1.4 A SAFE AND ACTIVE BULOKE

1.4.1 Strengthen relationship with Regional Roads Victoria and other transport authorities to engage and inform the
community.

1.4.2 Prioritise capital works investment into renewal of roads and road-related infrastructure, informed by Council’s
Asset Plans,

1.4.3 Seek funding for the development and implementation of masterplans for active recreation facilities, including

Aquatic Strategy, Walking and Cycling Plans and Birchip and Sea Lake Recreation Reserve Masterplans.
1.4.4 Identify accessible mobility maps in main townships, linking retail, health and community facilities.




Buloke Shire Council Special Meeting Agenda

3.1.3 Council Plan 2021 - 2025 and Long Term Community Vision

Attachment 1

Wednesday, 16 June 2021

Buloke Shire Long-Term Community Vision and Council Plan 2021-2025.

OUR BUILT AND NATURAL

ENVIRONMENT

INDICATORS

Actions from Climate Adaptation and
Mitigation Strategy Achieved

Uptake of Solar Bulk Buy Initiatives

Reduce waste to landfill as per the
waste strategy and resource recovery

Real Estate indications on housing
waitlists and uptake of housing
options

Maloney’s road quality report
Customer satisfaction survey results

Parks and Urban maintenance
requests

CURRENT STRATEGIES
AND PLANS
Waste and Resource Recovery Strategy

Climate Adaptation and Mitigation
Strategy

Wimmera Mallee Housing study
Regional Climate Strategies
CMA Strategic Plans
Inclusiveness Plan

Rural Land Use and Settlement
Strategy

Economic Development and Tourism
Strategy

Playspace Masterplan
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ADVOCACY AND
LOBBYING

Social Housing

Waste

Road Asset Renewal Gap

Funding Active Recreation
Opportunities in preventative health
space.

Road, Rail and Transport Authorities

Telecommunication Authorities
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LONG TERM VISION:

Our future Buloke... is a welcoming, well-connected and inclusive community built
around social connections for all age groups and backgrounds and access to, as well
as ongoing advocacy for, vital services.

Long Term Aspirations:

.> A well connected and inclusive community that is A collaborative approach to safe, well designed and
welcoming of diversity. well maintained local and arterial road network.
’ Free from violence. Continuity of healthcare.
Early years focus. A wide range of activities and connection opportunities &
for children and young people. 4
Support and connection for vulnerable residents. Comprehensive and quality place based GP services. |
Infrastructure and programs to support A connected Buloke where loneliness is reduced.

physical activity. 1 |
as)

A connected approach to support young people in all Affordable, accessible mental health services g:’, A
. aspects of their lives and have a genuine youth voice in alongside reduced stigma. : ,f?" ‘%
Council Planning. PERTRE

Quality, well-supported schools.
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OUR COMMUNITY
WELLBEING
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Long Term Strategies:

Strategy

Council’s Role

1. Work with key stakeholders to lobby for effective place-based health and
wellbeing services in the Buloke Shire.

Facilitator Supporter

2. Work with key stakeholders to increase community understanding of Supporter
the availability of health and wellbeing services across the Buloke Shire
alongside health literacy.

3. Increase digital literacy to enable uptake of tele-health options and Supporter
include as key advocacy point for reliable internet access.

4, Advocate for fit-for-purpose rebate schemes (for example, Childcare Supporter

Subsidy, Victorian Patient Transport Rebate).

5. Create and support opportunities that encourage community wellbeing,
social connections and inclusion and active and healthy lifestyles.

Provider Partner

6. Work with key stakeholders to address social disadvantage backed by
data, evidence and lived experience.

Provider Supporter

7. Support community-led initiatives to welcome newcomers.

Leader

8. Continue to support community driven primary prevention responses
to key issues of concern, including family violence, community inclusion
and mental health.

Supporter Partner

9. Offer/actively support a range of non-sport activities, events and leisure Provider Partner
opportunities for residents of all ages including children and young
people.
10. Provide a range of learning and skill development opportunities for all Supporter
stages of life.
11. Continue to lobby Government for improved, connected and viable Supporter

transport services across, and beyond, the Buloke Shire.

12. Work towards population attraction and retention.

Leader Supporter
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OUR COMMUNITY
WELLBEING

COUNCIL PLAN 2021-2025
STRATEGIES

2.1 PARTNERSHIPS TO OUTCOMES

214 Work within the Buloke, Loddon, Gannawarra Health Needs Analysis to address identified issues; heart and
respiratory health, mental health, oral health and diabetes with health services.

2.1.2 Strengthen and explore partnerships with a dedicated focus to cohorts: Strong Families, Strong Children
Partnership (0-8); Strong Youth, Strong Communities alongside VicHealth Local Government Partnership (9-19)
and continue to evolve this through to 60+ to address systems-based issues,

213 Support and connect Young Professionals Networks and address skills training gaps as identified in the 2019
Nous Workforce Development and Training Needs in the Buloke Shire report.

214 Facilitate a genuine youth voice in Council and Community Planning to achieve better outcomes for young
people’s health and wellbeing.

2.2 INCLUSIVENESS PLAN IN ACTION

2.2.1 Implement and regularly report on the Buloke Inclusiveness Plan and update as needed.

2.2.2 Redevelop, implement and report on a Gender Equality Plan and imbed Gender Equality Act into forward work.

2.2.3 Work with local Registered Aboriginal Parties to strengthen relationships with Council and community.

224 Create a "Holding Buloke’s Wisdom" partnership for 60+ to help navigating services and ageing in place
priorities.

2.3 WELL SUPPORTED COMMUNITY

2.3.1 Continue to develop the Library Service through a dedicated and updated service plan and VAGO
recommendations and closer connection of customer service and library.

2.3.2 Actively work with Early Years Providers to improve the early childhood care and education service offerings
across the Shire.

2.3.3 Strengthen Strategic Health Partnerships to overcome the many boundaries that cross the Buloke Shire.

2.3.4 Understand and support Covid-19 recovery and adaptation strategies and actions in a place-based way.

2.4 INCREASED COMMUNITY WELLBEING

2.4.1 Continue to advocate for improved mental health services and utilise local resources such as the Five Ways to
Wellbeing Framework to encourage healthy lifestyles

2.4.2 Support the renewal and implementation of township community plans, including the development of
masterplans, to drive improved community connectedness and outcomes.

2.4.3 Champion advocacy on matters that improve connectivity of residents, including public and community
transport needs, telehealth and programs offering social connection.

24.4 Sustain advocacy around quality of care and access to services, both place based and outreach.
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OUR COMMUNITY
WELLBEING

INDICATORS

Progress on the Buloke, Loddon,
Gannawarra Health Needs Analysis
Action Plan.

Progress Reports on the Buloke Shire
Inclusiveness Plan.

Positive shift in downward trends
as identified in the State of Buloke's
Children and Youth Report.

Review of recommendations achieved
from the 2019 Nous Workforce
Development and Training Needs in
the Buloke Shire report.

All Community Plans reviewed and
renewed.

Covid Recovery Actions supported.

Visible and genuine representation
from young people.

Gender Equity Plan and Act
requirements upheld.

CURRENT STRATEGIES
AND PLANS
Buloke Shire Inclusiveness Plan

Ten Buloke Commmunity 2030
Community Plans

Buloke, Loddon, Gannawarra Health
Needs Analysis

State of Buloke's Children and Youth
Report.

Loddon Mallee Covid Recovery Plan
State Youth Strategy
Rainbow Ready Roadmap

Citizen of

theY@Q ;o
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ADVOCACY AND
LOBBYING

Funding for social connection and
community activation opportunities.

Access to general community
wellbeing and mental health supp
and services.

Skills and training gaps.
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LONG TERM VISION:

Our future Buloke... is an innovative and strong economy with agriculture, small
business and industry capitalising on new ideas to provide a range of employment
and tourism opportunities backed by the services, connectivity and housing to

achieve population stability.

Long Term Aspirations:

Access to affordable (subsidised) childcare under a

New industry and business including entrepreneurs
sustainable rural model.

and social enterprise.

A range of employment opportunities and action Shop-local support from residents.
towards filling identified gaps.

Telecommunications that support modern day

A range of suitable housing options.
business, education and health needs.

Continue to build on exciting tourism attractions and Population stability.
events.
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OUR ECONOMY
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Long Term Strategies:

Strategy

Council’s Role

—

. Support the attraction of diverse industries and businesses to the Buloke

Shire and provide support for projects that create new jobs.

Leader Supporter Partner

[

Support existing business and industry and actively encourage social

enterprise and entrepreneurs.

Leader Supporter Partner

w

. Explore solar {renewabies), recycling, waste diversion and agricultural

industry opportunities,

Leader Facilitator Supporter

. Provide strengthened leadership and resources to drive investment,

econcmic development and tourism.

Leader Facilitator Supporter

5. Explore opportunities for art, culture and history-based tourism, Leader Supporter Partner
6. Broadly promote Buloke Shire as a great place to live, work, visit and Leader Partner

invest.
7. Advocate for the increased provision of childcare services and rural Facilitator Supporter

models of subsidised childcare.

. Determine current and future housing needs and explore innovative

approaches that could better support a mixture of housing options e.q.
units, retirement and rental housing.

Leader Supporter Partner

9. Undertake workforce planning to ensure future access to a flexible and Partner Facilitator
skilled workforce for a range of business and industry.

10. Improve access 1o telecommunication services. Supporter

11, Continue to strengthen, promote and support the Agricuitural industry Facilitator Supporter

and innovation to ensure a strong local future for the sector.
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OUR ECONOMY

COUNCIL PLAN 2021-2025
STRATEGIES

3.1 TOURISM

3,11 Build on regional tourism opportunities and the Buloke ‘trail’ experience (art trail, playspace trail, train trail,
shop and eat local trail).

3.1.2 Develop a gap analysis on signage for key tourist wayfinding.

313 Continue to develop Buloke's water-based tourism by promoting lakes and riverfronts as key tourist attractions

for campers and caravanners and support projects such as on-site cabins.

3.14 Work with Buloke Tourism to continue to identify and act upon arts and cuiture opportunities in line with local
community plans.

3.2 ATTRACTION AND PROMOTION OF LOCAL BUSINESS

3.21 Plan for the provision of facilities, such as incubator hubs and co-working spaces, that will support the start up
of local enterprise and investigate alternative use for existing, vacant land and facilities for this purpose.

3.2.2 Develop business cases for key opportunities, with a focus on renewable solutions and taking into account
future workforce initiatives.

3.2.3 Develop a Buloke events framework to enable local events to take place in the Covid normal environment.

3.24 Agriculture-based tourism to promote and enhance local agriculture and value-add.

3.3 EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES

3.3.1 Build on skills gaps studies, strengthen partnerships with Universities, Charlton Trade Training Centre, Birchip
Cropping Group etc.

3.3.2 Redevelop the Buloke Shire Economic Development and Tourism Strategy.

3.3.3 Focus on hospitality and care (aged, disability and early childhood) and key trade workforce gaps.

3.3.4 Implement agreed actions Investment Attraction Guide and the Mallee Regional Economic Growth Strategy.

3.4 DIGITAL CONNECTIONS

3.4.1 Review Blackspots and renew advocacy with increased emphasis on ‘remote working’.

3.4.2 Work with Mallee Regional Partnerships to implement key initiatives from the Mallee Digital Strategy.

3.4.3 Identify, support and seek funding for place-based projects aimed at increasing digital literacy.

3.44 Advocate for NBN upgrades to fibre connections across Buloke townships to support business growth and the

attraction of new businesses.
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OUR ECONOMY

INDICATORS
REMPLAN Data on Economic Factors

Actions and outcomes from Economic
Development and Tourism Strategy

Local Employment Rates
Buloke Shire Visitor Rates

Buloke Shire Community Satisfaction
Survey

Outcomes of population growth/
decline against projections
Number of planned business
development activities

Planning and Building development
data across the Shire

CURRENT STRATEGIES
AND PLANS

Buloke Economic Development and
Tourism Strategy

Buloke Industry, Product and Services
Gap Analysis

Loddon Mallee Economic Recovery
Strategy

Mallee Regional Economic Growth
Strategy

Mallee Digital Strategy

Mallee Regional Partnership Priorities
Regional Tourism Plans and Priorities
Individual Community Plans

Skills and Workforce Gap Report

Rural Land Use & Settlements Strategy
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ADVOCACY AND
LOBBYING

Funding for blackspots and internet
connection upgrades

Funding for tourism infrastructure
upgrades and a supported tourism
industry

Partnership with relevant universities,
RTO’s and industry for education and
training opportunities

Product Stewardship for all industries
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Long Term Aspirations:

Active partnerships and good communication with Support community leaders with the skills and
Council. knowledge required to advocate for their communities.

Dynamic well supported and recognised volunteers.

Active local laws guidance and support.

Quality customer service and response times. Valued, supported and recognised volunteers. il é!

Less red tape.
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OUR COUNCIL AND
COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP
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LONG-TERM COMMUNITY VISION
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Long Term Strategies:

Strategy

Council’s Role

—

. Encourage and make clear opportunities for community participation in
Council decision making.

Leader Facilitator

N

.Employ a range of effective communication methods to actively and
openly share information with community members, as per Council's
Engagement Policy.

Leader

3. Partner with community and town forums and other key groups to Leader Partner Facilitator
advance agreed community planning priorities and address emerging Supporter
issues,

4. Work collaboratively to develop and build community leadership skills, Supporter Partner

5. Strive for excellence in customer service delivery, Leader

6. Support, encourage and recognise community volunteers. Provider Supporter

~

. Provide leadership to communities to strengthen relationships and
collaboration between community groups and across towns,

Leader Facilitator

00

.Work together with the Victorian Government to better support
community innovation, investment and jobs through the reduction of
unnecessary red tape.

Supporter Partner Regulator

9. Continue to advocate for funding structures, rules, regulations and Supporter
service models that better fit small rural environments.
10. Good connection to other levels of Government and their agencies. Partner
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OUR COUNCILAND
COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP

COUNCIL PLAN 2021-2025
STRATEGIES

4.1 ACTIVE LEADERS AND VOLUNTEERS

411 Redevelop and implement the Volunteer Action Plan.

4.1.2 Support volunteer attraction initiatives from local community groups.

413 Support opportunities that inspire leadership within communities, strengthen relationship with NCLLEN Youth
Action Council.

4.1.4 Invest in skill development of community groups and leaders, building on the community-led response
demonstrated throughout 2020.

4.1.5 Support communities to continue to strengthen the community plan process, timelines and framework to feed

into the reviews of key strategic documents.

4.2 COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

4.2.1 Continue to enhance our online and traditional communication presence to reach all community members
with Council information by developing a Communication Strategy.

4.2.2 Provide high quality customer service and foster an all of organisation customer service approach through a
revised Customer Service Strategy.

4.23 Ensure all customer requests are actioned and recorded in a timely manner by giving all staff the tools to
succeed.

4.2.4 Enact Council’'s Community Engagement Policy by giving Council Officers the tools they need to engage

effectively and meet the expectation of our community by establishing a Communications and Engagement
Strategy which is regularly reviewed and monitored.

4.2.5 Run regular information sessions on Council operations and opportunities and listening posts in conjunction
with the Library Service.

4.3 CONTINUOUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT FOR EFFICIENT AND
FLEXIBLE SERVICES

4.3.1 Undertake regular reviews of Council services.

4.3.2 Continue to report on the Local Government Performance Reporting Framework.

433 Identify opportunities to upgrade and streamline Council’s systems to create a better experience for residents
and staff as identified through the Business Transformation Strategy

434 Continue to innovate when considering service delivery, including exploring shared service opportunities

4.4 A WELL GOVERNED AND HEALTHY ORGANISATION

4.4.1 Develop responsible cash flow budgets to achieve long term financial sustainability and report quarterly
against the delivery.

4.4.2 Annually review and adopt an Advocacy Strategy, with a continued focus on supporting the sustainability of
rural Councils.

443 Actively pursue funding opportunities from Federal and State Government and other community and private
investors.

444 Develop and implement a Workforce Strategy.
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OUR COUNCILAND

COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP

INDICATORS

Achieve the financial results set out in
the 10-year Financal Plan

Improve community satisfaction
results for overall performance and
customer service

Funding of projects identified in
Council's Advocacy Strategy

Volunteer involvement numbers

Number of information sessions
undertaken and attendance data

Service Review Data and Reports
Implementation of Workforce Strategy

Business Transformation Strategy
Actions

CURRENT STRATEGIES
AND PLANS

Annual Budget

Financial Plan

Revenue and Rating Plan

Community Engagement Policy and
Strategy

Customer Service Charter

Risk Register and Internal Audit Plan
Volunteer Action Plan

Inclusiveness Plan

Individual Town Plans

Business Transformation Strategy

BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL 42

LONG-TERM COMMUNITY VISION
AND COUNCIL PLAN 2021-2025

ADVOCACY AND
LOBBYING

Volunteer support through funding
and capacity building

Linkages to networks for community
members further leadership skills

Resourcing for gaps identified through
service reviews

Shared service opportunities
Advocacy Strategy Priorities
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3.14 ADOPTION OF REVENUE AND RATING PLAN

Author’s Title: Director Corporate Services
Department: Corporate Services File No: RV/11/01

Relevance to Council Plan 2017 - 2021

Strategic Objective: Deliver our service in a financially viable way

PURPOSE
The purpose of this report is to present to the Revenue and Rating Plan to the Council for adoption.

SUMMARY

The Local Government Act 2020 (Act) requires the Council to prepare and adopt a 4-year Revenue and
Rating Plan (Plan) by 30 June after a general election. The Plan is used to inform a medium-term
approach to generating income required to support the implementation of the Council Plan and Budget.
A period of community engagement has been undertaken in as part of the development of the Plan.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Council adopt the Revenue and Rating Plan.

Attachments: 1 Buloke Shire Council Revenue and Rating Plan

DISCUSSION

The development of a Plan is a new requirement under the Local Government Act 2020 (Act). The Act
states Council must prepare a Plan for a period of 4 years, to commence on 30 June the year following a
general election.

The Plan explains how Council calculates the revenue needed to fund its activities, and how the funding
burden will be apportioned between ratepayers and other users of Council facilities and services.
Key policies and information are outlined in the Plan including but not limited to the Council’s:

e system of valuation,

o use of differential rates

e use of municipal charge and service rates and charges

e arrangements for payment for rates and charges

e available concessions, and

e pricing policy and user fees.
Council undertook community engagement in the development of the Plan. The community
engagement process and outcomes are outlined in this report.

RELEVANT LAW

Section 93 of the Act provides the Council must prepare a 4-year Plan which describes its rating
structure and pricing policy. The adoption of the Plan must occur after a period of community
engagement. The rates and charges provisions are compliant with Council’s requirements under the
Local Government Act 1989.




RELATED COUNCIL DECISIONS
Council adopted its first Rating Strategy, and Rating Policy in 2019 as part of best practice methodology.

At the Council Meeting held on 12 May 2021, the Council endorsed the draft Plan and commenced
community engagement in accordance with the Community Engagement policy.

OPTIONS

The Plan sets out decisions of the Council in relation to rating options available under the Act to ensure
the fair and equitable distribution of rates burden across property owners. It also sets out principles
used in decision making for other revenue sources such as fees and charges.

The Plan provides a person may pay a rate or charge in 4 instalments or in a lump sum. It further
includes an adjustment to the tolerance threshold which would prompt a review of rating differentials
across all categories where any burden for any category changes by +/- 5%.

The Council may initiate a review of the Plan during its term.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
The development of the Plan has included considered good practice taxation principles, including but
not restricted to:

e Equity;

e Simplicity;

e Capacity to pay; and

e Diversity.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

The draft Plan was presented at the Council Meeting held on 12 May 2021 and Council subsequently
commenced community engagement in accordance with its Community Engagement policy.

Submissions on the draft Plan closed 12 noon 9 June 2021 and Council received 1 submission. The
submission requested the Council develop a model to relate and debate the level of service versus the
ratepayer costs and suggested there needs to be more transparency and debate about assumptions
which determine the rate quantum.

Details of the community engagement undertaken are included in the Plan.

INNOVATION AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT
Not applicable.

COLLABORATION
Not applicable.

FINANCIAL VIABILITY

The Plan outlines the assumptions, policy, and decisions of Council in relation to generating the required
income to effectively support implementation of the Council Plan and budget for a 4-year period.

The Plan includes transparent consideration of the policy objectives and social, economic, and
environmental benefit delivered through subsidies, waivers, and discounts. It will identify financial and
revenue related risks and ensure these are mitigated and effectively managed.

REGIONAL, STATE AND NATIONAL PLANS AND POLICIES

In 2019 the Victorian State Government conducted a Local Government Rating System Review. The
Local Government Rating System Review Panel presented their final report and list of recommendations
to the Victorian Government in March 2020. The Victorian Government subsequently published a



response to the recommendations of the Panel’s report. However, at the time of publication the
recommended changes have not yet been implemented, and timelines to make these changes have not
been announced.

COUNCIL PLANS AND POLICIES

Financial policies and strategic plans, including the Plan, Financial Plan and Annual Budget, form part of
the integrated strategic planning framework. These and other strategies and policies will be considered
by the Council in the period leading to 30 June 2021.

Additional policies to be developed during the 2021/22 to support the application of the Plan financial
year have been referenced in the Plan.

TRANSPARENCY OF COUNCIL DECISIONS

The Plan enables the community to understand how, and on what basis, rates and charges are levied.
The development of the Plan included receipt of submissions at a Council Meeting, with the opportunity
for persons to speak to their submission.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Local Government (Governance and Integrity) Regulations 2020 provide that for the purposes of
section 129(g) of the Local Government Act 2020 a matter related to preparing or adopting a Revenue
and Rating Plan Part 4 of the Local Government Act 2020 is prescribed to be exempt.
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BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL
REVENUE AND RATING PLAN
2021-2025

1 PURPOSE

The Local Government Act 2020 requires each council to
prepare a Revenue and Rating Plan to cover a minimum
period of four years following each Council election. The
Revenue and Rating Plan establishes the revenue raising
framework within which the Council proposes to work.

The purpose of the Revenue and Rating Plan is to determine
the most appropriate and affordable revenue and rating
approach for the Buloke Shire Council {(Council) which in
conjunction with other income sources will adequately
finance the objectives in the Council Plan,

The Revenue and Rating Plan is part of the Council’s
Integrated Strategic Planning Framework as set out in the
following diagram.

Time Horizon

Community Vision
>Needs

Long term Community

(=10yrs)

¢

Council Plan
>Direction

Medium term >Objectives

(4yrs) >Strategies
>Indicators
>Initiatives

Short term

(1yr)

Planning

Engagement

The strategies outlined in this plan align with the objectives
contained in the Council Plan and feed into the Council’s
Budget and Financial Plan, as well as other strategic
planning documents.

This plan explains how Council calculates the revenue
needed to fund its activities, and how the funding burden
will be apportioned between ratepayers and other users of
Council facilities and services. In particular, this plan sets
out decisions that Council has made in relation to rating
options available to it under the Local Government Act
2020 to ensure the fair and equitable distribution of rates
across property owners. It also sets out principles that are
used in decision making for other revenue sources such as
fees and charges. The plan does not set revenue targets.

Reporting

Financial Plan
>Assumptions

>Resources
>Financial statements

Asset Plan
>Maintenance
>Renewal

Workforce Plan
>Structure
>Staffing

Revenue & Rating Plan
>Principles
>Structure
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BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL
REVENUE AND RATING PLAN
2021-2025

2 INTRODUCTION 2.2 REVENUE REQUIREMENTS

The Revenue and Rating Plan is a medium-term plan for
how the Council will generate income to deliver on the

Council provides a number of services and facilities to its Council Plan, program and services and capital works
local community, and in doing so, must collect revenue to commitments over the next four years. In determining its
cover the cost of providing these services and facilities. revenue requirements, the Council has identified what each

source of revenue is, how much will be raised in each class,

2.1 REVENUE SOU R(ES and the policy rationale/assumptions for each. In doing

this, the Council has given consideration to:
« How revenue will be generated through rates on

SO] 8M ) properties (including differential rates [if any] on different
— ) property classes)

1%

- Fixed service charges that might be applied on services
such as waste or recycling

« Fees and charges for services and programs including cost
recovery policies, user charges and means testing

« Recurrent and non-recurrent operational and capital
grants from other levels of government

/ $‘| 4 25 M « Developer contributions and other revenue
522.58M, ) / « Revenue generated from the use or allocation of Council
37%

assets (including the application of discounts and waivers)

59%

« Entrepreneurial, business, or collaborative activities
established to deliver programs or services and generate
income or reduce costs.

2.3 REVENUE BALANCE

The Council provides public good and services, private
goods and services and a mix of both to the community.,

. Rates and Charges - In determining if services should be funded through rates
& /U and charges or other revenue sources such as user charges,
Fees and Charges the Council considers whether services are either entirely
or partially public goods. That is, where a service provides
' Government Grants a broad benefit to the whole community then it will be
a o mostly funded from rates. Where individuals or groups of
5,6;2 Contributions ratepayers receive a particular benefit then the service will
. Other be mostly funded from user charges.

The above graph shows a breakup of the revenue the
Council uses to fund services and facilities for the Buloke
Shire community. The total revenue for the 2021-22 year
is budgeted to be $38 million with the major components
being rates and charges (37%), government grants (59%)
and fees and charges (2%).
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BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL
REVENUE AND RATING PLAN
2021-2025

3 COMMUNITY
ENGAGEMENT

The Revenue and Rating Plan outlines the Council’s
decision-making process on how revenues are calculated
and collected. The following public consultation process
will be followed to ensure due consideration and feedback
is received from relevant stakeholders.

Revenue and Rating Plan community engagement process:

- Draft Revenue and Rating Plan prepared by officers and a
number of briefings provided to Council

» Draft Revenue and Rating Plan placed on public exhibition
at the 12 May 2021 Council meeting for a period of 28 days
and calling for public submissions

» Community engagement through local news outlets and
social media

« Hearing of public submissions to be held at a Council
Meeting on 9 June 2021

« Draft Revenue and Rating Plan (with any revisions) to
be presented to the 16 June 2021 Council Meeting for
adoption.

The following changes are proposed to the structure and
level of rates and charges for the 2021-22 year compared to
the 2020-21 year:

« Decrease the farm land differential rate from 80% to 70%
of the general rate.

Further details including the impact of these changes on
the average rate for each category and/or type of rate is
provided in Appendix A.

No changes are proposed to any other revenue policies in
this Revenue and Rating Plan.
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BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL
REVENUE AND RATING PLAN
2021-2025

4 LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK

The legislative framework as it applies to the raising of
revenue including the levying of rates and charges by the
Council includes the Local Government Act 2020 (including
subordinate legislation, guidelines etc) and the Valuation
of Land Act 1960. The rates and charges provisions are as
per the previous Local Government Act 1989 pending the
outcome of the Local Government Rating System Review.

4.1 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2020

Section 8 Role of a Council

The role of a Council is to provide good governance in
its municipal district for the benefit and wellbeing of the
municipal community.

Section 9 Overarching Governance Principles

A Council must in the performance of its role give effect
to the overarching governance principles. Relevant
overarching governance principles include:

+ Priority is to be given to achieving the best outcomes for
the municipal community, including future generations

« The economic, social and environmental sustainability of
the municipal district is to be promoted

« The municipal community is to be engaged in strategic
planning and strategic decision making

» The ongoing financial viability of the Council is to be
ensured.

In giving effect to the overarching governance principles, a
Council must take into account the financial management
principles.

Section 94 The Budget

Council must adopt a budget by 30 June each year (or at
another time fixed by the Minister) to include:

« The total amount that the Council intends to raise by rates
and charges

« A statement as to whether the rates will be raised by the
application of a uniform rate or a differential rate

« A description of any fixed component of the rates, if
applicable

+ If the Council proposes to declare a uniform rate, the

matters specified in section 160 of the Local Government
Act 1989

6

« If the Council proposes to declare a differential rate for any
land, the matters specified in section 161(2) of the Loca/
Government Act 1989.

Council must ensure that, if applicable, the budget also
contains a statement:

« That the Council intends to apply for a special order to
increase the Council’s average rate cap for the financial
year or any other financial year; or

« That the Council has made an application to the Essential
Services Commission for a special order and is waiting for
the outcome of the application; or

« That a special order has been made in respect of the
Council and specifying the average rate cap that applies
for the financial year or any other financial year.

4.2 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1989

Section 155 Charges that Maybe Declared

A council may declare the following rates and charges on
rateable land:

» General rates

« Municipal charges

« Service rates and charges
- Special rates and charges.

Section 157 System of Valuing Land

A council may use the site value, net annual value or capital
improved value system of valuation. For the purposes

of calculating the site value, net annual value or capital
improved value of rateable land, a council must use the
current valuations made in respect of the land under the
Valuation of Land Act 1960.

4.3 QUANTUM OF RATES AND CHARGES

This plan outlines the principles and strategic framework
that Council will use in calculating and distributing the
rating burden to property owners, however, the quantum of
rate and charges revenue will be determined in the Annual
Budget.
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4.4 LOCAL GOVERNMENT RATING
SYSTEM REVIEW

In 2019 the Victorian State Government conducted a Local
Government Rating System Review. The Local Government
Rating System Review Panel presented their final report
and list of recommendations to the Victorian Government
in March 2020. The Victorian Government subsequently
published a response to the recommendations of the
Panel’s report. However, at the time of publication the
recommended changes have not yet been implemented,
and timelines to make these changes have not been
announced.

4.5 TAXATION PRINCIPLES

The Victorian Government’s Local Government Better
Practice Guide: Revenue and Rating Strategy 2014 states
that when developing a rating plan, in particular with
reference to differential rates, the Council should give
consideration to the following key good practice taxation
principles:

- Wealth Tax: The “wealth tax” principle implies that the
rates paid are dependent upon the value of a ratepayer’s
real property and have no correlation to the individual
ratepayer’s consumption of services or the perceived
benefits derived by individual ratepayers from the
expenditures funded from rates

« Equity: Horizontal equity - ratepayers in similar situations
should pay similar amounts of rates (ensured mainly by
accurate property valuations, undertaken in a consistent
manner, their classification into homogenous property
classes and the right of appeal against valuation). Vertical
Equity - those who are better off should pay more rates
than those worse off (the rationale applies for the use of
progressive and proportional income taxation. It implies a
“relativity” dimension to the fairness of the tax burden)

« Efficiency: Economic efficiency is measured by the extent
to which production and consumption decisions by
people are affected by rates

« Simplicity: How easily a rates system can be understood by
ratepayers and the practicality and ease of administration

« Benefit: The extent to which there is a nexus between
consumption/benefit and the rate burden

« Capacity to pay: The capacity of ratepayers or groups of
ratepayers to pay rates

» Diversity: The capacity of ratepayers within a group to pay
rates,

4.6 RATE CAPPING

The Fair Go Rates System (FGRS) sets out the maximum
amount councils may increase rates in a year. For the 2020-
21 year the FGRS cap was set at 2.00%. For the 2021-22 year
it has been set at 1.50%. The cap applies to both general
rates and municipal charges and is calculated on the basis
of council’s average rates and charges.

From the 2019 year, general revaluations of all properties
have been undertaken on an annual basis. As a result, the
actual rate increase for an individual rateable property
may differ from the rate cap percentage due to changes in
its valuation. Where the change in an individual property
valuation is higher than the average for all rateable
properties, the rate increase for that property may be
greater than the cap. Where the change in the property
valuation is lower than the average for all properties, the
rate increase may be lower than the cap.



Buloke Shire Council Special Meeting Agenda
3.14 Adoption of Revenue and Rating Plan
Attachment 1

Buloke Shire Council Revenue and Rating Plan

Wednesday, 16 June 2021

BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL
REVENUE AND RATING PLAN
2021-2025

5 RATES AND CHARGES

Rates and charges are property taxes that allow Council

to raise revenue to fund essential public services to cater

to their municipal population. Importantly, it is a taxation
system that includes flexibility for councils to use different
tools in its rating structure to accommodate issues of equity
and to ensure fairness in rating for all ratepayers.

5.1 VALUATION METHOD

Legislation

Under Section 157 of the Local Government Act 1989 a
council may use the site value, net annual value or capital
improved value system of valuation. For the purposes

of calculating the site value, net annual value or capital
improved value of rateable land, a council must use the
current valuations made in respect of the land under the
Valuation of Land Act 1960.

Valuations occurring up to January 2018 were undertaken
on a two-year basis, with supplementary valuations able
to be done where there are sales in subdivisions and
consolidations, as well as following the construction

and demolition of buildings. Changes were made to the
Valuation of Land Act 1960 that from 2019 require property
valuations to be undertaken by the Valuer General's Office
on an annual basis.

Policy

The Council uses the capital improved value system

of valuation. This means the sum that the land and
improvements, might be expected to realise at the time
of valuation if offered for sale on any reasonable terms
and conditions which a genuine seller might in ordinary
circumstances be expected to require.

5.2 RATES AND CHARGES

Legislation

Under Section 155 of the Local Government Act 1989, a
council may declare the following rates and charges on
rateable land:

« General rates

« Municipal charges

- Service rates and charges
+ Special rates and charges.

8

Policy

The Council's current policy for rates and charges is set out
in the following sections.

5.3 DIFFERENTIAL RATES

Legislation

Under Section 158 of the Local Government Act 1989, a
Council when declaring rates and charges must declare
whether the general rates will be raised by the application
of a uniform rate or differential rates.

Under Section 161 of the Local Government Act 1989, if a
Council declares a differential rate for any land, the Council
must:

« Specify the objectives of the differential rate including a
definition of the types or classes of land which are subject
to the rate and a statement of the reasons for the use and
level of that rate

« Specify the characteristics of the land which are the
criteria for declaring the differential rate,

A Council must have regard to any Ministerial guidelines
before declaring a differential rate for any land. The Minister
issued Guidelines in April 2013, These guidelines attempt
to spell out clearly what types and classes of land may

be considered for differentials and also those that are

not appropriate for differentials or need to be “carefully
considered”.

The highest differential rate must be no more than four
times the lowest differential rate,

Policy and Charges

Council has four differential rates. Details of the types/
classes of land and the level of rate applicable to each
differential is as follows:

« Residential: 100 per cent of the general rate
» Commercial: 100 per cent of the general rate
« Industrial: 100 per cent of the general rate

« Farm: 70 per cent of the general rate

The definition of each differential rate is set out in
Appendix B.

Council has established the following parameters for the
purposes of deciding when a review of differential rate
levels is required in any budget year:

- The rate burden for any differential rate category changes
by +/- 5% or greater following a general revaluation of
properties

« Any change in the legislative framework that materially
impacts the equitable imposition of rates and charges.
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5.4 MUNICIPAL CHARGE

Legislation

Under Section 158 of the Local Government Act 1989, a
council may declare a municipal charge to cover some of
the administrative costs of the council. A council’s total
revenue from a municipal charge in a financial year must
not exceed 20 per cent of the sum total of the council’s total
revenue from a municipal charge and total revenue from
general rates.

A person may apply to a council for an exemption from

the payment of a municipal charge on rateable land if the
rateable land is farm land, the rateable land forms part of

a single farm enterprise and an exemption is not claimed

in respect of at least one other rateable property which
forms part of the single farm enterprise. In the case of a
single farm enterprise which is occupied by more than one
person, an exemption cannot be claimed in respect of more
than one principal place of residence.

Policy and Charges

The Council levies a municipal charge for the purpose of
covering some of the administrative costs of Council. In
applying the municipal charge, Council ensures that each
rateable property in the Shire makes a contribution.

5.5 SERVICE RATES AND CHARGES

Legislation

Under Section 162 of the Local Government Act 1989, a
Council may declare a service rate or charge for any of the
following services:

- Provision of a water supply
« Collection and disposal of refuse
- Provision of sewage services

« Any other prescribed service,

Policy and Charges
The Council has the following service rates and charges:
« Kerbside garbage and recycling collection

The Council’s policy in regard to setting service rates and
charges is full cost recovery.

5.6 SPECIAL RATES AND CHARGES

Legislation

Under Section 163 of the Local Government Act 1989,

a Council may declare a special rate or charge for the
purposes of defraying any expenses or repaying (with
interest) any advance made to or debt incurred or loan
raised by the Council, in relation to the performance of a
function or the exercise of a power of the Council, if it will
be of special benefit to the persons required to pay the
special rate or special charge.

Policy

Special rates and charges schemes are raised in accordance
with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989.

5.7 PAYMENT OF RATES AND CHARGES

Legislation

Under Section 167 of the Local Government Act 1989, a
Council must allow rates and charges to be paid in four
instalments. A Council may also allow rates and charges

to be paid in a lump sum. Under Section 168 of the Local
Government Act 1989, a council may also provide incentives
for prompt payment.

Policy

Rates are payable by quarterly instalments or by lump sum
in February.
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5.8 REBATES AND CONCESSIONS

Legislation

Under Section 169 of the Local Government Act 1989, a
Council may grant a rebate or concession in relation to any
rate or charge to:

« Assist the proper development of the municipal district; or

- Preserve buildings or places in the municipal district
which are of historical or environmental interest; or

« Restore or maintain buildings or places of historical,
environmental, architectural or scientific importance in
the municipal district; or

« Assist the proper development of part of the municipal
district,

A Council resolution granting a rebate or concession must
specify the benefit to the community as a whole resulting
from the rebate or concession.

Policy

Ratepayers who hold eligible pensioner concession cards
may be entitled to receive a State Government-funded
concession on their rates and charges for their principal
place of residence. The pensioner concession is set at 50
per cent of the rates and charges levied up to a maximum
amount and is fully funded by the State Government.
Eligible pensioners are also entitled to receive a concession
on the Fire Services Property Levy.

A rate rebate is provided to property owners who wish

to protect remnant native vegetation. The amount of

the rebate is 100 per cent of the general rate and is
administered in accordance with the ‘Rate Rebate Scheme
for Protection of Indigenous Vegetation Guidelines’.

10

5.9 DEFERMENTS AND WAIVERS

Legislation

Under Section 170 of the Local Government Act 1989, a
council may defer in whole or in part any rate or charge if
the payment would cause hardship to the person. Under
Section 171 of the Local Government Act 1989, a council
may waive the whole or part of any rate or charge or
interest in relation to:

« An eligible recipient

+ Any other class of persons determined by the Council for
the purpose of waiving rates or charges on the grounds of
financial hardship.

Policy

The Council has a Rates and Charges Financial Hardship
Policy for the handling of hardship cases which allows
deferment of all or part of rates for varying times
depending on circumstances. Interest may also be waived
in hardship cases.
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6 FEES AND CHARGES

Fees and charges consist of statutory fees and fines

and user fees, Statutory fees and fines relate mainly to
those levied in accordance with legisiation and include
animal registrations, Public Health and Wellbeing Act 2008
registrations and parking fines. User fees relate to the
recovery of service delivery costs through the charging of
fees to users of the Council’s services. These include use
of leisure, entertainment and other community facilities,
and the provision of human services such as childcare and
home and community care services.

6.1 PRICING POLICY

Council’s Pricing Policy (to be adopted in the 2021-22 year)
provides guidance for its approach in setting appropriate
levels of fees and charges. This policy applies to all fees and
charges that are listed in the Fees and Charges Schedule
which is published in the Annual Budget. The policy seeks
to ensure that the following key service performance
principles under Section 106 of the Act are met:

« Services should be provided in an equitable manner
and be responsive to the diverse needs of the municipal
community

+ Services should be accessible to the members of the
municipal community for whom the services are intended

- Quality and costs standards for services set by the Council
should provide good value to the municipal community.

The Council must also comply with the government’s
Competitive Neutrality Policy for significant business
activities it provides and adjust service prices to neutralise
any competitive advantages when competing with the
private sector.

6.2 STATUTORY FEES AND FINES

Policy

Statutory fees and fines are those which the Council collects
under the direction of legislation or other government
directives. The rates used for statutory fees and fines are
advised by the state government department responsible
for the corresponding services or legislation, and the

Council has limited discretion in applying these fees.

Fees and Fines

A summary of statutory fees and fines by major service area
is as follows:

« Election fines

= Town planning

» Revenue collection
» Compliance

« Buildings

6.3 USER FEES

Policy

For user fees not regulated by statute, the Council
determines the extent of cost recovery for particular
services consistent with the level of both individual and
collective benefit that the services provide and in line with
the community’s expectations, The three types of non-
statutory pricing are as follows:

« Market price: Price based on the benchmarked
competitive prices of alternate suppliers. In general this
represents full cost recovery plus an allowance for profit

« Full cost recovery price: Price based on recovering all
direct and indirect costs incurred by Council. This pricing
is used in particular where a service provided by Council
benefits individual customers specifically, rather than the
community as a whole

« Subsidised price: Price based on less than full cost of the
service and ranges from full subsidies (i.e. The Council
provides the service free of charge) to partial subsidies,
where the Council provides the service to the user with a
discount.

The schedule of Fees and Charges in the Budget includes
around 300 individual fees and charges which are reviewed
annually as part of the Budget process. The Council
currently benchmarks user fees as part of its annual
Budgeting process and sets subsidised fees to community
groups, organisations and committees in accordance with
the Community Support Policy. The Council intends to
apply the new Pricing Policy to its non-statutory fees and
charges during the 2021-22 year.

User Fees

A summary of user fees by major service area is as follows:
« Compliance

+ Home help

» Public health and wellbeing

« Building

+ Swimming pools

- Halls

« Landfill and transfer stations

- Saleyards truck wash

11
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7 OTHER REVENUE SOURCES

Other revenue sources that Council uses to fund services
and facilities include government grants, contributions and
other revenue,

7.1 GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Policy

Grant revenue represents income usually received from
other levels of government. Some grants are singular

and attached to the delivery of specific projects, whilst
others can be of a recurrent nature and may or may not be
linked to the delivery of projects. The Council pro-actively
advocates to other levels of government for grant funding
support to deliver important infrastructure and service
outcomes for the community. The Council may use its

own funds to leverage higher grant funding and maximise
external funding opportunities.

When preparing its financial plan, the Council considers its
project proposal pipeline, advocacy priorities, upcoming
grant program opportunities, and co-funding options to
determine what grants to apply for. The Council will only
apply for and accept external funding if it is consistent with
the Community Vision and does not lead to the distortion
of Council Plan priorities. Grant assumptions are then
clearly detailed in the Council’s budget document. No
project that is reliant on grant funding will proceed until a
signed funding agreement is in place.

Government Grants

A summary of government grants by type is as follows.
Operating

« Financial assistance grant

+ Aged care

« School crossings

« Libraries

« Maternal and child health

= Playgroups

« Flood rehabilitation

» Environmental management
Capital

» Roads to recovery

- Buildings

+ Road infrastructure

12

7.2 CONTRIBUTIONS

Policy

Contributions represent funds received by the Council,
usually from non-government sources, and are usually
linked to projects. Contributions can be made to the
Council in the form of either cash payments or physical
assets, Contributions are always linked to a planning or
funding agreement and the Council will not undertake
any work on a contribution-funded project until a signed
agreement outlining the contribution details is in place.
Contributions linked to developments can be received
well before any expenditure occurs. In this situation, the
funds are identified and held separately in a reserve for the
specific works identified in the agreements.

Contributions

A summary of contributions by type is as follows.
- Capital works

» Community service

« Revenue collection

7.3 OTHER REVENUE

Policy

The Council earns other revenue from sources such as
property rental and interest on investments, The amount
of revenue earned from property rental is based on rental
agreements that set the rental amount at market rates.
The Council receives interest on funds managed as part of
its investment portfolio, where funds are held in advance
of expenditure, or for special purposes. The investment
portfolio is managed in accordance with the Council’s
investment policy (to be adopted in the 2021-22 year),
which seeks to earn the best return on funds, whilst
minimising risk.

Other Revenue

A summary of other revenue by type is as follows:

+ Rental

« Interest on investments

« Reimbursements

« Fuel tax credits
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BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL
REVENUE AND RATING PLAN
2021-2025

APPENDIX A: IMPACT OF PROPOSED CHANGES TO
RATES AND CHARGES

The following changes are proposed to the level of rates and charges for the 2021-22 year compared to the 2020-21 year:
« Decrease the farm land differential rate from 80% to 70% of the general rate.

The following table shows the change in the 2021-22 average general rate for each category and/or type of land between the
level of differential rates levied in the 2020-21 year "Current” and those proposed to be levied in the 2021-22 year “Proposed".
The average general rates for the 2021-22 year is based on the level of valuation as at 1 January 2021.

Proposed . .
Average Current Average Average Variance Variance
General Rate General Rate General Rate Proposed vs Proposed vs
2020-21 2021-22 2021-22 2020-21 2020-21
Type/Class of Land $ $ $ $ %
Residential 872 806 890 18 2.1
Commercial/Industrial 1,380 1,201 1,326 54 39
Farm 2,920 3,058 2,954 34 1.2

13
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BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL
REVENUE AND RATING PLAN
2021-2025

APPENDIX B: DIFFERENTIAL RATE DEFINITIONS

Residential Land

Definition Residential Land is all rateable land, which is occupied for the principal purpose of physically
accommodating persons; or unoccupied but zoned residential under the Buloke Shire Planning
Scheme and which is not commercial or industrial land

Objectives The objective of this differential rate is to ensure that all rateable land makes an equitable
financial contribution to the cost of carrying out the functions of the Buloke Shire Council,
including (but not limited to) the:

- Construction and maintenance of infrastructure assets
« Development and provision of health and community services
« Provision of general support services

Characteristics The characteristics of planning scheme zoning are applicable to the determination of vacant
land which will be subject to the rate applicable to residential land.

The vacant land affected by this rate is that which is zoned residential under the Buloke
Planning Scheme.

The classification of land which is improved will be determined by the occupation of that land
and have reference to the planning scheme zoning.

Types and classes The types and classes of rateable land within this rate are those having the relevant
characteristics described above.

Use of rate The money raised by this rate will be applied to the items of expenditure described in the
Budget by Council.

The level of the rate for land in this category is considered to provide for an appropriate
contribution to Council’s budgeted expenditure, having regard to the characteristics of the

land.
Level of rate 100 per cent of the general rate,
Use of land Is any use permitted under the Buloke Shire Planning Scheme.
Geographic location This rate is applicable to land within the municipal district.

Planning scheme zoning The zoning applicable to each rateable land within this category, as determined by consulting
maps referred to in the relevant Planning Scheme.

Types of buildings The types of buildings on the land within this rate are all buildings already constructed on the
land or which will be constructed prior to the expiry of the 2021/22 year.

14
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BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL
REVENUE AND RATING PLAN
2021-2025

APPENDIX B: DIFFERENTIAL RATE DEFINITIONS

Commercial Land

Definition Commercial land is all rateable land, which is occupied for the principal purpose of carrying out the
manufacture or production of, or trade in, goods or services, or unoccupied but zoned commercial
under the Buloke Shire Planning Scheme

Objectives The objective of this differential rate is to ensure that all rateable land makes an equitable

financial contribution to the cost of carrying out the functions of the Buloke Shire Council,
including (but not limited to) the:

- Construction and maintenance of infrastructure assets
« Development and provision of health and community services
« Provision of general support services

Characteristics

The characteristics of planning scheme zoning are applicable to the determination of vacant
land which will be subject to the rate applicable to commercial land.

The vacant land affected by this rate is that which is zoned commercial under the Buloke Shire
Planning Scheme.

The classification of land which is improved will be determined by the occupation of that land
and have reference to the planning scheme zoning.

Types and classes

The types and classes of rateable land within this rate are those having the relevant
characteristics described above.

Use of rate

The money raised by this rate will be applied to the items of expenditure described in the
Budget by Council.

The level of the rate for land in this category is considered to provide for an appropriate
contribution to Council’s budgeted expenditure, having regard to the characteristics of the
land.

Level of rate

100 per cent of the general rate,

Use of land

Is any use permitted under the Buloke Shire Scheme.

Geographic location

This rate is applicable to land within the municipal district.

Planning scheme zoning

The zoning applicable to each rateable land within this category, as determined by consulting
maps referred to in the relevant Planning Scheme.

Types of buildings

The types of buildings on the land within this rate are all buildings already constructed on the
land or which will be constructed prior to the expiry of the 2021/22 year.

15
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BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL
REVENUE AND RATING PLAN
2021-2025

APPENDIX B: DIFFERENTIAL RATE DEFINITIONS

Industrial Land

Definition Industrial land is all rateable land, which is occupied for the principal purpose of carrying out the
manufacture or production of, or trade in, goods or services, or unoccupied but zoned industrial
under the Buloke Shire Planning Scheme

Objectives The objective of this differential rate is to ensure that all rateable land makes an equitable
financial contribution to the cost of carrying out the functions of the Buloke Shire Council,
including (but not limited to) the:

- Construction and maintenance of infrastructure assets
« Development and provision of health and community services
« Provision of general support services

Characteristics The characteristics of planning scheme zoning are applicable to the determination of vacant
land which will be subject to the rate applicable to industrial land.

The vacant land affected by this rate is that which is zoned industrial under the Buloke Shire
Planning Scheme.

The classification of land which is improved will be determined by the occupation of that land
and have reference to the planning scheme zoning.

Types and classes The types and classes of rateable land within this rate are those having the relevant
characteristics described above.
Use of rate The money raised by this rate will be applied to the items of expenditure described in the

Budget by Council.

The level of the rate for land in this category is considered to provide for an appropriate
contribution to Council’s budgeted expenditure, having regard to the characteristics of the

land.
Level of rate 100 per cent of the general rate,
Use of land Is any use permitted under the Buloke Shire Scheme.
Geographic location This rate is applicable to land within the municipal district.

Planning scheme zoning The zoning applicable to each rateable land within this category, as determined by consulting
maps referred to in the relevant Planning Scheme.

Types of buildings The types of buildings on the land within this rate are all buildings already constructed on the
land or which will be constructed prior to the expiry of the 2021/22 year.
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BULOKE SHIRE COUNCIL
REVENUE AND RATING PLAN
2021-2025

APPENDIX B: DIFFERENTIAL RATE DEFINITIONS

Definition Farm Land is all rateable land, which is not less than 2 hectares in area; used primarily for grazing
(including agistment), dairying, pig farming, poultry farming, fish farming, tree farming, bee
keeping, viticulture, horticulture, fruit growing or growing of crops of any kind or any combination
of those activities; used by a business that has significant and substantial commercial purpose or
character, seeks to make a profit on a continuous or repetitive basis and is either making a profit or
has reasonable prospect of making a profit from its activities

Objectives The objective of this differential rate is to ensure that all rateable land makes an equitable
financial contribution to the cost of carrying out the functions of the Buloke Shire Council,
including (but not limited to) the:

« Construction and maintenance of infrastructure assets
- Development and provision of health and community services
« Provision of general support services

The rate also recognises the changes to property values relative to other categories, the high
value of land as an input to farm operations, the contribution that the farm sector makes to the
economic activity of the Shire and in recognition of a lower level of service usage associated
with their rural isolation.

Characteristics The characteristics of planning scheme zoning are applicable to the determination of vacant
land which will be subject to the rate applicable to farm land.

The vacant land affected by this rate is that which is zoned farm land under the Buloke Shire
Planning Scheme.

The classification of land which is improved will be determined by the occupation of that land
and have reference to the planning scheme zoning.

Types and classes The types and classes of rateable land within this rate are those having the relevant
characteristics described above.

Use of rate The money raised by this rate will be applied to the items of expenditure described in the
Budget by Council.

The level of the rate for land in this category is considered to provide for an appropriate
contribution to Council’s budgeted expenditure, having regard to the characteristics of the

land.
Level of rate 70 per cent of the general rate.
Use of land Is any use permitted under the Buloke Shire Planning Scheme.
Geographic location This rate is applicable to land within the municipal district.
Planning scheme zoning The zoning applicable to each rateable land within this category, as determined by consulting

maps referred to in the relevant Planning Scheme.

Types of buildings The types of buildings on the land within this rate are all buildings already constructed on the
land or which will be constructed prior to the expiry of the 2021/22 year.
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3.1.5 ADOPTION OF FINANCIAL PLAN 2021 - 2022 THROUGH TO 2030 - 2031

Author’s Title: Director Corporate Services
Department: Corporate Services File No: FM/05/02

Relevance to Council Plan 2017 - 2021

Strategic Objective: Deliver our service in a financially viable way

PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to present the Financial Plan for 2021/22 to 2030/31 to the Council for
adoption.

SUMMARY

The requirement of a Financial Plan (Plan) is established under the Local Government Act 2020 (Act).
The Plan is a key document which enables improved monitoring of Council’s financial viability and
enables better reporting and analysis of decisions and assumptions over a 10-year period. A period of
community engagement has been undertaken in as part of the development of the Plan.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Council, having complied with its obligations under the Local Government Act 2020 adopts the
Financial Plan 2021/22 to 2030/31 including to the following amendments from draft:

1. Confirmation of the Financial Assistance Grant (FAG) 2021-22 and estimate of advanced payment
2022-23;
Additional expenditure relating to increase the FAG;
Corrections and updates to capital works projects since the draft; and

Additional allocations to community groups following Council’s adoption of the Annual Budget
2021/22

Attachments: 1 Financial Plan 2021/22 to 2030/31

DISCUSSION

The Act requires that councils must develop, adopt and keep in force a Plan for a period of at least 10
years.

Council considers the development of its Plan to be more than a matter of compliance under the Act.
The Plan is an integral part of the Council’s overall planning process and provides a longer-term
perspective of the ongoing financial sustainability of the Council and the impact of financial decisions
into the longer term.

The Plan, having established the framework for the achievement of the Community Vision, will assist the
Council to achieve the following objectives:

e Maintaining the existing range and level of service provision and improve the quality and
understanding of the range and levels of service provided

e Maintaining a viable cash position, ensuring Council remains financially sustainable in the long-
term




e Rationalisation of unused assets to allow capacity to continue investing in asset renewal for
road infrastructure
e Continue to pursue recurrent grant funding for strategic capital funds from the state and federal
government.
The above objectives will present ongoing challenges for Council, including continuing to meet changing
service demands and the forecast asset management challenges over the next 10 years.

Council undertook community engagement in the development of the Plan. The community
engagement process and outcomes are outlined in this report.

RELEVANT LAW

The Plan has been prepared in accordance with section 91 of the Act. The adoption of the Plan must
occur after a period of community engagement.

RELATED COUNCIL DECISIONS
Council adopted its first 10-year Plan in 2019 as part of best practice methodology.

At the Council Meeting held on 12 May 2021, the Council endorsed the draft Plan and commenced
community engagement in accordance with the Community Engagement policy.

OPTIONS

Council’s underlying assumptions and estimates are outlined in the Plan.
The Plan will provide quantitative data to support the Council’s assessment and determination of the
most appropriate and sustainable service levels, asset strategies and revenue targets.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

The Plan incorporates key actions and initiatives under the Climate Change Mitigation Strategy, Waste
and Resource Recovery Strategy and other key strategic documents which give effect to Council’s
obligation to ensure the economic, social and environmental sustainability of the municipality is planned
for and promoted.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

The draft Plan was presented at the Council Meeting held on 12 May 2021 and Council subsequently
commenced community engagement in accordance with its Community Engagement policy.

Submissions on the draft Plan closed 12 noon 9 June 2021. Although no submissions were received in
relation to the Plan, submissions were received in relation to other plans within the Council’s Integrated
Strategic Planning framework which have application to the Plan, which has been amended accordingly.

INNOVATION AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT

The annual review of the Plan will enable Council to respond to external factors which may impact,
transform or require re-invention of existing services and activities. The Plan provides a basis from
which Council can blend data from different sources, make decisions about effective use of resources,
and evaluate its strategic planning framework.

COLLABORATION

The Act provides collaboration with other councils and Governments and statutory bodies is to be
sought. The Plan will enable effective measurement and evaluation of collaboration, particularly in
shared services initiatives, in a consistent manner over the life of the Plan.

FINANCIAL VIABILITY

In addition to planning for the delivery of the Community Vision, resource planning is important for
ensuring that a Council remains sustainable in the long term and takes account of long-lived assets such
as road and drainage infrastructure. Buloke Shire Council has prepared a 10-year long term financial



plan to enable a longer-term perspective of the ongoing financial sustainability of the Council and the
impact of financial decisions into the longer term.

REGIONAL, STATE AND NATIONAL PLANS AND POLICIES

The Plan can be adjusted each year to respond to relevant regional, state and national plans and
policies. It is a key tool in protecting against future cost shift by state and federal government.

COUNCIL PLANS AND POLICIES

The Plan considers, where possible, all other plans and strategies regarding services and initiatives
which commit financial and non-financial resources over the 10-year period.

TRANSPARENCY OF COUNCIL DECISIONS

The Plan sets out the quantitative information derived from Council’s strategic planning framework. It
provides information to the community to assist its understanding of the Council’s financial
performance and viability.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Local Government (Governance and Integrity) Regulations 2020 provide that for the purposes of
section 129(g) of the Local Government Act 2020 a matter related to preparing or adopting a Financial
Plan Part 4 of the Act is prescribed to be exempt.
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Executive Summary

The Financial Plan provides a 10 year financial projection regarding how the actions of the Council
Plan may be funded to achieve the Community Vision. The Financial Plan is developed in the context
of the following strategic planning principles:

. Council has an integrated approach to planning, monitoring and performance reporting.

. Council’s Financial Plan addresses the Community Vision by funding the aspirations of the
Council Plan. The Council Plan aspirations and actions are formulated in the context of the
Community Vision.

. The Financial Plan statements provide the 10 year financial resources necessary to
implement the goals and aspirations of the Council Plan to support the Community Vision.

In addition to planning for the delivery of the Community Vision, resource planning is important for
ensuring that a Coundl remains sustainable in the long term and takes account of long lived assets
such as road and drainage infrastructure, Buloke Shire Council has prepared a 10 year fong term
finandial plan to enable a longer term perspective of the ongoing financial sustainability of the
Council and the impact of financial decisions into the longer term,

This Financial Plan highlights that seeking external funding Is a key requiremaent for Council to
continué to meet the renewal demands

The Financial Plan objectives include:

. Maintain the existing range and level of service provision and improve the understanding of
the range and levels of service provided;

. Maintain a viahie cash position, ensuring Council remains financially sustainable in the jong-
term;

. Invest heavily into road and road related assets to reduce the renewal gap; and

. Continue to pursue recurrent grant funding for strategic capital funds from the State and
Federal government.

. Meet the financial requirements of the actions and initiatives outlined in the Community
Vision,

The Plan highlights ongoing challenges for Coundil, intluding continuing to meet changing service
demands and the forecast asset management challenges over the next ten years,

Anthony Judd
CEQ
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Aedumptions o the financial plan statoments

Thes section presents information in regard to the assumptions o the
Comprehensive Income Statement for the 10 years from 2021/22 to
Y.

Description and table of annual escalations, for the 10 year pesiod, for
each income and expenditure line item contained n the Comprehensive
Income Staternent

Escalation Factors

% movement

Pl 25% 25% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 25% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
Growth 0% 0% 0% U% 0% 0% 0% % 0%

Rates and charges 1.5% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%

Statstory fees and fnes 2.5% £.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 25% 2.5% 2.5% 25%
User fees 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 25% 2.5%
Grants ~ Operatng 25% 2 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
Grants - Cagital 2.5% 25% 2.5% 25% 2.5% 2.5% 25% 25% 25%
Contributions - monelary 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% % 0%

Contribitions - non-monetary D% 0% % 0% 0% 0% % 0% O 0%

Other income 25% 2.5% 25% 2.5% 2.5% 25% 2.5% 2.5% 25% 25%
Employee costs 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.6%
Materials and servicas 2.5% 2.5% 25% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.56%
Depreciation & Amunisation 2.5% 2.5% 25% 2.5% 25% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
Other expenses 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%
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4.
4.1

BUSINESS
MATTERS WHICH MAY EXCLUDE THE PUBLIC

RECOMMENDATION:

That Council closes the meeting to the public pursuant to Section 89(2) of the Local Gove
Act 1989 to consider the following items, which are confidential for the reasons indicated:

4.1.1  CONTRACT N0 93 2020-2021 - PROVISION OF MUNICIPAL (d) contractual matters
BUILDING SURVEYOR AND BUILDING INSPECTOR SERVICES

rnment

RECOMMENDATION:

That Council reopens the meeting to the public pursuant to Section 89(2) of the Local

Government Act 1989 and brings resolutions from the closed session into open session.
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